MOUNT CARMEL

Dg/z/aoc 7o poZ o ot 46ald)

BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN MEETING AGENDA

10.

1.

April 24, 2025 - 5:30 P.M.
City Hall, 100 East Main St.
Call to Order

Invocation

Pledge of Allegiance
Roll Call

Welcome from the Mayor

Approval and/or Correction of the minutes of the Board of Mayor and Aldermen Meeting March 27, 2025,
monthly financial report, and department reports.

Visitors’ Comments:

Old Business:
NONE

New Business:

A. PROCLAMATION: Honoring the Life and Legacy of Quentin R. Dykes

B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Surplus of Fire Dept. SCBA Compressor and Fill Station

C. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Resolution 25-651: Establish the Mount Carmel Business and
Economic Development Committee

D. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Resolution 25-652: Wastewater Treatment Plant Operation and
Maintenance Agreement- Inframark

E. FIRST READING: Ordinance 25-540- An Ordinance of the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee, Adopting
the Annual Budget for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2025, and Ending June 30, 2026

Board Comments: Mayor, Vice-Mayor, Aldermen, Staff Comments: City Manager, Asst. City Manager,
City Attorney

Adjourn



MOUNT CARMEL

A place Ze putt e wsn 0ol
Vg Vel

TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL

BOARD OF MAYOR AND ALDERMEN MEETING MINUTES

A regularly scheduled meeting of the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee Board of Mayor and Aldermen
was held at Town of Mount Carmel City Hall, 100 East Main Street, on March 27, 2025, at 5:30pm

CALL TO ORDER
5:30 pm by Mayor John Gibson

INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Led by Vice-Mayor Bare and Alderman Shugart

ROLL CALL:

BMA Present

Absent

City Administration Present

Alderman Darby Patrick

Jim Stables, City Manager

Alderman Philip Binstock

Allen Coup, City Attorney

Alderman James Cross

Tyler Williams, Asst. City Manager/CFO/Recorder

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

ANANENENENANAN

Mayor John Gibson

WELCOME FROM THE MAYOR
Mayor Gibson welcomed everyone

APPROVAL and/or correction of the February 27, 2025, Board of Mayor and Aldermen meeting

minutes, departmental and financial reports.
Motion: Alderman Shugart

Second: Alderman Binstock

Approved: All present voting in favor

VISITOR COMMENTS
NONE




OLD BUSINESS
NONE

NEW BUSINESS
A. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Police Department Surplus Vehicle Disposal

The Police Department requests consideration and approval to surplus three (3) vehicles that have
met their useful and expected life cycle of approximately 8 to 10 years for a take home car, and are
no longer functionally available or needed for effective use in the Town and/or the Police
Department.

Motion: Vice-Mayor Bare
Second: Alderman Binstock
Approved: All present voting in favor

B. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Interlocal Agreement with City of Kingsport for Residential
Refuse Collection Services

The new interlocal agreement, which is projected to be in effect from July 1, 2025, is set at $10.50
per month, per cart for 2,175 carts ,or $22,837.50 per month, and $274,050.00 annually. This is a
13.5% increase, with an actual economic impact of $1.25 per cart which results in the following
increases $2,718.75 monthly, and $32,625 annually.

Motion: Alderman Shugart
Second: Alderman Binstock

AYES NAYS OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart

ANIRNERNI NN

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare v

{\

Mayor John Gibson

C. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Resolution 25-647- A Resolution to set the Sewer Rate
and Charges for the Town of Mount Carmel, TN with an effective date of April 1, 2025

This resolution will address the Tennessee Comptroller's communication and establish a new
sewer base rate and charges of $43.88 for the first 2,000 gallons of usage and a fee of $7.08 for
each additional 1,000 gallons of sewage discharged, based upon a discharge rate equal to ninety
percent (90%) of water consumed.

Both rates identified above represent a 35% increase from the previous rates established in 2015.

2



Motion: Vice-Mayor Bare
Second: Alderman Binstock

AYES NAYS OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

ANEANEANIENE N NN

Mayor John Gibson

D. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Resolution 25-648: A Resolution of the Town of Mount
Carmel, TN Adopting a Public Records Policy

The proposed policy aims to strengthen the transparency and accessibility of public records,
ensuring that citizens have the right to access information. This policy will govern the timely and
efficient release of public records, establish clear guidelines for requests, and implement measures
to protect sensitive information.

Motion: Alderman Binstock
Second: Alderman Shugart

AYES NAYS OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

ANIRNINIR NI NI NN

Mayor John Gibson

E. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Resolution 25-649: A Resolution of the Town of Mount
Carmel, TN Adopting a Cybersecurity Policy

The purpose of this policy is to provide a baseline for managing and reducing cybersecurity risks to
the Town of Mount Carmel's infrastructure, information systems, data, and services. This policy
aligns with the National Institute of Standards and Technology (NIST) Cybersecurity Framework to
ensure consistency, resilience, and effective risk management. This policy will make the Town
compliant with T C.A. § 7-51-2302 and address a prior year audit finding for lack of a cybersecurity

plan.



Motion: Alderman Binstock
Second: Alderman Shugart

AYES NAYS OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

ANIENENENENENAN

Mayor John Gibson

DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Resolution 25-650: A Resolution of the Town of Mount
Carmel, TN Adopting a Fund Balance Policy

The Fund Balance policy establishes a minimum General Fund Unassigned fund balance equal to
25% of General Fund Expenditures. The Town will strive toward maintaining the General Fund
Unassigned fund balance, at a range between twenty-five (25%) and fifty (50%) percent of the
following year's budgeted expenditures as an appropriate level of unassigned fund balance in order
to cover unexpected expenditures and revenue.

Motion: Alderman Binstock
Second: Alderman Shugart

AYES NAYS OTHER

Alderman Darby Patrick

Alderman Philip Binstock

Alderman James Cross

Alderman Mindy Shugart

Alderman Jim Gilliam

Vice-Mayor Jim Bare

AN YR NN

Mayor John Gibson

. DISCUSSION AND CONSIDERATION: Parks Committee Meeting

Discussion and Consideration of a request by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen to call a Parks
Committee meeting pursuant to the Parks Committee bylaws adopted by Ordinance 24-531

Motion: Vice-Mayor Bare
Second: Alderman Shugart
Approved: All present voting in favor



ADJOURN
Motion: Vice-Mayor Bare at 5:58 P.M.
Second: Alderman Shugart
Approved: All present voting in favor

Approve:

John Gibson, Mayor

Attest:

Tyler Williams, City Recorder



GENERAL FUND:

MOUNT CARMEL

ﬂfﬁ(c e /dﬁf:/‘:-"l deali

FINANCIAL REPORT

TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TN

Month ending 03/31/2025

Checking Account (First Community)

Checking Account (First Horizon)

LGIP Investment Account

Capital Outlay Savings (First Horizon)

Drug Fund (First Horizon)

Special Drug Fund (First Horizon)

TOTAL:

SEWER FUND:

Checking Account (First Horizon)

BALANCE:

$1,101.33

$1,740,299.22

$5,097,566.83

$1,392,644.22

$14,576.16

$1,038.95

$8,247,226.71

BALANCE:

$1,051,249.72

Savings/Bond Reserve 2014 (First Horizon) $105,023.60
Savings/Sewer Savings 2014 (First Horizon) $530,023.58
TOTAL: $1,686,296.90

GRAND TOTAL CASH ON HAND: $9,933,523.61

Current Savings Rate: 3.20%
Current LGIP Rate: 4.29%



%L6°05b- (thevl'Tin) (Lrevl'ten) (89'90b'€?) 00°000'5¢ sBuiuleq 1sa193u] 0019¢
%08'20C- (oo'zv0's) (00'2zvs) (00725 'P) 00°00S'T suojnquuo) Bnig 00TS€
%E0'6L 09°085'T (ov'6TH) 000 00'000'2 S150D) puy Saui{ HNo) AUno) 0915€
%00'007T 000007 00'0 00°0 00°000°T saul4 pajey Bnig ov1SE
%L6°59 SLT6PIT (52£05'8) (s1°082) 00°000'sZ JUSLADI0JUT pa3dS 0J0Ud XSPpPaY (43613
%00°69 '86b'bE (85'105'ST) (z6'18¥'€) 0000008 150D puy sauld 1No) AD 0T1S€
%00'08 00°0t (oo'om) (oo'om) 00°0S S3VIAIDS 104 SaBIRYD - [03U0D) [ewiuY 0TSPE
%00"00T 00°008 00°0 000 00008 994 uoneyD 113 X437
%00°00T 00'000°€€E 00°0 00°0 00°000°€E PrIUCY AemybIH 21835 OTEbE
%86°68Z- (00'566'25) (00'566°22) (00°000°05) 0000002 anuaAsy juswyedaq a4 T A%
%00°0 000 (00°000°5) 000 00°000'S suopeuoq Aleigi 6TLEE
196png oN (00"000'sT) {00°000'sT) (00°000'ST) 000 Aunod woy wesn T1LE€
%0022 (270947 (€£'6€2'9) 00°£TH'2 00°000'8 spung eauy pedw [eiads T65€€
%65 tb 98'vS2'97 (bT'sbe'ee) 000 0000009 SIXEL JO N3N UI SIU3WAR] BAL 165¢€
1b6png oN (£Le92'7) (LLe94'n) (8z's€2) 0070 uonez|uispoly uonepodsuel] 855€€
%T9°8€ 90°987 b1 (v6'e1£'22) 9€'/85'€ 00°000°2€ Xe] auljosen )els 76sEE
%60°0% 80°S¥1'¥9 (z6'v58'S6) ST'2LP'9T 00°'000°09T BNUSASY PIY 193115 33e1S 165€€
%00°LET 00'62£'C 00629 00'629 00°00£'1 xe| 1osg aje1S 0£5€E
%/8'8E 90'529'25¢ (v6'bLEL6E) 76'96£'S9 00°000°059 Xe| s9|es 91els 0TSEE
%EE'LLT- (09°9v5'S) (09'9v52) 000 00°000°C T2-02Ad ALTIEVSIA IH OSHD 6TPEE
%00°00T 0000000 00'0 000 00°000'002 ANVYD J¥dT 31VIS I Xagx3
%Z£9'9T 00°008 (00°000'%) (00°008) 00°008"> Aed Juaweiddns sje1s 0TbeE
%8181 G1'S6L'E (S2'+06'9T) (s2'8/8'T) 00'0990Z Peiuo) |e3s0d T6T€E
%85°66 00°000'6£C (00'000°1T) (00°000'T) 00°000'0b2 sjess 93RS 06TEE
%9T'TT- (00°882) (00°8822) (00°0Z) 00°000"Z s)wlad bulpling 0192€
%b/'19 S9'912'ch (5£'€82'97) 00°520'%1 00°000°0Z Xe] asiypueld Al 3|qed 61E
%LL O 6b'£22'ST (15°9/2'62) 86'0bC'T 00°000°SS Xel 133¢ 9|es3|oyMm 0T/1€
%80°EE P6°5€€'95¢C (90'+99'815) ¥6'68.'65 00°000'S4Z Xe] s9]es [e207] 019T€
%99'6b 00'8€L'T (00'29L'T) (00'92£'T) 00°00S'€ xe| dold UQ 350D UNOD puy ‘saisiul 00€T€
%65'T- (91'p£9) (91"v£9'0p) (16'b21'0T) 000000k (s1ea) Jold) saxel Apadosd 00Z1€
%99'1- (90"£0°52) (90"£0"8€S'T) (00°6€8'€9) 00"000'€TS'T (ua.unD) sexel Auadold 00TTE
pezijeayun % pazijealun pezijeay LA pazijeay AL pajewnysy jejoL

%00°'S. aApesedwo) Ajpauop pun4 |essuan : pund
€ Jo T 9bed STOT Yoiew

Wd Z¥:€ Se0e/1e/y g /ajeq A31D - sanuU3AIY JO JuUdWRE]S :Aq pajeas)
SLWIBIM JSJAL asn [owe) JUNojY JO uMmo]

SSNUBATY JO Juswiale)s HY :oweN ajejdwal



%9L"HT 6€'65£'866 (19°056'c€0°€) TLE8T 0S 00'0TE'2E0'Y 0TIT :pung.lodjejol

18bpng oN (00°000°2) (00°000%7) (00°000°2) 000 IIEM [BHOWBR) SUeIR]BA suoljeuod S669€
%T6'€7 26°01¢ (80°686) ¥6'9¢T 00°00€'T SNUIATY SUOREDIUNWILIOIB[BL 1669€
%6/'8E 09'/SL't (ov'eve'er) 19'766'69 00°000°0¢ S3NUBAY SNOBUR(|RISI A 0669¢
pazijeayun %, pazijealun pazijeay @LA pazijeay Al polewnsy jejol,

%00°SZ aapeledwo) Apjauopn pun4 [el3ua9) OTT : pund
€ 4o 7 abeq ST0T yoien

Wd Z¥:€ §202/12/y 2wl /ajeq A31) - sanuaAlYy jJo Juswalels 291 :Aq paaeal)

swelIm JojAL s [owe) Junop Jo umoy S3NUBASY JO JUSWRIR]S DO :awey ajejdwal



%00'SS 9E'L6'EEE'T (b9°'SSE‘T60'T) (9'520°08€) 00°0€EE’'STH'T Ty  :pund 1o [ejoL
%60'£582¢- (60°£58°2€) (60°c56°2€) (00'920) 00°00T Jom3g - snoauejjaosiiy 662L€
%L9°9T- (00'000'T) (00°000%2) 000 0070009 $934 de| Jomes 962LE
%LE6L 00°9T8'6HT'T (00'¥16'8627) (00'v16'867) 00°0€L'8bb'T vdyy S62LE
%00°CE 00°096 (00'0t0'20) (00°00€) 00°000'€ s34 buiunoxy v6TLE
%L9'%T S6'Gb0’8ET (S0°vS6'924) (19'856'62) 00°000'596 sebleyD ARG 1OMS oteE
%8L 68~ (05°v66'02) (0S°v6b'€2) (€0£29) 000052 sBuu.es jsasep] 0019€
pazijeayun % pezjjealun pazijeay ALA pazijeay LW pajewnsy [ejol

%00°S. aaneledwo) Ajyzuop pung oMes  TIH : pund
£ 4o € abeq STOT Yolew

Wd Zh'€ S20e/12/b L /ajeq A1) - soNUBARY Jo JusWRREIS 291 :Aq pajeas)
swelf|ipm JSJAL uesn [owde) JuNoK Jo umo] SSNUIAY JO JUSWIIRIS DO :aweN ajejdwa ]



00°0 000 000 AIWAIY
00°0 %000 (00°009°'T) 00°0 (00°009°T) (00°009'T) 92
00'0 000 00°0 0.BWWOD JO Jaquiey) 0 suimeH
000 %00°00T 00'0 00°005'C (00°005'D) (00°005'2) veL
00°0 000 00°0 uopeuo( suszpi) JoIUSS
00°0 %0000 000 00°000°€€ (00'000°€€) (00°000°€€) €L
00°0 000 00°0 Aousby 201nosey uewny N1 3siid
000052 %00°00T 000 00'005°¢ (00"005'2) (00'005'0) TeL
000 00°0 000 11IsIq uawdofeAad Ul Isid
000 %81°96 (00°59) 00°5€9'T (00'00£'T) (00°00£'T) 0z
00°0 00'0 00'0 sableyn adIAIS yueg
19°£€€T YA JANA 96'0b6' 96'090°S (00'021) (o0'0zT) 169
00°0 000 00'0 weibold A1ajes
000 %000 (00'005'20) 000 (00'00sD) (00'005‘D) 65
00°0 00°0 000 S350D) |estelddeay
00°0 %66'S8 (29'092'1) 8E'6EL'L (00"000°6) (00°000°6) 185
00°0 00°0 000 souelnsuy
00'092 %5589 (sz'eT£'68) 6/'989'S8 (00"000'52T) (00'000'52T) 018
000 000 000 sa0IAIRS Buussuibug
000 %000 (00°000"%) 000 (00"000'%) (00°000'%) ¥52
00°0 00°0 00'0 S3DIAIRS LUOREDIUNWWOD J3YIQ puy suoydajaL
9/'891 %LTEY (¥8'104'T) 91'867'T (00'000°€) (00°000°¢) 124
000 00°0 0070
66'588'T %0b'LS (1£'£99°2) 69'2EE'0T (00'00081) (00°000'8T) (1] 24
00°0 00°0 000 uonefy dlignd
€6°1S %T8'68 (008057 00°25b'2C (00°000°52) (00°000'52) 9¢€2
000 000 00°0 sang
000 %08'28 (00°889) 00°ZTE'E (00°000'%) (00'000'%) GET
JUSWILIBACK) [RIBUID 000TH
Jduelqunoug pasn % dlqefieAy spung sadueiquInoug j106png |ejol Ssjuawpuswy Pa(q0 193u3) P2lqo
/1eny /ssamypuadx3 [196png |eulbLio qns 150D
daLin aiA

%00°G/ '9ARRIRdWO] AJUIUON OTT :pung
81 Jo T abied §T0T Yoiew
WV £0:TT S20Z/ST/p :owi) /eleq seduelquinoug pue sainjipuadxy Jo Juswalels M iAq payeasd
SWeN|IM JSJAL HEL ) |owie) JUNoly Jo UMol a1nypuadx3 Jo Juswalels D97 :dwepN ajejdwa L



00°0 000 000 SADIAIBS [EDIPBIN
00'0 %00°52 {000s1) 0005 (00'002) (00°002) 152
00°0 000 000 abpnr Aip
00°00b %00°GZ (00°002'T) 00°009°€ (00°008') (00°008') 0sz
000 000 000 Buisipoapy
06'v %LS'8Y (00°€pS'T) 00°£S¥'T (00°000°€) (00°000°€) LET
000 000 00°0 seng
00°S6T %66°L6 (21°02) 88'6/6 (00'000'T) (00°000'T) Q€T
000 000 000 SOINIBS GOM
000 %000 (00'000'T) 000 (00°000'T) (00'000'T) AT
000 00'0 00'0 SSVIAIDS JRULBIU]
Lb'06 %LL'TS (1£'999) 62°€£9 (00'002'T) (00'002'T) 912
00°0 000 000 oAl puy URULISPY JO S394
00°00¢ %€0'0L (65°S6T") T'%08'6 (00°000°%T) (00'000T) 191
000 000 000 Bulutes) puy uoneanp3 ss4ojdwa
00549 %00°'STT 00°0ST 00°0ST'T (007000'T) (00'000'1) Rigs
00'0 00°0 000 3ouelnsuy JuswAojdwaun
8L b1 %16'621 L5°6p1 LS°6¥9 (00°00%) (00°00S) Vg
00°0 00°0 00°0 ue|d JuswWlFY Aodwy
98'85H'T %69°€€ (90'555°02) ¥6" b 0T (00'000°1€) (00'000'1€) b1
00°0 00°0 00°0 souelnsuy aakojdwg
[67/95'S %Z1'86 (69'9¥8) SE'EST b (00°000'5b) (00°000°SH) wl
000 000 000 (21eYs sakojdwg) Ise0
(12'8vL) %LTTS (8o'sb/'e) 26'52'01 (007000'02) (00'000°02) 2!
000 000 000 sabemm
TL'99L'61 %£5°99 (LT'¥95'€8) €/'SEY'99T (00°000'052) (00'000°052) 121
uojjeljsiulwpy [eueuly  QOSTY
000 00°0 00'0 uswdinby
000 %09'TH (00'00095T) 00°000+0T1 (00°000°052) (00°000'052) 0v6
ouelquInouy pasn % a|qejieAy spung sejueiqundug 396png |ejoL sjuswpuswy P3(q0 Jajua) Palqo
/lemdy /saimyipuadx3 /106png JeulblLio qns 150D
alnW ala
%00°S. :aAneledwo) Ajyjuop OTIT : pung
8T Jo 7 9bed STOZ YoIew
WY €0:TT S¢0Z/S1/p ‘awil fe3eq saduelquindug pue sainjipuadxy jo Juswalels 91 :Aq pa:eald
SWeljiip 19jAL HEL joune) JUNOKW JO UMOL ainjpuadx3 Jo Juswalels Do :awepN ajejdwaL



00°0 00'0 000 sabem
6T 1581 %9.'LS (6£'9%0'25T) 12°£56'202 (00"000°09€) (00°000°09¢) 14!
jewHedag adljod 00Tz
00°0 00°0 00'0 juswdinbz/poddng/iandwo) maN
(00'914) %/8'€C- (c0'858'T) (z0°85¢€) (00'005'T) (00°00ST) LY6
00°0 000 000 awdinby
(00'046'Q) CYAVAS (1£v8v'S) (1£v8v'1) (00"000'%) (00°000°) 0b6
00'0 000 00°0 Ja1do) sses bunessdo
(18'2) %S59°0 (92°068) ¥£°609 (00°005°T) {00°005'T) S79
00°0 00'0 00°0 snoaue|easiiy
ST'90T'9 %9T'TIE 6£°06b'8 6£°06H'CT (00'000't) (00'000'%) 6/
00°0 000 00°0 saljddng samog Asulld
00'0 %90°5S (99'886) PETTTT (00'002'0) (00°002°0) r453
00°0 0070 00°0 abeisod puy salddns 200
6'16C'y %5821 66'S47'T 66°5£2°0T (00°000'8) (00'000'8) 01€
000 000 00°0 $934 UOISSILWOD
§5'92¢ %8 ETT £9'697 £9'692'C (00'000'0) (00'000'0) 862
000 000 000 [2AR1L
vETE %96°0F (06'S£t'T) 0T'¥20’1 (00°005'0) (007005'0) 08z
000 000 000 sBuipiing soueuluIR puy Jleday
7908 %8/ (9¢°601"9p) #9°068'¢ (00'000°08) (00"000°0S) 992
000 00°0 000 saojalRs Buluoz puy Bujuueld
00'0 %00°£0T 00°0St 00°0S¥'GT (00°000'sT) (00°000'sT) VA4
00°0 00°0 00°0 Hoddns alemyos/alempiey Jaindwo)
82°088'T %ET'8E (58'9£8'¥¢) ST°£95'1¢ (co"00%"95) (00 00%'95) 114
000 00°0 000 5934 Bunipny puy Suunoady
00°098 %0b'L6 (£'6£0'T) GT'096'8€E (00°000°0%) (00'000°0%) €52
000 000 000 SDIAIRS [eba
(00°€L¥'D) %L0°S. (0s'08v'2) 05'615'C¢C (00°000°0€) (00"000°0€) (474
duerquniug pasn % a|qejieAy spung saoueliquundug jebpng |elol sjuswpusuy Palqo dajus) P(qo
/1en1oy [saimyipuadx3 /1ebpng jeuiblio qng 150D
Al air
%00°GZ :2AeledWO) AJLIUO oTT : pung
8T 4o € abeq S20T Yoiew
WY £0:TT §202/ST/b :owi) /oleq sadueiqundul pue sainjipuadxy jo Juswalels 291 :Aq pajeasd
SWel||Ip J9JAL asn [owie) Junop Jo umoyl ainypuadx3 Jo Juswalels Do :awep ajejdwa]



00°0 00°0 00°0 [eAelL
00'8b/ %LE'89 (s87064) ST'602'T (007005'2) (00°005'2) 082
00°0 000 000 sbulpjing adueudjuiel puy Jleday
000 %96°C6 (26'sS0'T) 80"¥b6'ET (00°000°ST) (00°000'ST) 992
000 000 00°0 uoddng asemyos/aiempiey Jaindwo)
(00'962'S) %ZE'TS (89'10€'2) 7€°869'2 (00°000'sT) (00°000°ST) 174
00°0 000 000 SIDIAIRS [EDIP3IA
(00'sTT) %006 (0o'so1) 00°S6€ (00°00%) (00°00%) 15¢
00°0 000 00°0 S3TIAIBG UOREDIUNWILIOD JALYIO puy Buoydala)
0626V %819 (er'11€D) £8°889'€ (00°0009) (00'000°9) (Y74
00°0 00°0 000 seng
00°0 196png oN 05261 05261 000 00°0 SET
00'0 000 000 woo3
000 %25 b6 (sz'94) YA X421 (00°00p'T) (00"00¥'1) 6TC
00’0 000 00°0 SDOIAIDS JBUIDIUT
86°6L %66'SS (b1 0vb) 98'655 (00"000T) (00°000'T) 912
00°0 000 000 Buiutel) puy uonesnp3 sakojdwy
000 %L9'02€ 00°0£6'6 00'0€p'vT (00'005'%) (00°005"t) g
00'0 00°0 00'0 douelnsuy JuswAiojdwaun
8L b1 %b6'€L (ze0eT) 89°69¢ (00°00%) (00'00%) b1
000 000 000 uofesuadulo)) S,UsudIop
(00°9eb'2) 396png oN (00'9€v'7) (00'9ev'0) 000 000 91
00'0 00'0 00°0 uejd Juawaley 3aAojdw3
90'6£0°C %Sb'EE (€T'¥b6'TE) £8'550'91 (00"000°8%) (00'000°8%) 348
00°0 000 000 3duelInsu] aakojdwy
88°'b£0°S %T6'9E (01'5£9'2t) 06'v98'2C (00'005'52) (00°005'52) ol
00'0 000 00°0 (S1eys s1940ldwz) 1520
(8v'184'T) %ST b (LTvS0°LT) £L°Sb6'2T (00'000°0€) (00'000°0€) b1
00°0 00°0 000 sabep SWIHRAQ
15'885°C %b1'6L (68°'146') 11°820'ST (00°000"02) (00'000°02) [44!
dueIqNdUl pasn % a|qejieAy spung saduelIquinoul jobpng |ejolL sjuswpuawy palqo 19jua) welqo
/lemoy /seamyipuadx3 /2e6png |euibLIO ans 350D
alin aia

%00'SZ :anesedwo) AjyIuol OTT : puny
8T Jo  obed ST0T Yoiew
WY €0:TT S20T/ST/ iowil/e3eq seouelquindug pue sainjipuadxy Jo Juswelels M :Aq pajeasd

SWel||ip J9JAL

HELT

|[wde) Junopy Jo uMmoj

21njipuadxg 40 JusWaleIS O :dwep ajejdwal



000 000 000 juawdinbg
000 %000 (00'000'2) 000 (00°000'2) (00°000'70) 0b6
punj 6nia  6ZTZP
00°0 00°0 000 uswdinbg
(v0'181) %8€'S6 (80'¢£4'D) 26'92T'LS (00"000°09) (00°000°09) 0v6
0070 000 000 T2-02 Ad INVYD ALTTIAISIA IH OSHL
000 %€E6°0ST 09°9¥5°C 09'9¥S'L (00"000°s) (00°000°S) S0
00°0 000 000 Jaido) ases bupelado
90°1 %ST°9Z (zo'2L4'1) 86°7¢S (00°000'2) (00°000'2) §79
00°0 00'0 000 sabueyd Ajajes Jo 1dea
91T %Eb'ST (96'96%'S) $0°€00'1 (00°005'9) (00'005°9) 095
00°0 000 000 snoaue|iRdsiy
(00'¥5) %¢28'+8 (eL120) 82°2LT'T (00"005'T) (00"005'T) 6Lp
00'0 000 000 asuadxg oipey
00'0 %T10'S (95'v22'p) A T44 (00700S'%) (00°005) 9c€
000 000 00'0 asuadxg [ond
$9°0TE'T %8E 2 (b b2s'1T) 9C'S/b'8 (00°000'02) (00'000°02) 1€€
00'0 000 000 asuadxg bupesedo pPIuRA
00'v£8 %09'8€ (b1 6v€'ST) 98'059'6 (00'000's7) (00°000'52) €€
000 000 000 SATTddNS 13H011-3
00°0 %00°0 (00°008) 00°0 (00'008) (00°008) 62¢
00°0 000 000 swopun puy Buipo)d
(bs-eTL) %0b"9TT 96°559 96'559'y (00°000') (00"000'%) 9¢z¢
00°0 000 00°0 S1S9A J00.d 19Ing
000 %SL'E9 (00'szs) 00'S£2'T (00°000') (00'000'2) Sze
000 000 000 saljddns buneiadQ
00°€/8 %0601 L0°0Lb L0°0LY'S (00’000°s) (00"000°s) 1743
00°0 000 00'0 abejsod puy saljddng 20430
(€0'pLT) %LT'ETT 6T'G6¢ 61°G6€'€ (00°000°€) (00°000°¢) 01€
JdueIqUINOUT pasn % a|qe[ieAy spung sasuelqunoug 39bpng [ej01L sjuswpusWwly Pe(q0 Jajua) Palqo
/1enjoy /sainjipuadx3y /3e6png jeuiblo qns 350)
dain alA
%00°6/ :aAReledwo) AjUjuol OTT :pund
8T 40 § obed §TOT Ydiew
WY €0:TT §202/ST/b s /ateq sadueIquindug pue saamjipuadxy Jo JusWRlIS 91 :Aq pajeas)
SR JSJAL HE ] [2wie) JUNOoLy Jo uMo] alnypuadxg Jo Juawale)s D97 :Bwep ajejdwa ]



00°0 00°0 00'0 SSDIAISS [ENIDRIIUOD
00'0 %05°£9 (00°059) 00°0S£'T (000007 (00°000'2) 062
00°0 000 00°0 bunsal eyso
00°0 %EE'6LT 9T°9bE'2 91901 {00°000°8) (00°000°8) 182
00°0 000 000 ELCAT
(0o'get) %6¢'ST (01°2¥8) 06'2ST (00"000'T) (00"000'T) 082
00°0 00°0 000 sbulp|ing adueuajulel] puy Jedsy
(00'£86'2) %916 (66°€S+'0) T0°9¥S'6€ (0070002t) (00"000'2t) 992
000 000 00°0 poddng aiemyos/aiempley Jandwo)
00'0 %8b'T1 (££°659'0) [THbE (00°000°€) (00°000°¢) 114
00°0 00°0 00°0 S3DIAIDS [e21Paly
000 %00'0T (00°05t) 00°0S (00"00%) (00°00%) 15¢
000 00°0 00'0 S3DIAIBS UOHEDIUNWILLOY J3Y30 puY duoydajarL
S5°08 %26°09 (v9'z1e) 9E'/8b (00°008) (00'008) 374
00°'0 00°0 000 semN
TLE0E'T %L1 (ob'815°2) 09°18b'S (00'000°€T) (00"000°cT) (174
00°0 000 000 apeled/suonely dliqnd
00°0 %SHHTT SEEy [AF X323 (007000°€) (00°000'€) 8¢
00'0 00°0 000 sang
000§ %0002 (00°00%) 00°00T (00°005) (00°00S) SET
00°0 00°0 00°'0 Buiuies] puy uonednpy sakojdws
(00's50£) %8E"6€ (6€°2£9°€) 19°79€C (00"000°9) (00"0009) 8b1
00'0 00°0 000 soueInsuT JuswAojdwsun
90'b€ %2T e (68'8€€) 17191 (00'00%) (00"005) b1
00'0 00'0 00'0 (21eys sehojdw3) IseQ
(99'vLb) %8S (b9°606'€) 9€'0S0'€ (00'0002) (00°000°2) i
00°0 000 00°0 sabem
Sb'289'y %ST°SS (12'2L1'TH) 6£°228'08 (00'00026) (00°000°26) 121
juawpedaq a1l  00ZZH
soueIquIndu3 pasn % ajqe|ieAy spuny saouelqunoug 396png e300 sjuswpuawy 13[q0 1u3) 2[q0
/1empy /ssinypuadx3 /396png |euibLo qns 350D
alw dlA

%00°SZ ‘9AneIRdWOo) AJUIUOI oOTT : pung
8T 40 9 abed ST0T Yyaey
WY €0:TT S20Z/ST/b syl /e3eq seduelquinoug pue sainjipuadx3 Jo Juswiajels D91 :Aq pajess)
SWBI|IM DAL asn [owe) Junop Jo umo]

ainyipuadxg Jo Juswalels Do awep ejdwal



00°0 00°'0 00°0 s994
00°0 %0009 (00'002°€) 007008y (00"000'8) (00'000°8) 041
00°0 000 000 Butures| puy uonesnp3 aakojdwg
00°0 %000 (00001) 00°0 (00'001) (00'00T) 8v1
00°0 00°0 00°0 aouelnsut JuawAojdwaup
000 %b9'S (9€'¥6) ¥9's (0000T) (00-00T) Vi
00'0 00°0 000 (s1eys soholdwz) 1seO
(00°€12) %T6'vE (92°926) vL'€TS (00°005'T) (00°005'T) g
00°'0 00°0 000 sabem
(00°€€?) %82°SS (T+'209°2) 65°£6¢£'6 (00°000°2T) (00°000°2T) 121
jswpedad [013u0) [ewuy  00VTH
00°0 000 000 juawdinbg
(00°TTEY9) %95°09 (62°281'£8) TLL1828 (00°000°sHT) (00°000'5%T) 0v6
000 000 000 SNOBUR|[SISIN
(00°€99'T) %06'99 (00'1€¢£) 00699 (00°000'T) (00°000°T) 6/
00'0 000 00'0 Bwdinby juswpedsq aiiy
YS'SbL %8516 (€'128'T) £9°8/p'9T (00'000°8T) (00'000°8T) ¥be
00°0 00°0 000 asuadx3 oipey
000 %0T'+8 (00°s6/) 00°S0Z't (00°000'S) (00°000°s) 9€€
00°0 00°0 000 asuadxg [end
LEEEE %9905 (0£'096'D) 0£'6£0°€ (00°000'9) (00°0009) 1€€
00’0 000 000 asuadxg bunetad( spIusp
00°0 %S9 b (9£'509'91) $9'b6e'ET (00'000°0€) (00'000°0€) oge
00°0 00’0 00'0 sulojun puy BuIpop
000 %8599 (99'200'T) $€'266'T (00"000°€) (00'000°€) T4
00°0 00°0 00'0 saiiddng Buneiado
9T'b6b'€9 %05'8£2¢ $669£'C9 $6°69L'%9 (00°000'0) (00'000'2) 0ze
00°0 000 000 abeysod puy salddns 00
0070 %SS°19 (9p"8¢) ¥5'ST9 (00°000'T) (00°000'T) 01€
aJjuelquinoug pPasn % a|qejieAy spung saJuelqundugy jebpng |ejol sjuswpuawy elqo 183ud) »Iqo
/remdy /saimypuadx3 /3°6png [ewiblQ qns 350D
ainW aia

%00°S. :aAneledwo) Ajyjuoky OTT : pung
8T 40 £ 9beg STOT YIep
WY €0:1T 5202/S1/b i fa3eq sadueiquindug pue saJnypusadxd Jo Juswlels RoY :Aq pajeasd
SWIe|IA J9JAL HEL [owie) JUnoly Jo umoL

21mipuadx3g Jo Juswalels Do eweN ajejdwal



00°0 00°0 000 sanq
0572£6'8 %00'181 $1°859'9¢ ¥1°8b5’65 (00'006°2€) (00°006°2€) S€T
00°0 000 000 Buiuiel] puy uonednp3 asdojdwia
000 %000 (00"009'2) 00°0 (00'009'0) (00°009'0) 8bT
0070 000 000 (31eys soholdwiz) 1se0
(00'zen) 196png oN (00'zen) (00'eem) 00'0 0070 1848
00°0 000 00°0 sabepm
(00'¥b1) 126png oN (00'pb1) (00'vb1) 00°0 000 43
juwsbeuely Jojemuwiols /uonoadsu] bulpjing oZvey
00°0 00'0 00°0 uawdinbg
000 %000 (00°00S'¥) 000 (00700 %) (00°005') 0b6
0070 00°0 00'0 snoaue|idsii
00°0 126png oN 89'6 89'6 00°0 000 6/
00°0 000 000 asusdxg snd
(009¢) %TEPE (08'202'1) 0Z'268 (00'009°0) (00°009'2) £33
00'0 00°0 00°0 asuadxg bunelado sIYsA
000 %9€'TCT 00'S€¢ 00°S€E'T (00°001'T) (00°001°T) 0ge
000 000 000 swiogun puy Buiyio
000 %00°0 (00'001) 000 (00'001) (0o0o1) 143
00°0 00°0 00'0 salddns 6unessdo
000 %000 (00001) 000 (00"001) (00°00T) oze
00°0 000 000 SEDINIDS [E31P3IN
00°0 %000 (00'001) 00°0 (00"001) (00'001) 152
00°0 00°0 000 S32IAIDS Uofediunwiwo)) IBYl0 puy wcocaw_w‘_.
(eo'm) %08'Lb (1z°¢e18) 6498 (00°009) (00°009) 574
00°0 000 000 SN
000 %000 (00°00T) 000 (00°00T) (00°00T) (1174
00'0 000 00°0 sang
000 %00°0 (00°00T) 000 (00"00T) (00'001) See
aoduelqunoul pasn % o9jqejieAy spung sddueIqUInNdUg 1ob6png |ej0l sjuswpuswy pa3lqo 123Ud) P3(qo
[1lemdy /seamyipuadxa /3o6png |euiblo qns 150D
dain alA
%00°SZ ‘annesedwo) Ayauoly oTT : puny
8T Jo g abed ST0T YoieW
WY €0:TT 5202/ST/b awil /ajeq seduelquinoug pue sainjipuadx3 jo Juswalels 291 iAq pageasd
SWwelfji 191AL 1asn [owe) JuUno Jo Umol alnjipuadx3 Jo Juawalels Do :Bwep ajejdwaf



00°0 00°0 00'0 SSDIAJIS UOEDJUNLIWOD JSYIO PUY BuoydsfaL
880 %EL'ES (b9°562'T) 905’1 (00'008'D) (00'008'0) 24
00'0 00°0 000 sapinNn
¥0'ere'T %TLES (v8'€€6'c) 91995y (00°005°8) (00°005'8) ovZ
000 000 000 SIVIAIDS JRUIRUT
€TTLT %E6'6S {6€'108) 19'86T'T {00°000'2) (00°000"0) 912
0070 000 000 Buulel) puy uonesnp3 sakojdwz
000 %000 (00°00S'T) 000 (00"005'T) (00°005'1) 8bT
00'0 000 00°0 aoueINsUT JuswAojdwaun
99°%1 %002t (66'682) 10°0T¢ (00°008) (00'00%) Vi)
00°0 00°0 000 uofjesuadoy) S,usuIop
(00'e€v'D) 326png oN (00°¢€b'2) {(00°€€y'D) 00°0 000 91
000 000 000 ue|d JuawWalnay aakojdwy
86'¢61'T YL 8E (£0'066'8T) £6°600'CT (00'000°1€) (00°000'1€) vl
000 00'0 000 2oueInsuT a940|dwg
Sh1ET’E %S6'vL (6£°025°01) 19'64b'1€ (00"000'2t) (00°000°2t) Wi
00°0 000 00°0 (S.eys sakojdwz) 1520
(cz'888'T) %69°E (99'260°1T) ¥€°£09'8 (00°00£'6T) (00"00/'61) b1
00°0 000 000 S3BRM SWIHRAQ
eV ob %Z8"00T 85t 85°€H0'S (00'000's) (00°000's) [44!
000 000 00'0 sabem
$0'9£b'6 %IL'T9 (95°660'96) ¥b"006'PST (00°000'152) (00°000'152) ¥4
s19al3s puy shemybiH  00TED
00'0 00°0 00°0 snoaue|jasii
00°0 %09°L (0z°808) 08'Tt (00°05S) (00°05%) 6/t
00°0 00°0 000 saiddng Bupessdo
000 %09°C (10'86'1) 66'TS (00'000'0) (00°000'20) 0ze
00°0 000 00°0 uopijowaq
00°0 %00°0 (00°000°52) 000 (00°000'52) (00°000'52) 692
aoueIqundugy posn % a|qejieay spuny saouelqunouy 3ebpng |ejol spuaIpuaWYy Pa(q0 433uU3) P3(qo
/rempy /seinypuadx3 /3e6png [euiblQ qns 150D
17} alA
%00°S/ 1aAneledwo) Ajyiuol oTT :pund
8T 40 6 abed STOT Yoten
WY €0:1T 5202/ST/b iswiL /eleq sadueiquinoug pue sainjipuadxy jo Juswajels 291 :Aq pageas)

SWwel||Ipm JSJAL

119

|w1e) Juno Jo umoj

ainpuadxg Jo Juswsalels Do :awep a3ejdwal



000 00°'0 000 uswdinbg
(00'951’€) %L5'b6 (c€'v6b2T) £9'S08°L1¢ (00°000°0€2) (00'000'0£2) 0b6
00°0 00°0 00°0 Buired
(10°€pt'9) %19°9L (TTLLv'es) 6£7278'7ST (00"000'0€€) (00°000°0€€) 1€6
00°0 00°0 00°0 Jireday sbeuleiq
00°0 %000 (00°000°1) 000 (007000'T) (00°000°T) 8
00°0 00°0 000 snosuefasiiy
000 %E6'L6 (v202) 9Z'626 (00"000'T) (00'000'1) (44
000 000 00°0 ssuadxz jan4
1€£'659°C %18'65 (92'990'p1) PL€€6'0C (00'000'5€) (00°000'5€) €€
00°0 00°0 000 asuadxg bunessdo SpPIYRA
08'9v€ %TETS (£5'€26'1T) €b'9L0'ET (007000's2) (00°00052) 0ge
000 00°0 000 suuojun puy Butyio)
00°0 %19°€9 (Lb2€9'T) €5°798'C (00"005'%) (00°005t) 9z¢
000 000 000 saddns Bunesado
88'867'¢ %T1'S6 (6b'16€) 15°809'Z (00"000'8) (00'000'8) 143
00'0 00°0 00°0 abeisod puy sanddns 22140
66'6t %0T'6/ (to'v01) 66°S6€ (00°00%) (00°00%) 0TE
00°0 00°0 00°0 Buises Juawdinbg
000 %Z8'p1 (£z'186'0) €/°816 (00'005°€) (00°005°€) ¥6¢
00°0 00’0 000 [oARAL
000 %000 (00'000'T) 000 (00°000°T) (00°000'T) 082
00'0 000 000 S)99.1S puy speoy adueusjulRly puy Jleday
00°005°2 %00'75 (00'00¢'2) 0070082 (00"000'sT) (00"000°sT) 89¢
00°0 00°0 000 sbulpjing dueusjuiely puy Jleday
T2'8eT %/ 81T L1°29S L1°795'€ (00"000°€) (0o0'000°€) 992
000 000 000 SIDIAIBS |edIpa
000 %009 (00"021) 00°08€ (00°00%) (00"00%) 15¢
aduesquindugy pasn % alqejieAy spung sadueIqunouy jabpng |ejol Ssjuswpuswy Ppa{qo lajua) Pslqo
/remopy /seimpuadxy /3e6png JeuibliQ qns 150D
aln aia

%00'S/ ‘aAgeledwio) Ajusuoly OTT : puny
8T J0 0T abed STOZ Yo1ew
WY £0:TT S20Z/ST/b owil /eleq seouelquindug pue saJnjipuadxy Jo Juswialels D91 :Aq pazeasd

SWel(jIpn J9JAL

uasn

[ouLIe) JUNOKY JO UMO]

alnypuadxg Jo JuswaleIs J97

pwep ajejdwa)



00°0 000 00°0 S3DIAISS [eNDeUo)
000 %8S (s£'791'%01) ST'LES'ObT (00°000'5t7) (00'000'st2) 062
00°0 000 000 SSDIAIBG [RDIPRIA
0070 %000 (00°00T) 000 (00°00T) (00'001) 18
00'0 00°0 00°0 2oueinsu] JuswAojdwaun
000 %00'2k (00°85) 002k (oo"001) (00°00T) Jigs
00°0 00°0 000 ue|d Juswisiiay aaAiojduwi]
£5°08¢ %92 bE (00"652'S) 00'TbL'T (00°000'8) (00"000°8) {328
000 000 00'0 aouelnsuy aakojdws
09'6£0'T %T1'SL (ov'see’e) 09'%92'6 (00"000°€T) (00°000°€T) wi
000 00°0 00°0 (s4eys sahojdwz) 1se0
(10'T0%) %29'St (er622'0) £T'0L8'T (00°00T't) (00°00T'%) Tl
00°0 00°0 000 SaBeM BWILBAQ
09'S€ %9¢C'TS (95'812'T) 1821 (00'0057) (00'005'0) wa
00°0 00°0 00°0 sabem
08'080°¢ %20°0L (90°01'ST) ¥6°686'SE (00°00+'15) (00°00%'1S) ¥4}
Buipioay puy s3sepm plios  00ZED
00'0 000 000 juswdinbg
(00°09¢€'2) %0t 9T €0’0ze’s €0°02¢'8 (00"000'5) (00°000°5) ob6
00°0 00°0 000 Buired
00°0 %/S'8 (SS°€14'SE) Sb'98T'p (00°000'05) (00°000°05) 1€6
000 000 000 salddns puy sjeiien
00°09€'7 %9565 (zre1er’en) 88'898/1 (00°000°0€) (00°000°0€) 00
000 00°0 000 2oueuRulely JYBIT dwel|
00°0 %0T'61 (00°919'T) 00'+8€ (00°000'2) (00'000'2) £ve
00°0 00'0 000 sa||ddns puy sued ubis
00°0 %98'Tt (85'159'%) W8be’s (00°000'8) (00°000'8) we
000 00'0 000 Bunybr 1eaus
$9°0T0'T %099 (6€'61L'2h) 19°082°L€E (00°000°08) (00°000°08) Va4
plv193ns 3e3s  06TED
aouelqunouy pasn % ajqejieAy spung saouesqunoul jobpng |ejoL sjuawpuduy palqo 123Ud) P2(q0
/1enypy /seamyupuadxa [396png Jeuiblo qns 350D
alW alA
%00°S. ‘aapjesedwo) Ayuop OTT : puny
8T 40 1T 2bed ST0T Yaew
WY €0:TT SZ0Z/ST/v sy /ajeq saduelqundug pue sainjipuadx3y jo Juswajels 91 :Aq pajeal)

Sweljjipm J9JAL

dasn

[ouLIe) JUNop Jo umo]

anyipuadxg Jo Juswalels Do ewep ajejdwa)



00°0 000 000 SIVIAIDS JoUIBI]
1£'69 %65'6€ (1€'218'T) 69'£81°T (00°000°€) (00°000°S) 9Tz
00°0 00°0 00°0 Bujuiel} puy uoieonp3 aakojdug
21°002 %10°02 (88'664) 217002 (00°000'T) (00'000'1) i
000 00°0 00'0 ueInsuT JuswAojdwaun
S0°0¢ %SbL9 (£5°sb) £b'b6 (oo'ovT) (oo'ob1) b1
00°0 000 000 (21eys sakojdw3) 1seQ
(1£'867) %16'9t (9r€21'D) $T9/8T (007000'%) (00"000'%) wl
00'0 000 00°0 sobem
9b'9eL'C %6189 (€7'8cE'vT) LLT9TTE (00'005'5¥) (00°005St) 121
Ateaqrm  go8tY
00°0 00°0 00°0 pue
00°0 %00°0 (00°000'002) 000 (00'000°002) (00'000°002) 016
00°0 00'0 00°0 uopesadQ puy juswdoasq Yled
000 %ob' T (£e'€21'se) £9°9/8'%C (00°000"09) (00°000°09) Y4
000 000 000 aseyoind pue
00°0 %000 (00'000°00%) 000 (00°000°00%) (00°000'00%) STL
00°0 000 000 snoaue|[sasiiy
(00'v£2) %068 (9z'0v) PL'60T (00'052) (00'052) 6L
000 000 000 saljddns bunessdQ
0070 %E8 6 (09'252) 0bLbL (00700S'T) (00°005'T) (1r4s
00°0 000 000 Jied [eLOWS B UBIDIRA
00°0 %581 (25£18) 8b28T (00°000°T) (00°000'T) 00g
00°0 00°0 00°0 samN
L7891 %I8'ET (s8'£€7'L1) S1'294'C (00°000'02) (00°000°02) 124
uopeaney  Obbbh
000 000 0070 asuadxg bunesadQ apIysp
s %SS'SL (L£'€29'9) €9°9LE'LT (00'000°€) (00°000c2) 0€g
000 000 000 sa||ddns Bunelado
000 %56’ T (52°062) S/°602 (00700%) (00°00S) 0zZ€
adueiquinoug posn % sjqejieAy spung sasuelqundug 3296png jejol sjuswpusawy P2(q0 19jua) 2lqo
[1enpy /seimypuadxy /396png JeuibLo qns 350D
ainW dlA
%00'SL taAneledwo) Ajyiuow 5 Bty
8T JO 2T abed STOT YdI1ew
WY €0:1T S202/ST/b iawiy fezeq sadueiquinduz pue saimipuadx3 Jo Judwajels 91 :Aq pageal)

SWel|IM JSjAL

HELT

[ow.e) Junopy Jo umoj

aJnyipuadx3g Jo Juswalels DO :PweN jejdwag



00°0 00'0 000 Buisea Juawdinb3
00°'88% 3obpng oN 00°88b 00°'88% 000 00°0 ¥62
00°0 000 000 SDIAIBS [euoslad
00'+08'S 126png oN 00'%08'S 00°+08's 00°0 000 00T
sjusuwiied [edduLld 3sea1 00006
000 000 00'0 welbolq Buipesy Jswwns
0070 %ST1°0T (90'26£'T) ¥6°20¢C (007000'0) (00°000'2) 12
00'0 00'0 000 Ja1do) ases bunessdo
(85°9) %ET'EY (9g°p8T) $9'STE (00"00%) (00°005) G279
000 000 000 17-0¢ 1uelo bujuel] Aeiqy]
000 %000 (00'0000) 000 (00"000'2) (00'000'2) 619
000 000 000 S ele
S9bIE %S1°28 (56'sv6) S0'bSE'y (00'00£’s) (00°00£'s) 06t
00°0 000 00'0 SNO3UE||9ISIK
0070 %0S°4C (66'687) 10°0TT (00°00t) (00°00%) 6L
000 000 000 sbeysod puy saliddns soWO
€bLET %IELE (62°0b) 1£'650'T (00°005'T) (00°005'1) 01€
00°0 000 00°0 [oARAL
00°0 %00'0 (00°00%) 000 (00°008) (00'00%) 08¢
000 00°0 000 sbuipjing aoueusjulely puy Jleday
00'0 %05'C¢C (00'sze'd) 00°5£9 (00°000°€) (00"000°€) 992
000 000 000 Yoddng atemyos/aiempiey Jandwo)
00'S6S %E9'09 (co'cer) £6'999 (007001'T) (00°001'T) §52
000 000 000 SDIAIBS |EOIP3IA
0070 %000 (00"001) 00°0 (00"001) (0o001) 15¢
000 000 000 S3DIAIBS UOREIUNWILLOD JAYIO puy suoydajal
95°6¢C %LT°0T (9z°868) ¥£'10T (00"000'T) (00°000'T) 524
00°0 000 000 semBN
SbLE %6E'EE (9v'0€€’e) $5°699'T (00°000°S) (00°000°S) obe
aouelquinoug pasn % a|qejieAy spung sajuelqundug jebpng [ejol spuBWpUWY p8[q0 Jaqua) P3(q0
/1enpy /sainypuadx3 /1e6png [eulbLIO qns 150D
ali dalA
%00°S/ :3Aneledwo) AjUIuo OTT :pung
8T JO €T abed S20T Yoien
WY €0:TT §20T/ST/b sl /ajeq seduelquINdUl pue sainjipuadxy Jo Juswalels M :Aq pajeasd
swiel[jip 1AL 9sn [owie) Junoy Jo UMo) aInjipuadx3 Jo Juswalels Do PwepN slejdws)l



00'0 00'0 00°0
68'G16'20T %21'9S (86'zc'210'0) 70'12p'€LS'T (00"092'585'p) (00"092'585"v) O0TT ‘puni.od|ejol
Jdueiquinougz Pasn % a|qe|ieAy spung sajuelquinousg 32bpng |ej0l sjuswpuawy P3(qo 19jua) P(q0
/1eny /seimypuadx3 /1e6png jeuibuQ qns 150D
alW alA

%005/ :oAnjeledwo) Ayiuop OTT : puny
8T 40 T sbed STOT Ydlew
WY £0:TT SC02/ST/v awi) /ajeq sajueiquinduz pue sainjipuadxy jo Juswlels 91 :Aq pajeas)
SWe[IIA JSJAL HELT)] [Swae) JUNoK JO UMO]

ainypuadxg Jo Juswsalels Do raweN ajejdws)



00°0 00'0 00°0 Sa0IMBS |eba
(00v96'T) %69'TH1 0S'%80°C 05802 (00°000%) (00'000°s) [4:74
00°0 00°0 00°0 S3DIAIIS [ed1Pa
(00°0S) %00°0¢ (00"00t) 00001 (00'008) (00'00S) 152
00°0 00°0 000 SS0IAIBS UOEDIUNWWIOD J3Y30 puY auoydajaL
6v'T01 %16'0b (29'v562) 8€°5b0'C (00°000's) (00'000°S) ShT
0070 00°0 000
60°960'£¢C %€EC 88 (eb'2v6'2T) /S'TS0'L6 (00'000°0TT) (00'000°0TT) 1]24
00°0 000 00°0 sang
00'0 %16'Gh (00'061'T) 00°0T0‘T (00'00Z'0) (00°00Z'0) x4
00°0 00°0 000 SSDIAI9S JRUIR]
850 %ET'8S (91'pEE) ¥8'S9b (00°008) {(00"008) 912
00'0 00'0 00'0 Buures| puy uopesnpy sakojdug
000 %000 (00°000'2) 0070 (00"000'2) (00'000'2) 8bT
00°0 00°0 00'0 oueInsuf JuswAojdwaun
95°'€ %0L'bC (zs'9.8) 8b €Tl (00°00%) (00'00%) b1
000 000 000 uofjesuadwio?) S,usuIopM
000 %09'985 £8'62¢'vC £8'62¢'6¢C (00°000°5) (00°000°s) 9T
000 00°0 000 ue|d JuaWwa.ay avkojdwy
65°2LY %9642 (£8'%92'92) £p'5EL'8 (00°000'5€) (00"000°s€) 348
00'0 000 00°0 doueinsu] s8Aojdw]
19°'150'T %ES'HT (€zz8T'sy) LLLTLBT (00°000°09) (00°000°09) wl
00'0 00'0 00°0 (a1eys s1ahojdwz) Isep
(LLT1b) %t 6E (og'181°21) +9'8v8'/ (00°000'02) (00'000'02) %1
000 000 000 SabeA BWIHSAQ
0T'€0b %8H'S9 (€0'8£1'S) L6'128'6 (00"000°sT) (00°000'ST) 44}
00°0 000 000 sabep
(bT201'8) %IT'Gh (z9'120'81T) 8£'8/6'96 (00"000'512) (00°000°s12) 14
Jomas  00zZzS
sduelqundug pasn % ajqejleAy spung saouelqunoug 3abpng [ejol sjuswpusuy pelqo lajua) Palqo
/1lempy /seampuadxy /3e6png [eutblIQ qns 150D
aiw aLA

%00'SL ‘aAneledwo) Ajyiuol ZTb :pung
8T 40 ST 2beq §T0T Yyaen
WY €0:TT §202/ST/b sl /ajeq S9JULRIqWINDUZ pue saimipuadxd Jo Juswalels 9 :Aq pajeasd

SWelipm S9IAL

HELTY

[owe) JUNOY JO UMOL

aInypuadxg Jo Juawalels Do :eweN ajejdwa)



000 000 000 doueUBjUIR|y puy Jieday uonels dung
000 %L9'C (95'866'22) ¥'100'C (00°000's2) (00'000°52) T9¢
00°0 00°0 000 asuadxg |ang
76'€Se %6b'95 (¥8'26£'0) 9T'£0T'E (00'005°s) (00°005's) £33
00'0 000 00°0 asuadxg Bunesado SPIYaA
002z %99'67 (0z'215°¢) 08'78b'1 (00'000°s) (00°000°S) 0€€
000 000 000 suuoyun puy Buiyion
§5'88 %5091 (ze912'9) 89°€82'1 (00°000°8) (00°000'8) 9z¢
000 000 000 searwsy)
00°Sk0'T %bE P9 (TZ'1€1'L) 6/'898'CT (00°000'02) (00'000°02) [442
000 000 000 sa||ddng Buessdo
YT LLY'Y %IT'EZT £1°99%'€ ££799b'81 (00°000'ST) (00"000°sT) oze
00°0 000 00'0 abejsod puy s9l|ddns 8310
00°'0 %T. 80T vS'eh ¥S'EPS (00°005) (00°00S) 01¢
000 00°0 000 394 UOISSIWLWIO)
00'920C %61'16 (00'€94'1) 00°2€2'81 (00'000'02) (007000°02) 861
0070 00°0 000 SDIAIRS [enidenuo)
$5°598'6 %58°220T [4%:14: 2V 7€'878'18 (00°000'8) (00°000°8) 067
00°0 000 00°0 [eARLL
000 %000 (00"000'T) 000 (00°000'T) (00°000'T) 087
000 000 000 S)eR1)S puy Speoy 2dUBURUIRI puy Jeday
(00°268) %S0'8 (95'9¢b'9) b €95 (00"000°2) (00°0002) 89¢
000 000 000 SIDIAIDS BOUBUSIUIR|Y puy Jleday
(00°598) %60°82T 9€°608'2 9€'608'C1 (00'000°0T) (0o"000°01) 097
000 000 00'0 voddng asemyos/aiemplen soyndwo)
000 %000 (00°000'T) 000 (00"000'T) (00"000'T) 114
000 00°0 000 SeoIAIRS Bulisaulbuy
00729091 %85°149 90'STEYIT 90°STEPET (00"000°07) (00°000°02) 14T4
000 00°0 000 s394 Bunipny puy Bununoxy
00°0 %000 (00"000'2) 000 (0070000 (00'000'2) €se
sjuesquinouz pasn % alqejieAy spung sesuelqunouz 1e6png |ejol sjudlWIpusWy elqo Jajqua) Plqo
/1emoy [seimypuadx3 /3e6png jeuiblQ qns 350D
atnw aiA

%00'S. :aAjesedwo) Ajyuoly Iy pung
8T Jo 9T abed STOT Yaiew
WY €0:TT S202/ST/ :Pwill/ezeq sadueIquINOU3 pue saimipuadx3 Jo Jusawslels 91 :Aq pajean)
swiey[|ipm J9JAL HELY,) [owie) Junop Jo umoy anjipuad3g Jo JuawRlels DO Pwep ajejdwa)



000 000 00°0 0ueujulely 19100y 010y /sSaid I3d
60°181 %EE'ET (£0'051'1) £6'6b€ (00'005'T) (00°005'T) 556
000 00°0 000 Jesodsia 96pniS ug
(zz'89£'8) %6102 (0b'206'6€) 09°260°0T (00°000°05) (00'00005) 256
000 00'0 000 jJuawdinby
000 %000 (00"000'52) 00°0 (00"000'52) (00°000°5£) o6
00°0 000 00°0 sabiey) 30IAISS Kueg
000 %000 (00°021) 000 (00021) (00"0zT) 169
000 000 00'0 152.493u] epjL
00°0 %0892 (91°26¢"p) $8°209'T (00°000"9) (00°0009) €9
00°0 00'0 00°'0 spuog Buipunyay xe| /A3y €102
000 %000 (00"000°0t) 00°0 (00"000'0t) (00°000°0%) ¥19
000 000 000 S99 WA 23835
00°09%'¢ %98°86 {(o0ov) 00°09b'c (00°005°€) (00"005'€) 965
00°0 000 000 uonepaidag
00'289'8/C %2191 00°789'8¢ 00'289'8/2 (0o0"000'0t2) (00"000°0+T) oS
000 000 000 Je3uay Juswdinbz puy Alsuiyoely
00°005°2 %0006 (00°005'0) 007005t (00"000'52) (00'000'52) €€9
000 000 00'0 @oueinsu]
000 %000 (00"000'12) 000 (00'000'10) (00°000'12) 01S
000 000 00°0 SNO3UE|I3JSIA
0070 %8085 (zz'61h) 8/°08S (00°000'T) {00'000'T) 6Lk
000 00°0 000 NOLLONYLSNOD
(00'591°06%) %L£0°0 (£+'55£'86L'T) £S'Pb2'T (00°000°008'T) (00°000'008'T) 10
000 00°0 00°0 SoueUUIR)Y puy Jledsy Jueld 191emM3lseM
TLSEL'S %09b'8L (v0'z£L0T) 96'£22'6€ (00°000°05) (00"000°05) ¥9¢
00°0 00°0 000 DURUIUIR|Y pUy Jieddy aur] Jomas
000 %000 (00°00S'1) 000 (00°005'T) (00"00s'T) €9¢
00°0 000 000 aoueUSUIRY puY lieday dung |euspisay
(£8'1£2'90) %528 (TZ°v91°c1) 6/°GE8'T9 (00°000°52) (00°000'52) 79¢
aosue.Iqundoug Pasn % ajqe|ieAy spung seJueiqunduz 39b6png |el0L U TR T palqo Jaqua) P3A(qo
/1enpy /seinyipuadxy /396png |euiblo qns 150D
alW dalA

%005/ ‘aAjesedwo) Ajyiuol TIb : pung
8T 40 /T 9bed ST0Z Y2en
WY £0:TT 5202/ST/b wiL/s3eq sedueiqunduz pue sainypuadxy Jo Juswajels 291 :Aq pajeald
Swiel|jIipm AL 1asn jowie) JuUnoy Jo umoy ainyipusdx3 jo Juswalels Do :awepN ejdwa)



000 000 000
(z9'z9¢z81) %10'TE (zb'L12'980'2) 8520786 (00°029'890°€) (00"079'890'€) TIb  ipundgaod|ejol
000 000 000 Siamolg jueld Jamas
00°0 %000 (00°000'S) 000 (00°000°S) (00°000°5) 956
dueIqUINOU] Posn % a|qejieAy spung sadueiqunouy jobpng |ejol sjusawpuswy P3[qo 123U3) »alqo
/lenpy /seanypuadx3 /196png JeuibLio qns 350D
(I17] alA

%00 :aAineiedwo) Ayiuo

%00°SL il D AJYIUO ZIv :pung
8T Jo 8T abed STOT Yoten
WY €0:TT S202/ST/b owi) /eyeq s@dueIqUINDUZ pue sainjipuadxd Jo Juswaelsg I :Aq pajeas)
SWel|Ip J9JAL 3asn [owe) JUNoly Jo UMo) alnjipusdx3 Jo Juswaiels Do :aweN gejdwal



Mount Carmel Fire Department

Mitch Walker, Fire Chief

April 2nd, 2025
To: James Stables, City Manager
Ref: March 2025 Monthly Report

The Mount Carmel Fire Department answered a total of 37 calls for service during the month of
February. Day shift personnel answered 17 calls, and 20 calls were answered by the volunteer
staff. Our average dispatch to arrival time was 7:04 with a 90t percentile of 11:08. Calls for this
month included several structure fires, vehicle accidents, and medical responses. This brings our

year-to-date total to 117 calls for service.

Over the month of March, we spent a considerable amount of time working on grant
administration and close-outs. The TEMA Hazard Mitigation Grant is going well, this lengthy
process requires work from multiple angles. We have met with a contractor and are working to
acquire costs for grant submission. We are also closing out our Tennessee Volunteer Fire

Department Equipment grant for 2025.

A considerable amount of training occurred over the month of March with members logging
over 500 hours. Two members attended a basic extrication course at the Northeast Tennessee
Fire-Rescue Conference. Multiple members completed in-house SCBA and hose handling
courses. | am also pleased to announce that all seven of the personnel enrolled in the emergency
medical responder course have passed the class and will move onto the national registry test.
Multiple department members also obtained fire commission certification in the areas of

Firefighter |, Rope Awareness, Fire Inspector |, and Fire Officer I.
Thank you and the BMA for your continued support.

Respectfully,
Mitch Walker, Fire Chief

100 EAST MAIN STREET, MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE 37645
T (423) 444-1027 K MCFD@MOUNTCARMELTN.GOV



'S eso Total Record Volume By Incident Type

Custom v

46%

FIRE

Peecentase of Towl

37

INCIDENT:

Jercel

31

DAYS

In Selecied Time Shee

o Tivee Shice

Mar 1, 2025 - Mar 31, 2025 v

Mar I Mar4

Mar & Mar 8 Mar 10

Mar 18

Mar 12 Mar 14 Mar 16 Mar 20

Mard2

Mar 23 Mar 24 Mar 28 Mar 30

jan'22

Week Ending

Juir22

% Rows

3/2/25 3/9/25 3/16/2

% Columns

Jan'23

% All

S5 3/23/25 3/30/25

Jul23 Jan 24

4/6/25 4/13/25  4/20/25  4/27/25 5/4/25

Jul'24 Jan'25

5/11/25  5/18/25  5/25/25 Total

(11) Structure
Fire

(14) Natural
vegetation fire

(31) Medical
assist

{32) Emergency
medical
service (EMS)
incident

(34) Search for
lost person

(35) Extrication,
rescue

(41)
Combustible/f..
spills & leaks

(44) Efectrical
wiring/equipm.
problem

(55) Public
service
assistance

(56)
Unauthorized
burning

(61)

Dispatched
canceled

en route

(62} Wrong

location, no

emergency

foun

(74)

Unintentional

system/detect...

operation (no
fire)

Total

1 1
1 1 1
1 3 5
1
1

2
1

1
3 B 9

1
2 1
3 1
1
1
2
]
1
9 6

Page 1 of 1

13

37



Police Departme
< Niouthly

ner t

h 2025




4/15/25, 2:13 PM CivicEye - Incident Console

Incidents (March 2025)

Incidents March 2025 v

-
N

Total Incidents
Total Arrests

Total Drug Charges

Total Murders

Total Rapes

Total Other Sexual Assaults
Total Kidnappings

Total Domestic Violence
Total Date Violence

Total Stalking

©C O O O = =2 O N|w

Parties
Individuals 38
Organizations

Juveniles
Expunged

Quarantined

3
8
0
Infectious 0
0
5

Complainants
Victims 13
Suspects "

Unsubs 0 1

e 1 1 1 1 1 1 11
0 P -
0 ' P ] : % ] ff}

Responders 0 ) .
e — SRR AT N U 0 P S GO CIP I PP A A i S S S ol
ealthcare Professionals F I FF IS FIFHIPHE TP
Other 15
Arrests Incident History (last 12 months) Arrest Race
Juveniles 0 20
Teens 0
Adults - 20s 1 10
Adults - 208 1 l l l I l I l
Adults - 40s 0 0 L. R J =
Adults - 50s 1 R 'S Qfﬁ‘ Ll f”h ca“ a2 Or? (rﬁ" i'f)
<
Adulits - 60s 0 N R T P @R
Seniors - 65+ 0
K - street address or place name ;i go | x k-4 Q search mapped incidents Zoom: Q R N o

https://mountcarmeltn.agisent.com/app 1171



Hawkins County ECD
2291 E MAIN ST ROGERSVILLE , TN 37857

CFS By Department - Select Department By Date
For MOUNT CARMEL PD 03/01/2025 00:00 - 03/31/2025 23:59

MOUNT CARMEL PD Count Percent
911 UNKNOWN 2 1.01%
ANIMAL COMPLAINT 12 6.06%
ATTEMPT TO CONTACT 1 0.51%
BREATHING PROBLEM 1 0.51%
BURGLARY-DELAYED 1 0.51%
CARDIAC ARREST 2 1.01%
CHILD CUSTODY PROBLEM 2 1.01%
CITIZEN ASSIST 2 1.01%
CIVIL MATTER 1 0.51%
DEATH INVESTIGATION 2 1.01%
DISTURBANCE 1 0.51%
DISTURBANCE W/WEAPON 1 0.51%
DRUG RELATED INCIDENT 1 0.51%
FOLLOW UP 15 7.58%
FOUND PERSON 1 0.51%
FRAUD 1 0.51%
HARASSMENT 5 2.53%
JUVENILE INCIDENT 3 1.52%
LE ALARM-RESIDENTIAL 2 1.01%
LE INFORMATION 9 4.55%
LE MUTUAL AID 1 0.51%
MOTORIST ASSIST 5 2.53%
MVC-ENTRP/EJEC 1 0.51%
MVC-NO INJURIES 7 3.54%
OUTSIDE FIRE 1 0.51%
PATROL/PREMISE CHECK 3 1.52%
PROPERTY DAMAGE 1 0.51%
PURSUIT 1 0.51%
RECKLESS DRIVER 8 4.04%
SEX CRIME-DELAYED 1 0.51%
SHOOTING INCIDENT 1 0.51%
SICK PERSON 1 0.51%
STRUCTURE FIRE-RESIDENTIAL 1 0.51%
SUICIDAL PERSON 2 1.01%
SUSPICIOUS ACTIVITY 3 1.52%
THEFT 1 0.51%
TRAFFIC STOP 92 46.46%
TRESPASSING 1 0.51%
UTILITY DAMAGE 1 0.51%
WELFARE CHECK 1 0.51%

Total Records For MOUNT CARMEL PD 198 Group/Total 100.00%

CAD Report & Page 1 of 2 04/15/2025 12:11



Total Records 198

CAD Report 5 Page 2 of 2 04/15/2025 12:11



0000 WS  ItS
00:0 000  00:0
0010 S¥L  S¥iL
00:0 8010  80:0
00:0 0000  00:0
00:0 0010 000
000 0010  00:0
000  6Y§  6¥S
00:0 0Z:kL 0T
00:0 0010  00:0
00:0 8LZL 8L
00:0 000 000
000 9010 900
00:0 9z:9L  9Z:9l
00:0 000  00:0
000 ¥Z§ 2§

\Z8ky  Ze6  2Z6

Zvisa  avju3
S ,.1_ w A€

=SNG 1SV & ADWANY

00:0
00:0

000

000

€0:1

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

S50
8101

bl

059

9v:0

6€0

50:¢

LE0

€e:C

GS'1

8l0

000
00:0

61:0

€¢:0

42y

$5:0C

iv/isqu3/sa sqQ/sS40

§20¢/S0/€0
€€:00°'le
G20z/v0/c0
L0 E
6202/v0/€0
1G/€°61

620Z/v0/c0

10:2€61
§202/v0/e0
oeveel
§20c/v0/€0

olelel
G20¢/¥0/€0

6y 1eCl
§¢0c/y0/€0
cri60-cl
G20z/v0/e0
1E7E60
§20c/y0/E0
80:85:80
$202/¥0/c0
61:9¢:20
§20c/v0/€0
LEP0LL
§202/€0/€0

90:vEl
G202/€0/E0

Sv:00:Ct
§¢0¢/€0/€0

92:9¢:01
§¢0c/e0/E0

0v:85:81
§20c/10/€0

paso|D §42

¥0:¥€:01
£0:00:1¢

01:10'le

LS:/€6)

90:9¢2:61

0gveEl

L0:€Let

8yleict

8v:80:€l

LEWEB0

80:85°80

61:9€:/0

9C Y0 LY

90 vigl

y¥:00:C)

9¢:9e:01

€£2:90:8}
Jea|n

1€:46:60 0S:15:60
Ervy0C

02:5€:0¢ g¢€:l2:0C

¢e9C6l vi9z6l

SZvv8l

6€8LEL

6S:¥S:Cl

€0:0e:¢l viveel

6}:0€:Cl 65:8Lcl

05:¢1'60

80:/¥'80 05:62:80

9G'v¢ L0

12i2¢S:9l Gles9l

8V:Gl:€l 22'69-Cl

Zsectl

L0:8L:0L €vcLol

€0:2¥9L 02:€1:9l YOEEZl ehEeel

(44

s

v u3g

0S°1G:60
eV vv0C

GE:L2:02

¥c:9ci6l

eyl

6E8LEL

6S:¥G:Cl

viveel

65:81:ClL

0G:21:60

056280

95v¢:L0

Sl:es 9l

ceci6sch

[AETATNS

Ev:2l0l

chieciel

$202/S0/€0
§2'pe0C
§20c/y0/€0
22:9¢:0¢C
§20Z/v0/€0
ye6161

§¢0¢/¥0/€0

oc:er8l
G20¢/v0/e0
00:8lL:€l
§20¢/¥0/€0

¥5:2G:¢
G202Z/v0/e0

VAR A4
§202/¥0/€0
92:91:2}
§202/¥0/€0
§5:01:60
§20c/¥0/€0
¢£:62:80
§202/¥0/€0
96'v€:L0
§20e/v0/e0
S}:29:91
6202/€0/e0

£0:6G6:Cl
§¢0¢c/e0/c0

6L:6¢:L1
G202/€0/e0

62:¢l:0}
§20¢/e0/€0

8v:c0cl
§202/10/€0

SQ PoAIRIRY S4D

506
¥06

Y06

€06

QdOn

506

G06

S06

006

S06

§06

G506

¥06

Y06

¥06

606

¥06
nun

662 aines
65C Slev

64T IDANEY

Ser4 i RpleT42

6S¥} /98900-5202
15 aooma3d

/ NTNIXNOVHOOW 608900-6202
T1INEVYO INNOW

‘10 ¥3INNVE 80F 808900-5202
a4y NMOIXOITO

/A4 W13 Di8  zogg00-520¢

TIH

HOYNHD 'y AITIVA

652 3™MUEY

6Sc iSNsey

652 OdNIEY

SY3LHVYD 6069

| HOUNHO LSILdvE
TIVANITHD $62900-5202

TINEYD INNOW
HID JIMYYD 102 252900-6202

RE[ENA)

ANNOW 'SLYLINN
N1 3470M Ovpl  052900-5202

JANEYD

AINNOW ‘IAVY

6GC)ONVEY JONIANILIANI LIG) S¥2900-G20C

6sc ™ndcy
69¢ YONVEY
6SZ)ONVEY

652 YONEY

6S¢ Slev

65¢ OJNIEY

65¢ OdNIEY

65¢ .OHSEY
NS3 adA] jeD

TANAVO INNOW
‘1S AOOMQIY €59 2¥£900-620¢2

T13NAIVYO
LNNOW ‘1S AVE Zt¥ 912900-G20¢

TANHEVYO EINNOW
‘INVY AOOMAWY 9L€  Z12900-5202

IAVY JONIANIJIANI
/M L1 AVMHOIH  11./900-5202

IAY ANOWWVH
/NTSITI3 M 199800-6202

TANAVO

INNOW ‘¥ LINN
IAY ANOWWVYH €28 ¢19900-G¢0C

BEL}=) 20

AINNOW ‘PL LINN
3NV ANOWINVH €28 009900-520¢

TINEYD
LINNOW '3IAY
6G2)ONVEy IONIAN3ILIANI LIS 6/5900-5202
TINHYO
INNOW ‘IAVY
JONIANIJIANI 629 Zor900-520¢2
uoneso #S40
6S¢

NS3 Ag dnoig 19ayg peaidg awi} asuodsay ad TINHYD LNNOW

1682€ N1 ‘ ITASHIDON 1S NIVIN 3 1622
as3 fjunoH sunimey

(@3N MOTHOIH) NI fioud



00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

000

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

oyl

00:0

0§

414

00:0

(484

€0:0

000

00:0

00:0

S¢'8

00:0

00:0

vz

00:0

vl

00-0

L0S

Gl

9zv

00:0

(4B 4

€00

00:0

00:0

00:0

GE8

00:0

00:0

vee

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

000

00:0

0z:0

00:0

1§

S0

610

9cel

10'€e

0c0

10:0

00:0

L0'C

00:0
000

80:0

00:0

G20¢/01/€0

6111120
§¢0c/0L/e0

80:L¥'EL
6¢02/.0/€0

Beevcl
§20z/L0/€0
veerbL

6202/.0/€0

or:eyel
§202/90/€0
SLLLiLL
§¢0¢/90/€0

€1:0s'e
§20¢/50/€0

9¢:€0:02
$202/S0/€0

Ge:05:8l
§¢0¢/S0/€0

le:zegl
§20¢/S0/€0

VeLLLL
§20¢/50/€0

¥Z:v0:91
§202/S0/€0
€06l
§20c/S0/€0

b1:8S L
Gc02/50/€0

60:50:L 1
§202/50/€0

y0:ve:0l

611011

6l:p1:L0

6S:0¥'EL

6levict

pLI6YILL

£6:01:Cl

SLLLLY

[A R4V 74

92:€0:02

GE:0G:81

leice:8l

Vel

yep0-9L

€0v1isL

LLBS LY

60:60°11

€0:17:60 L}:€€:60

}6:60:90

coeeel sg'9zel

ySileiCl 6e:9eict

ocecetl v0'8T: LY

[41245°2973

25:8€:0L 00:¥€0l

€0:00:1Z 00:00°1C

9cer6l

¥5:6€:81

c¢ei0e8l

58791 61:0¥'91

YXATA 21

10'€0'S )

SEOPLL L1:8E L

20:69:01

L1:€€:60

1G'60:90

ggozel

6€'9¢:CL

vo:8¢c:L1

co:Letl

00:v€:0l

00:00:}¢

9¢er6l

y5:68:81

ce0e8l

61:0¥:91

YXATA A1

L0'€0'GL

bLeeitL

20:65°01

§¢02/01/€0

}G:60:90
§20Z/0L/€0

y0:5C€l
§202/L0/€0

ycoect
§¢02/L0/€0
SvilcL)

§20¢/20/€0

oc 8l Ll
G20Z/90/€0
$0:2€:01
§202/30/€0

65:9¢:0C
§20¢/50/€0

95 L¥6l
§202/50/€0

£6:6¢€°81
6202/S0/€0

zeioegl
§202/S0/€0

cigegl
G20¢/S0/E0

YX4T4 213
G202/50/€0
10:€0:9L
§20¢/50/€0

€0:8e:1L
§20¢/S0/€0

¢0:65-01
§202/S0/€0

660560

€06

506

€06

¥06

¥06

¥06

y06

v06

¥06

Y06

¥06

€06

¥06

¥06

§06

G06

652 3d0¥d

65¢ SleEv

652 )NYAck

65T IDANEY

65¢ IDANEY

6GC /NIEY

652 OdNIEY

6SC MOISLY

g
65¢)ddoey

65¢ Slev

65C¢ Slev

6SZ)ONVEY

65¢ Slev

69¢ Slev

65C SHUEY

65¢ Slev

‘1D N3dSV 001
TANEYD

LNNOW ‘1S NIVIN

M 90} | 13NEVD
INNOW Z3dIMS
TINEYO LINNOW
‘1S NIV 3 212

| (TINEVYD LNNOW)
IVYANIO ¥v110d
TINEYD LNNOW
‘1S NIVIN M 991

| T3NEYD LIN-NOINN
L1340 NYWLSYS
TINHYD LNNOW ‘ay

YUIOUVENVHL 0L

TANEYD

LNNOW ‘90YLINN
N7 3470M oYL
TANEVO INNOW

‘IAV LNOW13g 901
TINYYO

INNOW ‘91dY

1S MO0TWIH 20z
JIWHYD

LNNOW 'IAY
IONIANI4IANI 629
¥a

SHVO NIAIS / ANY
JONIANIJIANI
TANEVYD LNNOW

‘1S NIivIA M 991

[ T3WHVYD LW-NOINN
110340 NvWLsv3
TAWHYD

LNNOW '3AY
JONIANIJIAAN! LG
TUH

HOYNHD 'QY AITIVA
SHALMVYD 6069

| HOYNHD 1SILdva
ERLZNEERD)
TANYYD LNNOW
‘YA AFTHSY 2L
T3INHYO LNNOW

‘1S NIvIN 3 212

| (TANWYVD INNOW)
IVH3NIO ¥v110a
T3INEYD LNNOW

‘1S NIVIN M 991

[ T3WHYD LIN-NOINN
113349 NYINLSY3
TIWHYD INNOW
‘IAV IONIANILIANI

0v¥£00-5202

2ev/00-920¢

281.00-6202

¥21.,00-6¢0¢

981.200-6202

§€0.00-520C

620.00-6202

¥.6900-5202

0.6900-5202

656900-520C

§56900-520Z

££6900-5¢0¢

££6900-5202

026900-5¢02

£88900-5202

9/8900-G¢0C



000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0
00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

010

LE0

¥0:0

00:0

L0:8

€ece

8v-€

cLo

600

00:0

ecill

00:0

00:0

8l€c

00:0

00:0

§0:0
00:0

or0
200

010

LE0

¥0:0

00:0

208

€Ce

8v¢

[4 2]

600

00:0

€eLl

00:0

00:0

8L€C

00:0
00:0
G500

Gs'v

o0
200

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

000

00:0

00:0
000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

L0:0

VAS

1244

8G:1
00:0

00:0

[A4Y]

686G

00:0

00:0

cee

00:0

00:0

00:0

Ob:LL

8s'1L

00:0

(STATA N 4
§20z/eL/e0
g6l
S20c/EL/ED

FARARAN
S20Z/EL/E0
BE:€0:40
SZ0Z/ELIE0
6v:20:10
§20Z/E1/E0
1€:62:L1
§202/21/€0
L0:8ES)
§202/21/€0
8€1/Sp)
§202/21/€0

00:¥s°Cl
§20z/2Lie0

8llect
Gc0c/cl/e0
9G:9¢e:L1
§20¢/11/€0
129291
G20z/L1/e0
020091
Gcoe/L1/e0

1£61:91
G20c/11/€0

Sevyel
G20e/1L4/e0
8¢:01:01
§¢Qc/11/€0
9G:.20l
Gcoc/Li/e0
[ TA VA
§20c/01/€0

1G02:L1
§20zZ/01/E0
0g:L19L
§202/0L/€0

9c:lo:L)

PARAN4S

65 vivl

8EEG'Cl

6€:€0:v0

£5:6¥:00

(A4 TAVN"

LLLES)

LPi9S L

65:€5C1

gl:lect

96:9¢€/1

12:9¢:91

02:00:91

LE:61:91

Sevvcl
8c:0v:0l
96:2¢:0l

LA A

0S:02:L1

€¢:L191

60:64:¥| 69:8L:¥1

1C:60:¥l 0S:80:¥L

8e:6yEl veE6vEl

2A148%0

16:GZ:00 ¥¥:L1:00

910791 £9'9¢:9l

9¢:¢0:Gl 8e:8Svi

6y:8v.vl LE8YYI

ogeriel ggievicl

9g:lgct

8€91:Ll G0'6G:91

8€:€0:91

¢0'6G'Gl

¥0:51:91 9¥'LGG|

ys€ecl
¥0:2€:01
€0:50:01 85:¥0:0L

cv6eiLlL

Gl:€0:L} 62:¢0:L}

8G:1G:Gl 9G 166Gl

65:8lL:¥1

0S:80:v 1

veerel

bi:81:€0

¥¥:L1:00

£6:9€:91

8e:85¥|

Le8YvL

| TATA 248

R Y A4

606591

8€:€0:91

c0:6G:G1

o 1GGL

vaeecl

¥0:.€:01

85:¥0:01

YA R AVAS

62:20:L1

9G6°16:G1

65:81:¥1
G202/EHED
05:80:v1
§2oz/elieo

ye6viEl
§20Z/E1/E0
LE:87'€0
§202/€1/€0
1S:€1:00
SZ0Z/ELIED
60:2€:91
§202/21/€0
or'95:¥1
§202/21/€0
LE8YPL
§202/21/€0

Geerel
620z/chie0

viieel
§¢0c/cL/e0
90:¥5:91

§20Z/LL/E0
8€:¢0:91
Geoe/iL/ieo
206561
G20Z/LL/E0

yc6vGl
G20e/1L1/eo

vaeect
G20c/L1/E0
¥0:L€:01
G20c/1L1/€0
857001
§202/11/€0
L£:60:L1
§20c/01/€0

}€:00:L4
G20z/0L/e0
961961
G20z/01/€0

L5:¢€60

¥06

€06

¥086

14%]

141°]

06

¥06

¥06

€06

S06

$06

506

606

¥06

Y06

$06

G506

¥06

¥06
¥06

66 Sity

6SC)ONVEY

65¢ Slev
6G¢ 10der

6521d00.L¥

65C T1ldEr
g
652 4dOcy

69 Slev

65 Slev

6592 104deY

652 HVHEY

65¢ 104EY

65¢ 10dev

65¢ Qddey

65C Siev

69¢ Slev

6GC)ONVEY

69¢C dVHEY

6GC)YONVEY
65C¢ Slev
3

OVINVa

AL

1S LNNTVM / AV
JONIAN3IJIANI
TANEVYO LNNOW
‘1S 1NNTYM OYS
N1 SONIMdS
MOAvaN / 3AVY
JONIAN3JIANI
T1INEVYO INNOW
‘IAY ¥3INOQ 9LL
JANEYD INNOW
‘IAVY °¥3N0A 91L

4 W13 9I1g/ay

AITIVA SHILYVD
TINHVYD INNON
‘1S NIVIN M 8€S
YA LIONYY / 3AVY
JONZANIJSANI
JAWHVYD INNOW
‘IS NIVW 3 Zi2

| (TINHYD ENNOI)
IVHIANIO ¥v110d

13NEVYO INNOW

‘AAVY JONIANILIANI

clst
J3INYVYO

AINNOW ‘1S W13 61§
TINYYD LNNOW ¥d
aooMIaiNvyd LLS

TAWHYD INNOW
‘IAV "3N0Q L0}
1ANEVYD INNOW

‘1S NIVIN M 991

[ T3WHYD LIN-NOINN

113340 NYINLSY3
ad

AITIVA SY3LHVO
/N1 3470M

INY

NOSYH3443r / 1S Avd

1S

NIVIN M/ 3AVY 43A0Q

TINHVYD LINNOW
‘1S ¥vaad zzs
TINYYD

INNOW ‘VAidVLINN

¥a 1s3yd 8ie
NT NHONVYA / G
AITIVA SHILHVYD

13NEVO INNOW

068.00-G20C

6¥8.00-520¢C

Z¥8.00-920¢

96.200-620C

98.200-9¢02

ZyLL00-G202

€¢/.00-520¢C

1€..00-G202

80.200-920C

¥0..00-G¢0¢C

909200-520C

865.00-5202

166200-520¢

96G.00-G¢0C

695.00-620¢
965/.00-5202
¥65200-6202

16¥.00-5202

06¥.00-5202

¥8%.00-5202



00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

Al

00:0

000

ve'8

00:0

00:0

ol-¢-

£v:0l

00:0

Ggee

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0
00:0
00:0

00°0

00:0

¥Z8

00:0

00:0

00:0

evol

00:0

Gee

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

200

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

9l'l
000

00:0

000

10:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

100

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

10:0

00:0

€00

0z:0

100

00:0

00:0

15C

L£0

€¢e

621110
§20c/81/E0
92:0¢°€0
§20¢/81/€0
62:v9:91
Gc0ze/LLIg0

(0 20) 21
Gc0z/LLice0
80:02:91
§20c/L1/E0
1E€0:81
G20Z/L1/€0
yeevsl
Gc0c/L1L/E0
cL:0e61
G20Z/L1/E0
vyl
§20z/L1/€0
ob:LLpl
G20¢/L1/€0
16:62:80
Gc0ce/L1/E0
$G:9¢€:60
S202/LLE0
60:1¥:00
§20c/LL/€0

9Lv0:LL
G20e/viie0

y0:6¥:Gl
§20Z/¥V/c0

Gl:Gg€l
S20c/vL/e0
6v:€0:¢l
§20¢/vL/e0

9v:61:60
$20Z/v1LIE0

1116612
SZ0Z/ELIED

91'6G:L1
Gcoz/eL/e0

1oz8l
Gcoz/el/e0

621140

92:0e:€0

6C:va:91

6£:0¥:91
80:0¢:91
0€:€0:91
yeerigl
cL:0e§l

ereyivl

CIA R4
16'62'80
£6:9€:60

60:1:00

91:p0:LL

cr8visl

GlLiGeel

6¥:€0C1

9v:61:60

L16S¢

91'6G:L1

GG'8G:LL

501040

yeeLeo

¢S:S:91

6¢:62:9}
evcl9lL
90:¥5:G1
80:6€:G1
c¢cleslL

6l:6evL

or:LL:vl
§0'v1:80
126250 62:52'50

£¢:60:00

L2:87:Sl

90:42'Gl ¢p8LGl

ehivLiel

0c:iviLL

90:60:60 ¢Z:01:60

00:96:1C Zb:S¥'le

GG'8G:L1

GS:0¥'LL 0T L€L)

§0:1L0:%0

veeleo

25:5¥:gl

6€:62:91

€v-Cl:9L

90:¥5:G1

80:6€:G1

ccilesl

6l6eYl

ov:bLivl

50:¥1:80

12:5¢:S0

£2:60:00

LC:81G1

cr8lLisl

evvliEl

0c Lyl

90:60:60

Lisvile

GG:8SLL

(USRS AS

$0:10:%0
G20c/81L/E0
veelieo
G20z/81/c0
2SS9l
§c0Z/L1L/E0

6€:62:91
S20c/LLI€0
4 4TAN ]
G20e/LLiED
90:¥5:G1
§20c/LLIE0
80:GEG|
G20z/LL/E0
eeilest
§eoz/LLED
6LeEYl
G20e/L1LIg0
ov:bipl
G202/L1/ED
§0:¥1:80
G20¢/L1/€0
9¢:62:50
§20Z/L1/€0
€2:60:00
G¢0z/L1/E0

ve:8rSlL
§202/v1Ie0

cai8lsl
Gc0c/vi/e0

chivLiel
6c0z/v1L/ED
0 iyl
Gcoz/vlLieo

90:60:60
S20Z/VLIED

9zTYiT
§202/1/€0

81:8G:L1
G20zZ/EL/ED

L0weiLL
Ge0e/EL/ED

¥06

¥06

G506

§06

506
S06

G06

506

506

506

G06
Y06

Y06

G06

506

¥06

¥06

S06

16

¥06

¥06

65¢ Slevy
65¢ SlEv
6SC Sievy
65 Slev
69¢ Slev
65¢ Slev
66¢ Slev
65¢ Slev
65¢ sliev
65¢ SlEv
6GC ONVEY
65¢ Slev
BSC IDANEY
652 104ev
65¢C UVHEY
65¢ SlEv
652 YONEY
65¢ Slev
65Z MOMEY
65C 104Ev
69C ANrey

SHALYVD 6069
| HOMNHO LSILdvd
ERVANEERD)
IAVY AOOMITONIT
/1S NIVIN M

1S NIVIN M
/ ANV QOOMITON3T

1S NIVIN M

/ 3AY COOMITONS
1S NIVIN M

/ ANV GOOMITONT
AV AOOMITONI
I M LY AVMHOIH
1S NIV M

/ 3NV GOOMITONST
1S NIVIN M

/ 3NV AOOMIATONI
JAY AOOMITONT
/M L AYMHOIH

JAVY AOOMITONI

/M LE AYMHOIH
NI SI713 3/ 3AVY
JONZIANI43IANI
IAY AOOMAWH
M LL AVMHOIH
NT NHONVA / QY
AITIVA SHILHVO
BE[S) 0]

AINNOW ‘@¥ A3TIVA
SY3LYVO 88¥S
TANEVYO LNNOIN
‘L0 SMOavan

ISIHUNNS ovl

TINEVD
ANNOW "LS NIVIN
3 102 [ NOISIT10D
HIILNNIOA

IAY AOOMITONT
I M LE AYMHDIH

13WYVO INNOIW
‘LS NIVIA M 991

| 1INHVO LIN-NOINN

110340 NYWLSY3
TANHEYO INNON

‘IAV NOSHI443r Z0e
TINHVO INNOW HA
1S34HD ATTIVA LPL

T3NEYO INNOW
‘LS MIINANYHEO +01

68€800-G¢0¢C

98€800-620¢C

L¥€800-G¢0¢C

9¥£800-920¢

¥v£800-G202

6£€800-520C

L€£€800-5¢0¢C

$££800-520C

62£800-620¢2

92£800-520¢

9.2¢800-520C

¥92800-5¢02

6¥2800-520¢

200800-5202

¥66.00-G20C

¥.6.00-9202

€56£00-5202

1€6.00-5¢0¢

¥16.00-5202

818200-620¢

9/8100-G¢0C



00:0
00:0
000

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0
00:0

6ey

€8

00:0

1 4

00:0

vt

000

00:0

8l-¢-

00:0

00:0
00:0
00:0

6ev

00:0

00:0

ele

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0
00:0
00:0

000

€0:L

00:0

00:0

00:0

or€

00:0

00:0

8Ll

000

00:0
00:0
10:0

(4131

00:0

100

(43"

00:0

00:0

0¢-0

yee

00:0

00:0

G6:81:60
§20c/61/€0
y£:€5:90
§20c/61/€0
22:5€:50
§202/61/€0
80:80:¥0
620Z/61/€0

12:6¥°00
G20z/61/€0

60:00:00
§20¢/61/€0

6G-8¥:02
§20z/81/e0

95:0€:0¢
§c0c/81/E0

L1:01:0¢
620Z/81/e0
80:L€:81
§¢02/81/€0
12:0e-S1
Sc0z/81/c0
€o0clbL
G20¢/81/€0
¢¥:20:80
§20¢/81/€0

GG:8¥:60
$£:€6:90
€C:6e:60

$0:90°'¥0

12:6¥:00

60:00:00

65:81:0C

95:0¢:0¢

11:01:0¢

80:L€:81

le:oest

€0:Cl:bL

Zv:20:80

Slevi60
00:8+:90
L¥:6¢:50

¥0:05:00

90:9€:00 60:€¥:00

LppSieC

16:2€:0Z 8€6E02

21:81:0¢

60:¥0:0¢ 6%:20:0¢

90:96:01

1£:66:20

§¢:6¥:00

80:81:81

SC:L0GL

¥2:.S01

Gi:ev:60
00:81:20
L:62:G0

§¢:sv:00

90:9€:00

LppGiee

BEGEI0C

L1'81:0¢

60:¥0:0¢

80:81:81

SE'10:G1

90:95:01

1€:66:20

Sliev60
§202/61/€0
00:8%:90
G20c/61/€0
0t:6¢:50
§202/61/€0
€2y¥:00
§20z/61/€0

90:9€°00
G202/64/€0

ov¥5-€C
§20¢/81/€0

92:v€:02
§202/81/€0

218102
G¢0c/81/€0

60:¥0:02
§20z/8l/e0
8€:L1:81
GzZ0c¢/8L/g0
10°:65:¥1
G20Z/81/€0
90:9G:01
G¢0c/8l/c0
1€:6G6:.0
S20¢/84/€0

G06
¥06

¥06

¥06

¥06

¥06

€06

€06

€06

€06

£06

S06

506

INNOW ‘IAV

66z Sicy IONIANILIANI LOS
3AY FONIANI4IAN
/ 40 LLONYY

JAVY AOOMIIONIT

I M LL AYMHODIH

1S Nivia

3/ AV ANOWWYH
TH

HOYNHD 'ay ATTIVA
SYILYUYD 6069

| HOYNHD 1S11dvg

ERVAVNEERD)
TANHYD INNOW ‘1S
NIVIN M OEL | NOINN
LIg3yDd NOZIMOH
JAWHYD INNON

‘M L1 AVMHOIH

20 | (M L1 AVMHOIH)
| S 6€ WIN

T3INHYD INNOW

‘1S NIVIA M 991

[ 13INEYD LW-NOINN
11g340 NYWLSY3
TIWHYD

ANNOW ‘1S NIVIN
M¥2S | awuvd

65 Siey  INNOW) S33advH
JINEYD INNOW

"d4a AT THSY €51
TINHYD LNNOW ‘Ha
6SZIONVEY  1STIHD ATFTIVA GEL
N1SIMT13 3/3AY

65¢ Slev
65C¢ Slev

652 3IONN

65¢ Slev

65¢ Slev

652 IDANEY

65C Slev

65 Od4NIEY

65C VIOtV JONIANIJIANE
M L} AVMHOIH

65¢ Sler /3IAV AOOMITONI
T1IH

HOYNHO ‘Qd AITIVA

6€5800-520¢2
$29800-5202

025800-5202

§16800-620C

¥15800-520¢C

¢16800-G20¢C

961800-G202

¢61800-G202

16¥800-G20¢
6.1800-5¢0¢C
L5¥800-620¢

811800-520C

,6£800-G202



00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

€l

¥SSl

Slivi

00:0
¥0:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

A

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

S:GlL

SlLivl

00:0

¥0:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0
000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

€00

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0
c0:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

810

0¢c:0

€0l
00:0

000

00:0

00:0

000
000

00:0

00:0

10:0

00:0

81:60'€C
620¢/02/€0
(XAVALAA
§20¢/0¢/€0
8l6lle
G¢02/02/c0
€688l
§20c/0¢/e0
ociovel
§202/02/€0

¥P:9€:60
6202/02/€0

¥1:65:%0
§202/02/c0
6l:ev¥0
Gc0c/0z/e0

LLELPO
§202/02/c0
A4 KAV
§202/02/€0

1e:i¥:10
§202/02/€0

0g:L¥:00
G20¢/0c/e0
o vCeT
§20z/61/€0

clogiie
Gcoz/elL/e0

81:60:€C

TAVArAA

8lL:6l:l¢c

£r6eBl

6l:9r:El

¥¥:9€:60

¥1:65:¥0

6levv0

L1:€Lp0

12:¢9:¢c0

LeiLviLo

0¢:1¥:00

S8 A YA

cloziie

§e:8vce
Li:1gee

02:60:le

8¢c:8v:ce

L1:60:ce

G0:4G6:02

Gy:01:81L

ShELElL vIElEl

£P1260

YLLS Y0

05:8¢:+0

XA N 40)

[48°1 &40

S1:6€:10

9:9€:00

€0:61°€C

L€lie

Y¥.Syieo

Ge:8vce

L}:S0:ce

G0:16:0¢

G018l

rLeLel

eV 1260

VLGP0

05:8€:¥0

b2 L0

(A8 A

S16€:10

91:9¢:00

€0:61:€C

Libelile

5e:8¥:22
§202/02/€0
65:70:22
§202/0Z/€0
$:05:02
§202/02/€0
Zri60:8)
§202/02/€0
pLELE)
§202/02/€0

ev:1¢:60
§20¢/0¢/€0

PL:LGP0
6202/02/€0
05:8€:¥0
§202/02/€0

124170
§¢02/02/€0
cyieyieo
§20¢/0¢/€0

Sii6€'L0
§20z/02/€0

91:9€:00
§20c/0¢/c0
c06iee
G20z/61/e0

PARA N ¥4
G20¢2/61/€0

$06
€06

€06

€06

006

506

¥06

Y06

Y06
Y06

¥06

¥06

$06

€06

TIWHYD LNNOW
652 10dey ‘IAV OIHO §10Z

FIWEYD LNNOW
652 1dNSEY ‘IAV OIHO 102

TINHYD INNOW 'S13

652 DLVEY 1INN N1 I4TOM 6EVL
TANHYS LNNOW
‘1S VOVHLI 206
TANUYD LNNOW
6G2)ONVEY  'IAV ANOWINYH 096
TANNYD LNNOW ‘a
AITIVA SYILYYD
Zr8s | 1S11dva
AINIANIJIaNI
SNYINING

TINEYD LINNOW
‘IAV AOOMAYH

90} | S1yvd

0LlNY AT1I3HO

3AY JONIANIJIANI
/M L AVAMHOIH
TINAYD

INNOW ‘1S NIVIN
mogz | 304nos
Lsyi4 sy3ating

N1 SIT13

8SZISNSEY M/ IAY ONOWNYH
TINHYD INNOW

‘M LE AVMHOIH

20€ | (M L} AVMHOIH)
| ¥S 65 WIN

TANYYO LNNOW ‘ad

ATTIVA SHA1LHVYO

Zv8s | 1S11dve
ANIANI4IANI

65 SlEP SNYWNT
18 SSIAUJAD / ANY
JONIANIJ3ANI
JANEYD

INNOW ‘LS NIVIN
Mgy | I3V
INNOW) HSYM

dvd gna v and
BE(}}=1 0]

6592 YVHeY

65C YOWEY

65¢ Slev

65 Slev

65C¢ SleEv

66C¢ Sliev

65¢ SlEv

66 Slev

£¥.800-6202

8€/800-520¢C

2£.800-920C

¥1.2800-G¢0C

$89800-520¢2

G99800-520¢

§59800-520C

¥59800-G¢02

£69800-6202

6¥9800-5202

0+9800-5202

9€£9800-520¢

1€9800-520¢

819800-520C



00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0
00:0

10-:01

00:0

00:0

00:0

S0:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

¥0:0

8r'e

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

G500

00:0

00:0

00:0

$0:0

g€

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000
000

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

000

il

00:0

00:0

00:0

€0:0

€1:6E

A4

00:0

00:0

00:0

916

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

§20z/ve/e0
¢sevibl
§20¢/ye/e0
2v:80:€C
Geoze/ee/e0
ge'eeiee
G20c/eT/E0
129561
§20¢/1e/e0

9cvy:9L
§202/1e/e0

66:05°€l
§c0¢/12/e0

Llesel
Gcoc/1e/e0
ezl
G¢0Z/12/co

6¢:80:€l
§20c/1e/eo

8ciivEl
§20¢/1e/e0
Skelill
G¢0c/1e/e0
ye:SeP0
Scoz/ie/eo

10:81:¢0
§¢0¢/12/€0

10:8v:1L0
§20¢2/12/€0

$0:21:00
G¢0c/1e/eo

yS:L18L

cserillL

p80:ee

G¢6¢'¢e

81:¥GGl

evieral

65:05°€l

Llesel

Ip6Zicl

6€:80:€1

L ANA)

Slicl:bL

YE:6EP0

00:81:20

10:8%:10

¥0:21:00

80:01:20 50:60:¢0

€7:90:91

£€7:90:91

6€:80:L1 ¥£80:11 ¥E8O:LL

¢ci80:ee

Sevlice

everiSl

ye'zsl

80:6¥'€l

G0'LvEl

8c:8l€l

0€:9G9:C1L

L:0cict

¢5:80° L1

21:90:¥0

£0:00°20

§¥:20°10

15°60:00

0g1e sl

0c'syet

2z:80:€C

gevlice

eviey:Sl

N YA

0z:syEl

So:vel

BC8L el

0c9s:Cl

L:oceh

2590 L1
21:90:%0

10:00:20

S¥:L0°10

£5:60:00

§20c/ve/e0
ye80:11
§20Z/ve/e0
2280:€C
§202/e2/€0
ge¢vlice
G¢0c/ee/e0
obiev:Gl
§20z/12/e0

AR A4t
§c0z/ie/e0

€eerel
§20z/1e/e0

SOyl
Gcoe/1e/en
828l €l
Gc0zg/ie/e0

0€:95:¢l
G¢02/12/e0

§§'0¢-¢l
Gcoz/iLe/co
2s:90: L1
Gc0z/ie/eo
21:90:¥0
§c0¢/Le/e0

£0:00:¢0
G20z/1e/e0

Sv:20:10
§202/12/e0

16'60:00
Gc0z/1e/e0

906

506

¥06

¥06

¥06

¥06

006

¥06
¥06

¥06

006

€06
Y06

¥06

¥06

Y06

AHOMOIH 710 9ty
TANEVYO LINNOW
65¢ WO  'IAV LNOWT34 901

662 YUVvHEY

662 SlEr ANV HINOA/ 1S W13

JAY GOOMITONI

65C¢ Slev M L1 AVMHOIH
JAY ANOWWWVH

65¢ Slev /M L AVMHOIH
T3NYYO

LNNOW ‘LS NIV
M #2s | (lanyvD
662 SLEr  LNNOW) S33aHVH

TIWVYD INNOW ‘Ha

652 diver LS3UD AITIVA LOL
TIH HOYNHD ‘ay

AITIVA SYILHYD

6S5¢ SLE¥ GzZ19 | LHVIN ATTIVA
3AV IONIANISIAANI
/°'9a SMVO NIA3S
TANYYD

INNOW 'LS SSTHJAD
LLE | HOMNHO

65¢ SIEP 1S11dvd IAOHD VO
RE[ %)
ANNOW ‘IAY
13IMONLINYN ¥06
TANHYD LNNOW
652 04SP YA 3QISMIAHD vhP
IAVY IONIANISIANI
/M LL AYMHOIH
TANYYO LNNOW

‘1S NIVIN M 991

[ 73NV LIN-NOINN
652iSNSEy  LId3¥D NYINLSVI
REE /)

ANNOW ‘1S NIVIN

M ogr | (Tanavo

1NNOW) HSYM

65 Slev

65¢ d40S.i¥

65¢ Slev

65Cc SlEv ¥v0 9na v any
ad W13 919/ ay
6G¢ Slev ATTIVA SH31HVYO

921600-G20C

880600-520¢

250600-G202

250600-5202

6£8800-520¢

¥£8800-520¢

£28800-6202

¢¢8800-5¢02

£18800-5202

118800-520¢

£08800-920C

/6/800-G20C
£6/800-620C

§6/800-G20¢C

€52800-G20¢

06/800-G20¢



00:0

00:0

[43

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00°0

00:0

00:0

000

oviey:t

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

£e'S

S19

90:¥

€6-:¢-

00:0

58l

95l

00:0

05:€

00:0

00:¢-

00:0

90:0

00:0

00:0

61:5¢

Gi:9

90:v

00:0

00:0

268l

962l

00:0

0s'€

00:0

00:0

00:0

90:0

00:0

00:0

9v:6¢

00:0

000

€51

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00

00:0

00:0

00:0

60:0

or

6S:1

€10

00:0

8€'0

yc:o

JA%4

60:0

Ge:0

1E61

00:0

00:0

00:0

€21¥L0
§20c/9e/e0

P20
§202/92/€0
8¢:¢v:L0
§¢0¢/9¢/€0
122l L0
§202/92/€0

£2°05:00
6¢02/92/€0

2s:ev-00
§202/92/€0
169602
§20z2/5e/c0
£5:60:81
§c0e/se/eo
LeHpriGL
§¢0z/se/e0
00:Li:el
G202/52/€0
££:97'60
§¢0¢/52/€0
§6:90:10
§20z/sereo

00:¥¢:10
§¢0¢/se/en

10:20:02
G202/ve/e0
VAZTA ]

§¢0c/ve/e0
108191

€C L0

1120

8¢:¢r:L0

86:8%:90

12:05:00

¢S:¢v:00

}§¥6:0C

€6:60-81

1ELYGL

oo:LLel

81:1€:60

¢0:05:€C

00:¥2°10

10:20:02

Se:2191

yG:6€eiL0

GG:L1:20
80:8¢:/0 €9'¥€'L0 S¥¥6:00 ¢l:6V:90

0€:G1:90 S1:60:90

0€:6%:00 ¥¢:S¥'00

62:0%:00 22200

06:9¢€:02

cl:00:8L 0c:i¥:Ll

00:v€:GlL ¥0'LCS|

¥evC:60 0260

ls:ovee

0v:05:€C 10-vl-€C ¥5:L0:CC ¥5:60:¢C

81:05:61

6v-L1:9L c¥Ll9l

S:6€:L0

§G:21:L0

9¢:61:90

61:60:90

¥2:6v:00

62:0¥:00
05:9€:02
0ciivill
y0:1C:Gl
6¢:6v:Cl
y¥:02:60

1G:0v'EC

$520°¢¢

81:95:61

gri 9l

$5:6€:20
G202/92/€0

oviLLL0
§202/92/€0
0¥:21:90
§20¢/92/€0
91:20:90
§20¢/9¢/c0

11:6¥:00
§202/92/e0

62:0%:00
6202/9¢2/€0
cL9e:0e
§20¢/52/€0
9G:0¥:L1
§¢0¢/52/0
L¥8l:GL
§20¢/S¢/e0
ocevcl
§20¢2/S2/€0
60:0260
§¢0¢/5c/e0
0c'le:ce
§202/v2/e0

[ AVEA4
G20¢/¥e/e0

81:9G:61
Sc0e/ve/e0
eviiLolL

§20¢/¥e/e0
¢0:50:91

G06

S06

adon

06

¥06

Y06

€06

€06

S06

adon

006
€06

¥06

€06

€06

65¢ Slcv

6SC ANrev

65T duley

6sc Idcv

65¢ SlE¥

65¢ Slev

6G¢ O4NIEY

65¢ ldev

65C 3IMUEY

65C 3R

65¢ Yd4ScL

65¢1a0DLy

65¢ SleEv

65 Sliev

652 YOWNEY

1S AOOMAI™ / IAY

JONIANILIANI
JINNYD

ANNOW ‘IAVY
3ONIANAJIANI 629
TINYVYD

INNOW ‘LS AVE ZLb
TINHYD LINNOW
‘JAV AONOWWVH ¥€01
TNV

INNOW ‘1S NIVIN

M p2s | aWdvD
INNOW) S33adVH
JEANHYD

INNOW 'LS NIV
MOzy | (Tanavo
INNOW) AYAENS
TIWEYD LNNOW

‘LS MOTIIM O1€
TAWHYD LNNOW

‘N1 MOAvIW 00w
HA IHOOHTHLNY

/ 1S aooma3y

JAY AOOMAVH

/M L AYMHOIH
TIWHYD LNNOW

"4 LANLSTIHD 8¥E
TIWHVYO LNNOW
‘SAV NOSY3I443r 202
TIH

HOYNHO ‘@d AITIVA
SYALHYD 6069

| HOYNHD 1Si1dvd
FIVANTIIND
TINHYD

INNOW ‘1S NIVIN

M 9sr | (TAnNVD
INNOW) HSVYM

HvD ana v any

IAY ANOWINYH

M 1L AVMHSIH
TINHYO LNNOW “H1D

862600-9202

§62600-5¢0C

88¢600-G202

482600-520¢

6/2600-5202

¥.2600-5¢02

152600-520C

§¥2600-520C

1£2¢600-G202

£02600-G¢0¢

181600-5¢202

191600-520¢

951600-520C

¥¥1600-5202

L21600-G¢02



00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

GeBlil

00:0

00:0

€0:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

9¢'¢

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

GO'L¥

€59

L6

00:0

44l

8E-¥)-

00:0

€0:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

9¢c

00:0

00:0

00:0
000

GO'Ly

€99

VA

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

cco

€€l

00:0

1€:0C

00:0

00:0

Le0

000

00:0

00:0
00:0

3314
120
¥c:0
00:0
00:0

000

4 200]

£§:9¢:¢C
§20¢/8¢/e0

ov:ve9l
G20¢2/8¢2/€0

£§:9¢:50
§20¢/8¢/e0

0e’Lev0
G202Z/82/€0
1¢:¥0:%0
§20¢e/8z/€0

rASAAAN]
G20z/82/e0
$€:9€:00
§c0¢2/8¢/c0
€¢:¢1:00
G¢02/82/€0
€0:60:00
§¢0¢/82/€0

yeev6l
§¢0¢/L2/c0
0z:iviLL
§20Z/.Le/e0
ovEl:Ll
§c0z/L2/e0
¥0:80:01
§c0c/Lz/e0
1G:GLIE0
§20c/Lz/en
952100
620c/Le/e0

SO:evict
§20z/9¢/e0

80:¥¢iee

ov:vE9L

26:9¢€'60

oc:Lep0

LCv0:¥0

ceice:io

¥£:9€:00

€2:21:00

€0:60:00

PEEV6L

0C:¥:L)

grelill

¥0:80:01

16:G1i€0

962100

So:€vet

0€:0}:¢2 L2:0l-ce

yP0e:91

6¢:6¢:60

8¥:Gl:¥0

9€:L1:€0 01:GY'€0

96:60:10
Lp:2e:00
£6:90:00

61:LE'€C

10:6¥:8L 962081
SZeyill Zeseill
8¢:80:LL 11’8591
81:GG:60
G1:26:20 85:1€:20 OF'8E:L0 20:6€:10

6¥:GE€C LT6V'ET

Lc0l:de

y:0e:91

62:52:50

81:G1¥0

0l:6¥:€0

95:60:10

L:2€:00

£6:90:00

6l:L€€C

96:20:81

(4581504

L¥:8G:91

816560

0¥:8e:L0

6¥:6e:€C

es6zet

9g6v:1¢
§202/82/c0

€629l
§20¢/8¢2/€0

6¢:6¢:60
G20z/82/€0

81:G1:10
6¢0z/82/e0
6EYi€0
§202/82/E0

96:°60:L0
§202/82/€0
L¥:2e:00
§¢0¢/8¢/E0
£6:90:00
§20¢c/82/e0
6l:LE€C
§20¢/Le/e0

625081
§20¢/.2/E0
LiigseiLl
§¢0¢/Le/e0
11:8G:91
§202/.2/€0
81:56'60
§20¢/22/€0
0¥:8¢€’L0
§202/.2/€0
6¥:G€:€C
§202/9¢/€0

Li:eg:zi

€06

€06

Y06

Y06

Y06

Y06

¥06

¥06
Y06

€06

906

906

S06

Y06

¥06

G20Z/92/€0 adoW

6S¢ VIOEY
652 10dEr
65¢ Slev
65¢ Slev
66¢ SIacy
65 SleEv
65¢ SlEv
65¢ Slev
66¢ Slev
6S¢ OdNIEY
65¢ dvEY
6SCMNNLLE
65¢ Slev
66¢ Slev
65¢ Slev
652 3THYEY

TUH

HOYNHOD ‘@Y AITIVA
SHILHYD 66¥S
TIWHYD

ANNOW 'Y 13dVHD
SAAOTTI 2641
TANYVYD LNNOW

‘1S NIVIN M 991

| 1INHVYD LIN-NOINN
11340 NYINLSY3
TIWHVYO LNNOW

‘1S NIVIN M 991

| TINEVYD LIN-NOINN
113340 NvINLSYa
TANHYD

LNNOW 'LS AvS 8€€
TH

HOYNHD 'aY AITTVA
SYALYVYD 6£09

| (ASTIVA SH3LYVYD)
SN1d vzzid

IAVY INOW139

/1S NIVIN M

JAV 2ONIANIAJIANI
I M L AYMHDIH
TAWHYD LNNOW

‘v LS HOWIg 9¢£2
TIWHYD

ANNOW 'a¥ 13dVYHD
SAAOTI 8¥LL
TAWHYD LNNOW ‘Ha
1S3 ATTIVA LOL
TAWHYD LNNOW

‘1S HOHIg 091

IAV AOOMITONI
/1S NIVIN MA

AV JONIANIJIANI
/ QY YIOHVENYHL
N7 NIMOVHIOW

/ 1S aooma3d

JAY AOOMITON3
/M LL AVMHOIH

859600-G¢0¢

519600-520¢

6¥5600-G202

¥¥5600-G202

€15600-5¢0Z

0¥5600-5202

6£5600-5¢0T

8£6600-5202

G€G600-5¢02

005600-5202

861600-G20¢C

¥6+¥600-G20C

¢P600-5202

0£¥600-5202

L2¥600-520¢2

¥2€600-6202



00:0

00:0

00:0

610

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

LSl

50:2 e 9¢:0 82:7 9z:2 10:2
(W (W)
les|pjzenlly () zeaulyydsia () Zoauiye (W) yeealy (W) sAlIy/dsiQ  @ANUy/eInoIug
auwl] abelany aw] abeiaay awl] ebeiaAy aw] abeltaay aw) aberoay awlj aberoay
S0 LY 00:0 op:62 00:0 £ -1 00:0 ¥ri6v:8 Se:2:9
() eALydsia N) eAly/dsia (W) Ju3rdsiq (w) uadsia (W) dsia/s4o (W) dsia/sdo () Zaauly () anLy
awil xel awil ulN awll xep swii uin awi| xely awil uny /dsigawny |ejol /dsiq awi) [€YOL
6Z:6£:02 €1:28:02
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 6202/1€/€0 S2:6£:0T £1:28:02 €h:zei0z 602/ LE/E0 €06 6S¢ Slev
L0881 9c:0¥:81
el 1€ 000 G0l 6Z0zZ/LE/E0  L0:8¥i8L ZLEy:8L LLvi8L L8l GZ02/1E/S0 €06 BSCINNLLG
¥1:65:€1 zseviel
Q0:0 90:0 00:0 00:0 GZOZ/LE/E0 SP8SEl 8G:6%:€l 2G6VCL ZS6YEL G202/1€/€0 006 6S¢ 10dEr
8L:9%:01 19:%¥:80
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 GZOZ/LE/C0 8L:9V:I0L 9L'SH80 €LiGY:80 LS¥¥:80 LS¥¥80 6zZ02/1€/20 G06 6ST AXSEY
10:55:10 00:2€:10
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 620Z/1€/€0  L0:GS:L0 00:2€:10 00:2€:10 G202/LE/E0 06 6 Slev
8¥:¥0:10 201010
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 GZ0Z/1E/€0  8¥10:LO 2011010 20'10'10 GZ0zZ/1E/€0 ¥06 6GC SlEV
9%:65:00 9€:€5:00
00:0 00:0 00:0 00:0 GZ0Z/LE/€0 9Y:65:00 9¢:€5:00 9¢:€5:00 G202/1€/€0 906 6GC)INVEY
80:25:00 Lyipbi00
AR 00:0 210 00:0 GZ0Z/LE/E0  80:ZS:00 Ly'#y00 B6G:¥Y00 Lbivb:00 GZ0Z/LE/E0 06 652 Slev
6¥:2£:00 Zlezee
00:0 000 00:0 rA AN GZ02/62/€0  20:50:00 yZovee v2iopiee 6Z02/82/£0 €06 6SZWSIAEY

€20 44"

W) (W) dsiassdo

ajnosugydsiq  aswi) abelaay
aw] abelaay

81:20:1 0c-62:v

() snosuz (W) dsia

/dsiq awy |ejo) /S40 awiy |ejo)
SPIOJDY (BeJo)
T3INEYD LINNOW
‘1S NIVIN M ZEY
TINHYD LNNOW
"da NOANV1 ZEL
JIWHYD
AINNOW ‘LS Avd 228
TANYYD
INNOW ‘LS N3 £¥5
IAV ANOWINYH / O
J3dVHD SAAOT
ad
HIOUVANYHL / IAVY
JONIANI4IANI
1S LNNTVYM / 3AY
JON3IANI4IANI
JINWHYD
ANNOW '3AVY
JONIANIJIANI 065
| LSIAOHLAW A3 LINN
TIWHVYD LINNOW

T1ANEVO INNOW
‘13 N34SV 00}

196600-5202

9¥6600-5¢0C

226600-6202

988600-5¢0¢

0.8600-920C

£98600-520C

998600-520¢

§98600-G¢0¢

019600-5¢0¢



Hawkins County ECD

2291 E MAIN ST ROGERSVILLE , TN 37857

HCSO AcTIUTY (0O moudT
CARME L.

CFS By ESN Type Department Summary Report

259 PR=TALS
Call Type

911 UNKNOWN

ANIMAL COMPLAINT
BURGLARY-DELAYED
CARDIAC ARREST

CHILD CUSTODY PROBLEM
CITIZEN ASSIST
DISTURBANCE
DISTURBANCE W/WEAPON
DOMESTIC DISTURBANCE
ESCORT

FOLLOW UP
HARASSMENT

JUVENILE INCIDENT

LE ALARM-COMMERCIAL
LE ALARM-RESIDENTIAL
LE INFORMATION

LE MUTUAL AID
MOTORIST ASSIST
MVC-ENTRP/EJEC
MVC-NO INJURIES
PATROL/PREMISE CHECK
PURSUIT

RECKLESS DRIVER
ROADWAY HAZARD
SEIZURES

SHOOTING INCIDENT
STOLEN VEHICLE
SUSPICIOUS ACTIVITY
TRAFFIC STOP
TRESPASSING
UNCONSCIOUS
UNKNOWN LE PROBLEM
VANDALISM

WARRANT SERVICE
WELFARE CHECK

Dept Sub Total

ESN Sub Total

03/01/2025 - 03/31/2025

Count

AN a2 A

A A o o a a  a N DWW -aAaNNN-A

o Y| (Y - N RY N

N

100
100



00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
cvisa

LS

—

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0
dyjug

eI 543

00:0

00:0

0Sey

9041

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

S¥€

00:0

(AT

144

00:0

Ge8l

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

6L

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

80}

L£0

250

6S:¢

1€0

¥i:0

00:0

43y

00:0

0c'L

€0

€e:0

420

00:0

810

dy/sq u3/saq sa/sdd

Syievee
6202/€0/€0
12:10:60
§20c/c0/€0

0¢c:60:¢¢
§¢02/20/€0

€Cer8l
§¢0c/20/e0

LE0vpL
§20¢/20/e0
16510
§¢0¢/z0/0

o8 4 AT
§202/20/e0

8€:80:10
§20¢/20/€0

] X ATAA
620z/10/e0

01:8G:81
Gc0¢c/1.0/e0

9¢:.0¢}
§20Z/10/€0
SS vl
620¢/10/€0

61:6EL1
S202/10/€0

Ly:L0tLL
§20¢/10/€0
01:8¥:80
6202/10/c0

paso|) §40

NS3 Ag dnous) joays peaids swij ssuodsay OS ALNNOD SNIMIMVYH

2L g
SORANY — OSDT

Syeved

1¢:10:60

0€:60:2¢c

€Cer8l

LE0VYL

L¥:65:L0

910

8¢:80:10

8l:l¢ce

6€'8G:81

9e:L0:Cl

SSviLL

61:GE L1

Lyi20:LL

01:8%:80
1ea|n

GZ:0e'ee

0c:oe:8l

20:02°v1

61:0t:10

10:¥0:¢C

£v:60:81 £9:20:C}

05:se:b i

et

91:¢0 L1

ceLY80
(4 s 1y

10:61:€e

60:91:€C §202/€0/€0
65:85:80

9€:65:80 §202/€0/€0
0§:.€1C

Ly8Ei\Z §202/20/€0
(S35 2VA

0€:2S: /1 §20¢e/co/e0
0€:20'v1

10:€0'Pi 6202/20/€0
65:65:20

£1:99:20 6202/20/€0
61:0¥:10

61:0¥:10 §20¢2/c0/e0
96:00:10

22:20°L0 80:10:40 §20¢/20/e0
({0l {0t

10:¥0:2¢2 §20Z/10/E0
81¥.20:Cl

80:%¥0:2) §20¢/10/€0
e 10:¢l

G Loel G§20¢/10/e0
gyeeill

gliegiiL §20e/10/€0
Sl bbb

8G:LLLL §202/10/€0
912011

91:20:L1 §¢0¢2/10/€0
6€'8¢:80

1G:8¢2:80 S§202/10/€0
uz SA P8AIRISY S4D

9ee

1433

A4

FA4

ve

oee

VA2

oEe

Lve

[44%

oce

oce

ve

cve

t42%
Hun

JANEVO LNNOW

6SZ)ONVEY "INV AOOMAY 9LE
TANYYO LNNOW

6GC WIveEr ‘1S QOOMQIM €2
BE!) 1=} 40]

INNON 'IAY

65¢7vHYer JONIANILIANI €28
TIH
HOYNHO 'a¥ ATTIVA

B8SZ YOMEY SHILHVYD €649
TANHYOD

INNOW ‘€1 LINN

652 d¥icy IAY ANOWINVYH €28
TINEYD LNNOW

652 dIveER "4ad NOANV1 0%l
TAWHYD LNNOW

‘M L} AYMHOIH

20 | (M L1 AVMHDIH)

662 SLEP L ¥S 6 NN
TAWHYD LNNOW

‘M LL AVMHDIH

20€ | (M L1 AYMHSIH)

65C UNNLY } ¥S 65 NN
ay

ATTIVA SYI LUV

652 Sleb /N1 34710M
ANV

INNOW '3AY

65¢.OHSEY IONIANILIAANI 529
e )

ANNOW '3Av

652 MNN31  3IDONIAN3LIAANI 529
1ANEYD LNNOW

652 I1SNSEPY ‘1S 30NYdS 90€

TINYYO LINNOW
652)ONVEY ‘1S ¥V1dOd Zvv
ad

ATTIVA SYILHYD

69C SLEP /" N3 919
I3WHVYD LNNOW

6S¢ HIvey 'IAY ONOWWWYH 60€

Ns3 adA] |[eD uonesoT

1G8.€ N1 ‘ ITTASHIODON LS NIVIN 3 1622
aon3 Qjuno) sunimey

869900-520¢C

}£5900-5202

2¥5900-520¢

§2¢G900-G¢02

80%900-520C

48%900-620T

9.¥900-620C

¢.$900-G202

€91900-620¢2

Z0¥900-5202

10¥900-5202

46€900-520C

£6€£900-520C

16€900-G20¢

28£900-5202

#840
6G¢

(@3N’ MOT'HDIH) NI Aoud



00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

LE20C

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

000

00:0

00:0

000

90:G}

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

000

816

TAVA S

6¢:ve

00:0

¥0:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

€e6

00:0

00:0

0L:0e

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

€l

9e0

¥0:0

00:0

00:0

YA RYA

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

Gyl

8v:0

oLl

€0

00:0

10:0

60:0

$0:0

1278

10:0

0

€€0

00:0

o

800

000

00:0

00:0

50:9¢:20
G202/80/c0
9€'€020
G¢0¢/80/€0
0v:62:¢C
6202/L0/€0
0S'6¥:81
6202/.0/€0

0Lzo€l
§¢0¢2/,0/€0
0s:/¢:L )
§20Z/.0/€0

I'€6:60
5202/L0/€0
0L:v0:12
§202/90/€0
GZ:25:6)
§202/90/£0
1G:8€81
202/90/€0

ovigvel
§20¢/90/€0

€0'vlivl
§¢0z/90/€0

61:10:€C
620¢/¥0/€0
€€:00:l¢
§¢0¢/v0/€0

L0:2E61
§20¢/v0/€0
81:00:61
§202/¥0/€0
L0111
§202/v0/€0
650Vl
G202/v0/e0

0z:62:0l
S¢02¢/v0/c0

8¢:ce0lL
§202/v0/20

60:9¢2:20
9€:€0:20
ov:62:ce

056181

10:20€l

6€:2€L1

LP'€6:60

04:¥0:1.C

G2:.G:61

15:8€:81

opeyel

£0:vlivl

64:10:€C

91:00°1¢

10:CE61

81:00:61

10:16:G1

SeYSvl

80°6¢-01

61:2¢:0l

yl:ocel 60:ceclh

VXA TATAY]

9¢:00-20

22:¥2ze 91'60:2¢

Ze6v8lL

gelell

06:9%:60

8L¥T:8L

aecisyiee

Gepe0e

80:6€:G}
2810 44

vi:p2ol

90:G1:01

12:52:20

80:15°10

65:90:2¢

€9:v2:8l

L1:6GCl

LEILENLY

05:9t:60

1211602

ol:o¥:8lL

S1:81:81

L8111

VAN

cl:geiee

Gepe0e

8l:ev8l

€6:92:L1

80:6€S1

ocvevl

8€€Z:0l

co:§L01

YRATATAY)
§202/80/€0
€C6¥:10
§202/80/€0
}1:90:¢2
§20¢2/L0/€0
L0€l8l
§202/L0/€0

vizsel
§202/20/€0
LEHE L
§¢02/20/20

67:9%:60
§202/.0/€0
Z1:16:02
§202/90/€0
90:0v:81
SZ0Z/90/€0
L1818l
$20Z/90/€0

9c8L L1
§202/90/€0

WaLiLl
G¢0¢/90/€0

6€:v¢:Zc
§202/v0/€0
G¢pe0C
§20c/y0/€0

9c:ev'8l
§G20c/¥0/e0
LE:6€L)
G20c/¥0/€0
00:6€:G4
§20z/v0/e0
0cvevi
G202/¥0/c0

8¢:eC0l
G20Z/v0/e0

¢0:6L:01
§20¢/v0/€0

£ee

32

134

345

8.¢
8.¢

€L€

(44

[42%

ave

145>

vie

ve

cve

OSOH

Vi€

vie

6€¢e

€L€

ove

6GC Siev

6GCINNL LG
6SZANNL L6

6GC)YONVEY

65¢ 10der

65¢ ASMEY

652 ASMEY
659¢ 104e¥
652 T04EY

6SC ALSEY

65 NTTEY

g
652 ddocy

6SC O1lvey

65C Sliev

6SZ 3TIMEY
6G¢ OdNIEY

65¢ ASMEY

69¢ ASMEY

69¢ ASMEY

69¢ 104eY

ANV QOOMAWM

90! | siMvd

OLNV AT11340
TANEYD INNOW

‘1S MIINGNYYO 201
TANEYO LNNOW
‘3AV LNOWI3S 2
TANEVYO LINNON

‘1S AYYIHO 202
TIH

HOYNHO ‘G ATTIVA
S¥3ILAIVD 9519
TANYVYO LINNOW

'1S 30NYdS LiE
T1IH HOYNHD

‘15 107 @Y ATTIVA

SYILYVO €529
TINYYD INNOW

‘1S NIVIN M\ $ES
IINHYD LNNOW

‘1S NIVIA M ¥€S
TINEYD INNOW

‘1S NIVIN M\ PES
RE[IEV %)

ANNOW ‘90VLINA

N1 3470M ovrl
13FNHYD

INNOW '3AY
ION3IANIJIANI 529
T3INEYD LINNOW

‘IS NIVIN 3 212

| AW VYD LNNOW)
B2 ENERR AR S
1S aoomaay

/ N NIMNOVHOON
TIIH

HOYNHD 'a¥ ATTIVA
SHALYVD 6069

| HOMNHD 1SILldvg
JIVANIIUD
TINHVYD LINNOW

‘1S ¥vQ3D 82s
TINHVYD LNNOW ‘20
107 N I410M Ol
TINEYD INNOW

"Ud IIMOHIHD 2€5

TANEYD INNOW
‘IAV ¥IA0Q 122
T3INHEVYO

INNOW ‘GY AITIVA
SHALHVYD 85PS

192200-520¢

$92.00-G¢0C
€5¢.00-620¢

1¢¢100-5¢0C

211200-6202
191/00-520¢

0S1.,00-5¢0C

901£00-G¢0C

060.200-5202

680.00-G202

6€0.00-920C

¥£0.00-G20¢

918900-520¢

608900-5202

¥6.900-5202

282900-5¢0¢

€.2900-6202

$9/900-G20C

¥2.900-9202

£2¢/900-520¢



00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00-0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

000

00:0

00:0

00:¥74

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

€6-:§-

00:0 00:0
€69l €5¢
cey 000
90:¥Z 00:0
00:0 00:0
00:0 00:0
00:0 00:0
00:0 00:0
90:0 00:0
80:0 00:0
00:0 00:0
00:0 00:0
00:0 00:0
00:0 00:0
00:0 00:0
S0:0 00:0
95'8 00:0
00:0 00:0
6€:9 00:0
00:0 000
60:6 cO0¥l

1€:0

LPiL

12°K4

901

20

0s'L

150

St

000

00:0

csc

vee

00:0

00:0

Sy

00:0

6¢:81

00:0

0¢c:0

9v:0

AR

§202/S1/e0
oriGLiEL
§c0ze/S1h/e0
¢1:61:80
§202/S1/€0
0¢°6¢:¢e
G20Z/vi/E0
6v:26:L0
AV AT
11:6S1¢C
§20z/EeL/e0
Lpi0c:8l
G20zZ/cL/ED

cePpePl
G20zZ/EL/ED

90:€5°¢l
§c0c/el/e0
91:80:01
Scoz/el/e0
G0:L¥:€0
§c0c/eL/e0
6%:20:10
§20¢/el/E0
ELRA R
§20¢/cLi/e0
0c:clee
G20z/LL/e0
60:¥C€C
G202/0L/E0
8G:¥G:91
§20¢/01/€0

6Lvl:L0
§20c/01/€0

1£:8¢°€0
6202/60/€0

205100
§¢0c/60/€0
£€:€1:00
G202/60/€0

65:10:0¢
620¢2/80/€0

90:vCvL

orslLet

¢1:61'80

8l6¢:¢c

6v:25:L0

G0:96°Le

yeLeil)

veeE bl

6c:es el
2080:01
G0 I1:€0

60:81:00

9giclcl

0czlee

60:¥ceC

169591

61¥1:L0

L£:82:€0

£0:G1:00

£e:€1:00

65:10:0¢

62'€0:Cl 62C:6¥:L1
8¢:€0-80

vi:0¢:ce

ye6eel

¥£:10:01

62:90°€l

0§:80:2¢2

01:€S:91

91:,€:90

GC:GC:E0

96:80:00

yyi6li6l Leve6l

ghievl

ocioriLl

96:85:20

80:96:1¢

05:€€:20

gl:vviie

8G'veLl

Ge6lvl

8C6EEl

92:10:01

£eeeeo

12:91:00

62:90°€!

04:80:¢C

90:80:€¢

GE'€G:91

0¢:8¢:90

§2'G2'€0

11:¢0'00

£6:.9:€C

Ge:0L:6)

§20¢/S1/E0
SevpiLl
G20e/Sheo
¢0:95:20
§202/S1L/E0
20:8S°L¢
G20z/viieo
€2°€€/0
G2oe/v1ico
STATA T4
GZ0cC/EH/ED
L09ELL
G20e/EL/e0

0z:covt
G20e/elL/e0

8¢:6¢°€l
G20c/e4/e0
92:10:01
§20z/EL/e0
1¥:02:€0
§c0e/el/e0
LG€1:00
§20¢/EL/E0
6¢:90:cl
§¢0c/cl/e0
05:80:¢2
GeozZ/i L/eo
12:90°¢¢
§202/01L/€0
GE'€G:91
§202/01/€0

}G'60:90
§¢0c/0L/€0

A A
§202/60/€0

2¥:10:00
S¢02/60/€0
L0:.G:€C
G¢02/80/€0

810161
§20Z/80/€0

62¢

15245

Lre

yee

347
12%

9ee

SE€

19¢

€L€

eve

eve

€LE

143

£ee
8¢ce

8c¢

44

€€e

345

1ve

65CMNNL L6

65Z Slaey

6SC JZS.l¥y

65C dveEY

6SZ IDAINEY
65C MOMEY

69C ANrey

659C ALSEY

65C ASMEY

65C ASMEY

652 1SNSEY

6521a0JLy

65¢ ASMEY

6SC HNdEy

65¢ Tldevy

66Z YOWNEY

65C Sley

65¢ ISnsey

65C OIvEY

65¢4SNSEY

66¢ NALSEV

"LISNIVW M ¥L L
T3INEYD

AINNOW ‘LS AvE 6Z¢
TINHYD INNOW
‘1S °HYa3ad /€5
TIWEYD LNNOW
‘1S 30NNdS LIE
3AY INOWIFS

/ 1S AYY3HO
TANHYD INNOW
'SAVY NOSH3I443r 202
TINEYD LNNOW
‘1S MIIAANVYYED 01
TH

HOHNHD ‘S LINN
ad W13 o1g 0zt
TIIH HOYNHD

'6 1017 a4 AITIVA
SUILAVYD 2v.L9
J3NEYD LNNOW
‘LS NIVIN M 8€S
TINEYD LNNOW
‘1S ¥vQ3D 208
TINHYD EINNOW
‘JAV ¥3A0Q 912

JIWEVYO LNNOW ‘I8
107 N7 3410M 0¥ L
AV IONIANI4IANI
1 dID AHOMOIH Q10
TANHYO LNNON

‘1S MOOTNIH 9€L
IAY FONIANIJIGNI
/ M LE AVAMHOIH
TINEYD

AINNOW ‘LS NIV
M 901 | 13WHYD
LNNOW Z3diMs
TANWYYD LNNOW
‘ISNIVN I 212

| (F3INEYD LNNOW)
IVHIANID ¥vI10d
TINYYD LNNOW
‘LISNIYW 3 212

| (IINEYD LNNOW)
IvHINTO ¥v110d
I3NEVD LNNOW
‘1S ATIOH G2¥
TANHYD LNNOW
‘IS NIVIN M O}

[ T3NEVYD INNOW
40 dn9 AdIva
TINHVYD INNOW

¢01800-5¢0c

980800-6202

§/0800-520¢

8¥0800-5202

1£6200-9202

¥16.00-620C

9.8.00-G¢0C

8¥8.00-520C

1#8.00-G20C

918.00-520¢

¥6..00-G20C

98.200-5¢0C

¢1..00-6¢0C

€69200-620¢

§€6.00-620C

68v.00-520C

¢€YL00-520C

06€.00-920¢

S¥€200-620C

¥¥€£200-620C

91€/00-520¢



00:0

00:0

000

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

000

criie

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

L2°1€

00:0

5144

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

800

00:0

00:0

00:0

§2:8¢

8¥'8¢:1

LLEE

cl8
0s:€l
061

000

920

§0:0

00:0

00:0

¥0:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

859

00:0

8¢:8¢

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

6¥:8¢

[4%0

00:0

00:0

c0:L

€20

910

beil

L0

€¢:0

00:1

80:¢)

00:0

0S4

LP0

L0

¢0:0

9¢:0

GG:9T:€C
§c02/ee/e0
8v-v6:Gl
6202/ce/0
Ligl€l
§20¢/EC/E0
yZovel
Gc0z/ce/e0

6¥:6£:21
§202/ETIE0
£1:00:Z)
520Z/ET/E0
8€:€TZ1
§20Z/€2/E0
Z7:60:60
§Z0Z/EZ/E0

£1:06:01
§20¢/ce/c0
cshlol
G¢0c/ee/e0
02:.Sv1
§z0z/ee/e0
clesel
§202/2e/e0

9e 9l
620¢c/1¢/€0

eriev:L0
Gc0z/1e/eo

£r:6€81
§¢0c/0c/e0

oL:pZvl
§202/02/€0
80:80:¥0
§20¢/61/20

8¢S el
§20c/L1L/e0
Sov-le
§202/S1/€0
6C:€1:Gl
§20e/S1/e0
90 vEWL

GG:92'€C

8y:pSGlL

k8Lt

veoviel

8v:6€:Cl

£1:00:CL

8g:€C:clL

¢1:60:60

1£:05:9)
criLiiol
0lL:LSpL

clLasel

S0:iv:GL

peier:L0

L1:2L:8l

LEET YL

L2¥2C0

L TATAR S

[AVR*I 2274

62:€l:Gl

£0:62:€¢

8€:CE:G|

60:¥¥Cl

80:2€:CL

SLsyiLl

clielch

8%:€0:60

€1:06'91 20:Ly9l £¥i9L:0l
9€:60:9¢

C0:6EVL

1G8S:¥l

ol'1€'0

80:6t:00

SZiiyiEl

8:clibl

65:85:80

£0-6eec

oceest

0G°LLEL

60:¥v:Cl

BO:CECL

0G:90:L 1

vci1G6:01

1£:0€:80

1€:82:91
o:6GGL
(4412 4"

ol:geel

G285yl

b1:1e:20

cellgl

8g:ccvl

¥0:5%:00

S¢iLvEl

pyievile

cl2zo:st

€0'6¢eC
G20c/ee/e0
LPiv0:GL
§20¢/ee/e0
8lilLel
§¢0¢/ee/e0
60:v¥:Cl
§202/€2/€0

80:2€:ZL
§202/€2/€0
8¥:65:01
§202/€2/€0
L0:1G0L
§202/€2/€0
S1:0£:80
§202/€2/E0

0l:Lg9L
Gcoe/ec/eo
S:€6:Gl
§20¢/2e/e0
6S:8Lv1
§¢0¢/ce/e0
9l:LEE)
§20e/2e/e0

FAR 441
§20c/12/e0

bLiLeL0
G20c/12/€0

cy60:81
$20¢/0¢/e0

A aYA4"
§20¢/02/€0
€C:v¥:00
§20¢/61/€0

£€2ivEl
§20e/L1/E0
8lievile
§20c/S1/E0
65:00:G1
S202/S1HEQ
Ly0cvL

oce

8¢¢

yee

12%%

4%%

14°1%

8¢ce

pee

€5¢

OSOH

€5€

124

£6¢

€5€

£ee

oce

£ee

Lve

yee

34

LNNOW ‘10 LINN

69¢ SlEy 3IAV ANOWNVYH €28
13NAEVO

652 Slasy LNNOW ‘LS MVO /22

TANEYO LNNOW
65C 0S3¢F  'IAV LNOIW13g 90}

3AVY ANOWINYH

I M VL AVMHDIH
TFIWHEYD

INNOW ‘LS NIY
M +02Z | TYLIdSOH
65z SLEF 13d 1FNNYD INNOW
JANHYD INNOW
LS VOVHLI €16
TANHYD INNOW
6GZINVASY dQ 3AISMIIYD 90v
RE[}}E\ e}

662 0S3Icy LNNOW ‘LS MVO /22

1INV
INNOW 'a¥ T2dVHD

SAAOT1 coCt

a4 SSOYD AVM / QY
652 3HUEY ATTIVA SH3LHVD

65 Slev

64¢ IOty

6G9¢ SIgcy

TANEYO INNOW

649¢ 104dEr dd ATTHSY €51
13ANHYD INNOW

662 O-NIEY 4A AITHSY €51
TINEVYO

ANNOW ‘1S NIVIN

M ¥2s | lawdvo

662 Sl1S¥  LINNOW) S33aHVH
BE V)

LINNOW ‘@Y ATTTIVA
SHIALMYD €€

TANEVYO INNOIW
‘LS VOVHLI 206
TIH

HOYNHO 'ay AITTVA
SHIALYVYD 6209

| (AQTIVA SHALYYD)
SNd vZzid

1S NIV

65¢ JIONN I/ 3IAVY ANOWNYH
TINHVYD INNOW

‘1S NIVIN M 991

| IFNHVYD LIN-NOINN

65C Sle¥ 11a340 NVINLSY3
TANWHEYI LINNOW

‘1S dvQ@3ad zzs
TINHVYO INNOW “HID
662 ¥VYHEY INO0YFHTIHS S $06
TAWHYO INNOW

65¢ Slev

6G¢ YVHEY

659¢ O1vey

65C4NNL L6

650600-G20C

810600-G520¢
¥00600-5202

200600-5¢02

100600-520¢C

966800-5202

£66800-G¢0C

986800-520¢

1€6800-5¢0¢

926800-5¢02

816800-520¢

G16800-6202

$£8800-G¢0¢

192800-520¢

¥1.800-5¢0Z

¥68800-G¢02

§16800-520C

£¢€800-620¢

8¥1800-G20¢C

§01800-5¢0Z



00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

GGEl

00:0
00:0

00:0

€e8
00:0

1c:L

¥0:0

80:0

00:0

G0:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0
00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

00:0

£¥:0

00:0
$S:0

00:0

G20
00:0

6¥:0

00:0

00:0

61€

00:0

10:0
.80

00:0

000

8y:0

00:0

000

10:0

G202/82/€0
02:65:0C
G20z/82/€0
96:G1:90
620z/82/€0

clLilei0e
6202/.2/€0

304 R4%
§20¢/.2/€0
1,98C:Cl
§20¢/Le/e0
16'G1:€0
§20z/.2/e0

1€6e91
§20z/9¢/c0
Lyveol
§20¢/92/€0

GhviolL
§202/92/€0

€0:80:¥1
§202/9¢2/0
(A8 4%
§20¢/9¢/€0
S0:evcl
G202/9¢2/€0

22:06:00
§20¢/9¢/€0

80:6€:00
§202/92/€0
Z1679)
$Z07/SZ/E0
YPiZ0pL
6202/52/€0
Lepeel
§202/S2/€0

€0:60:00
§c0z/ve/e0

1§5:9¢:¢C

0¢:65:0C

96:61:90

cl:.ei0e

g€eies vl
15821

96:2€'20

y2:ge9l

9eveel

FAYS 45218

£5:20'71

[4a%4"

G0:epCl

12:05:00

80:6£00

cli6v9lL

yrizovt

Leyeel

€0:50:00

yev0ice

L2'15:0¢

€ziL1:0¢

L0V 01
A H Al

06:9v:10

6€'6C:91

€ei6Lt9l

or:covl

TR

L1:6¥:00

1¥:S€:00

£€e8sel

38842

9g:96'eC

6€:0G:1¢

12:19:0¢C

L$:01:80

€¢:L1:0C

viieevt
Al 24

6¢:6¢:10

GE'6C:91

G2:61191

yeov:GlL

geeovl

6C:L9€L

BY:62:Cl

L1:6¥:00

L¥:6€:00

00:8¢:91

€C86°¢l

LyGeel

9¢:96:€e

§202/82/€0
12°16:0¢
§20e/82/c0
£6'60:90
§202/3¢/€0

€ciLl0e
Gc0c/Le/e0

6¥:LEWL
Ge0e/Le/e0
T A
G20e/LZ/e0
0%8€:10
S202/L2/E0

G€'6C91
§202/92/¢0
GZ:61:91
§20¢/92/€0

GO:LE:S)
§202/92/€0

GEEOP)
G20Z/92/E0
rAVARAY
SZ0e/92¢/E0
LL:62:ch
§202/92/€0

L1:6¥:00
§¢0¢/9¢/€0

L¥:G€:00
§202/9¢/€0
clLile9l
§20z/5¢2/€0
£¢:85:€!
§20¢/Sc/e0
LriGziel
G¢0¢/Sc/e0

GE:96'€C
G20z/ee/e0

oee

88¢
0ce

vic

€ee

L€

bee

1A

€Le

8.¢€

1A

LLE

OSOH

vee

yee

OSOH

1A

€€

8ve

6S¢ VIOEY

66C Slev

65CANNL L6

66 Slev

652 sIacy

6S¢ ASMEY

65C SleEv

6GZ ASMEY

65C ASMEY

65¢ 104ey

65¢ ASMEY

65C ASMeY
652 3THAEY

65 Slev

65C¢ Slev

65C 3HEY

652 ASMEY

65¢ Slev

65C Slev

SHALYYD 6645
AAY ANOWWNYH

I M L AVMHODIH
TINWHYD

ANNOW ‘LS Ava 2z¢
TINAYD LNNOW
‘AAY AOOMAYH

901 | S1yvd

OLNY AT1IAHO

TH

HOYNHD ‘QY A3TIVA
SYALYVYD £€46
TAWHYD LNNOW ‘Ha
18340 AITIVA 891
IAY IONIANIJIANI
/ QY YIOUVANYHL
REE\%e]

ANNOW 'L1 LINN
IAV AONOWWYH €28
1INHYD

INNOW ‘LS 3NId 8€€
RE[1E1%e)

LINNOW ‘L1 LINN
AAY ANOWIWYH €28
RE[ L)

ANNOW ‘Lt LINN
IAVY AONOWINYH €28
TINHYD LNNOW
‘JAY H3A0Q 122
IAY AOOMITONT

I M LL AVMHSIH
TANHYD

LNNOW 'LS NIVIA
Mp2s | anEvYD
ANNOW) S33aYVvH
TNV

ANNOW ‘1S NIVIN
Mmosr | lanuvo
INNOIN) HSVYM

dvD ana v any
3AY AOOMAYM

/ M 1L AYMHODH

E(}=)40]

INNOW ‘LS 3ANI 8€€
dd LLONYY / 3AY
JONIANI4IANI

Qd A3TIVA
SHILHVD / IAVY
JONIANIJIANI
TANEYD

859600-520¢

§¥9600-520¢C

895600-5202

916600-520C

9.¥600-G20C

651600-520C

0£¥600-5¢0C

69€600-5¢02

89€£600-G20C

65€600-9¢0C

6£€600-5¢0C

8€£600-G20C

¥2€600-5202

G/¢600-520¢

£.¢600-6¢0¢

0¥2600-520C

¥12600-5202

112600-G20C

190600-5202



00:0

00:0

000

00:0

00:0

00:0

000

00:0

€0

(W)
Jed|D/ZaAIY
aw], obesany

(N) Zaaway/dsia (W) ZaAlIY YR
ow) abelaay

81:82:1 00:0 82:82
() aamydsig N) aalaydsia (W) Juzydsia
auH) Xep awi] Uy swi] xep
71i6G:EL
#0:0 000 00:0 GZ0Z/IE/E0  €5:95EL
94:10:80
90:2ZL 00:0 8Z:0 GZOZ/0S/E0 9111080
GS:5E:80
€8 000 PLil GZ0Z/6T/E0  SS6'GE:80
6v:2:00
6L 000 £0:l 6zZ0zZ/6T/c0 6¥12Ei00
459222

9zt Le:0

9gi6vEl

81:0€:40

0%:ZE80

cleyee

awy) sBeieay
00:0 6v:82

(W) uzdsia  (w) dsigisdo
awi] WN sw)L xew

St

(W) yoenY
auwl] abesoAy

00:0
(W) dsia/sd0

€S6vEl

¢h:8L:40

G280

§l:oeee

LS 9¢:0
(w)
(IN) sauydsig  eAlUY/eINOIUT
awi| abesany aw] abelaAy
6L:€2:2 Syivp:8
() Zoamly (N) eAlyY
swil upy /dsig swy g0 /dsiq swiL [e3oL
66
2GSVl
5202/LE/£0 ZOE 6SZ 104Er
¥¥:L1:20
6Z0Z/0E/20 8be 85z IdNgsy
L0:€2:80
SZ0Z/BZ/ED Zre  BSZ)ONVEP
ZL:6ZeT
GZ02/82/£0 ve  6GZWSIasy
966112

€¢e:0

€eil

(W) (w)dsiarsdo
anosuz/dsig awi] ebelaay

aw) abeiaay
15:99
(W) anoauz

0s:be:T
(W) dsia

fdsiq aw} [eyol /S49 awi) ()0}

TENEYD

INNOW 'LS AVE 222
T3NEVYD INNOWN

LS MOOTNIH 9€EL
13NV

INNOW 'ad T3dVHO
SAAOTI ¥8LLE
TIWHYD LNNOW

‘LD N3dSY 00L

TIH

HOENHO 'G" AITIVA

Sp1029Y (8301

€26600-5202

$6.600-5202

269600-5202

0.8600-5¢0¢



(4

o1

"ouJ ‘SWIAISAS o1Fel] Xe[IpSy O

WV 6¥:0€:11 §202/SL/y UQ pojelsusn
NOSYV1a :Ag pajelsuss

%60-€2 %16-01 %S0-€1 PojuLld SSOIION (B0
%6062 %16-0t %G0-El Suone|oiA panroiddy
%1 6-0€2 %60-1 %S6-62¢ IejoL
sanss|
%00-1 %00-0 %00-1 pPIO 001 $8800.d
%68-92¢ %00-0 %£6-922 OUAS U[ JON 0BPIA
%l0-¢ %00-0 %10-C use|4 ON 8je|d Jeay uonoUNyE
%00-1 %60-1 %00-0 ajeudoiddeu) yseld sjejd 1eay elpwe)
sjooloy sso
£G¢ bl eve uoljNo8so.d 104 8|ge|leAy
3 l 0 §831601d Ul $$97
1414 cl (444 SUO|1B|OIA |Blo1 NS
862 1L L2l leljoL
Sanss|
9¢ 8l 8 sojeld Jeded uonessibay
4 0 (4 aiejo ung 1o
6¢ L 8l S|01ysA pspuaxg Yiespn/Adlod
8s1 98 A uonasosig s9ljod
9l S LL ANQ @19)dwodu)oa.1i00U|
2 0 4 30(|0d/U0ISS9901d |Belaun4 spoaloy
€ 0 [ Buipuodsay s|o1ysp Aouablawg o104
[44 L 1l uoponiisqo 8ield  Uoloniisqo
sJ0}oe ] 9|ge||oJjuodun s
[A%] el 69¢€ SJUSpIoU| PasSSS00.1d 101
N ~
< <
< <
T T
2 = i
= ec =)
o o}
= = s
% Pl JojesadQ GZ0cZ-1eiN-L€ 0} GZ20¢2-1eiN-L0

sad/A] uonoala( iy (j]swies junoly) uoday juawabeuey J8woisny



e ‘ou] ‘SwsisAS oljJel], Xopay O

INY 6:0€:LL G202/SL/y -UQ pejelausg
NOSHVY1a :Ag pajessusn

Jua.1INo 8y} ayeoipul Ajuo jim Hodad siy) ul pajos|al sesniels auyl ‘Isi umop doap yoeoiddy, syl Wol iV, Pe1os|as NoA § :81oN
aAnesadou| = (]) uononpold = (d) :pusba

TOTAL
MOU-11HA-02

MOU-11HA-01

% :pl JojesadQ GZ0Z-1elN-LE 0} SZ0Z-1eIN-LO
sadA] uonosala( |Iv (jswes junojy) Hoday juswabeuepy Jawolisny



‘ouy ‘SWSISAS OLyRI], XSPPSY O

I 301
WV L€1G L) S202/SLiy -UQ pajelsus)
NOSYV1A :Ad pajesausn
%6 1214 €z 0€C €5¢ 1 86¢ (48] WioL
%16 ol ol } 2% b Lel €vl  2O0-VHLL-NOW
%S €l 113 (144 e - 0 L2l 69¢  LO-VHLI-NOW
EINE] Q3LINIYd SNOLLVIOIA SNOLLYIOIA  NOILNOISOdd SANAAIONI

JONVNSSI S3JILONTVIOL d23A0dddY  d3103r3d  HO4 AN9VIIVAY  SSFHOO0Hd NI SINIAIONI d3103r3y G3ISS300Hd

GcZoc-1eN-L € 0} GZ0e-lenN-10

SWILSAS Dlddval
sadA) uonosieq |1V (lswle) unop) noday juswsbeuey Jawojsny

X314a3d

LAOdIY AUVVININNS LNINIAOVNVIN ¥3INOLSND



Mount Carmel Municipal Report

Report for: _ March

Charge

Number of

Driver’s license to be carried 55-50-351

2

Driver’s license violation residency law 55-50-333

Driving left of center 55-8-120

Driving right lane except to pass 55-8-115

Driving too slow-impeding flow of traffic 55-8-154

Driving without a license 55-50-301

Due Care 55-8-136

Failure to Appear- Municipal 39-16-609

Financial responsibility 55-12-139

Light law violation 55-9-402

Move over law 55-8-132

Muffler law 55-9-202

Driving Unregistered Vehicle 55-3-102

Registration- expired plate 55-4-110

Registration — improper display 55-4-110

Registration — misuse 55-5-115

Registration — No certificate in vehicle 55-4-104

Seat belt required 55-9-603

Speeding 55-8-152

20

Stop sign violation 55-8-149

Traffic control signal violation 55-8-110

Texting/ Hands free law 55-8-199

Driving on suspended/ revoked license 55-50-504

Possession of a revoked, suspended, altered license 55-50-601

Improper left turn 55-8-140

Animal Running at large MC-10-101 Dogs (10-203)

Failure to dim lights 55-9-407

No U-turn 55-8-109

Failure to yield right of way causing accident 55-8-197

Registration- Address incorrect 55-4-131

No parking violation 55-8-160

Child restraint law 55-9-602

Written Warnings

Total

30




MOUNT CARMEL

9«,0((‘1(’6 Zo putdawon taall
Proclamation Honoring the Life and Legacy of Quentin R. Dykes

WHEREAS, Quentin R. Dykes was a lifelong resident of Church Hill, Tennessee, whose
dedication to education and community service left a lasting impact on generations of students,
educators, and families; and

WHEREAS, he devoted four decades of his life to shaping young minds, beginning his career as
a teacher at McPheeters Bend Elementary School before becoming the principal of Liberty Hill
School in 1956, where he faithfully served until his retirement in 1996; and

WHEREAS, through his steadfast leadership, mentorship, and passion for learning, Quentin
Dykes influenced the lives of countless students, guiding them toward success and instilling in
them the values of hard work, integrity, and community service; and

WHEREAS, he was part of an extraordinary family of educators, including his siblings, children,
and their spouses, all of whom have dedicated themselves to the noble calling of education,
continuing his legacy of service; and

WHEREAS, his impact extended beyond the classroom, as he was known for his kindness,
wisdom, and unwavering commitment to the betterment of Mount Carmel and the surrounding
communities; and

WHEREAS, Quentin Dykes’ lifelong contributions to education and his unwavering dedication
to the youth of our community will continues to be felt; and

WHEREAS, the City of Mount Carmel wishes to honor his extraordinary life, his dedication to
education, and his lasting influence by dedicating a day in his memory, recognizing his lifelong
contributions to education and his enduring impact on the students, families, and community
members in Mount Carmel;

1o0f2



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, that I, John Gibson, Mayor of Mount Carmel,
Tennessee, do hereby proclaim April 26, 2025, as Quentin Dykes Remembrance Day in the City
of Mount Carmel and encourage all citizens to take this day to reflect on and celebrate his
enduring contributions to education and our community.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and caused the Seal of the City of
Mount Carmel to be affixed this 24™ day of April 2025.

John Gibson
Mayor, City of Mount Carmel

20f2



MOUNT CARMEL

% /,dme 2 pat o1t sa.0ld

LEGISLATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: James Stables, Town Administrator/Manager

FROM: Mitch Walker, Fire Chief

DATE: April 24, 2025

RE: DISCUSSION & CONSIDERATION: Donation of Mount Carmel Fire
Department Surplus SCBA compressor, cascade system, and fill-station to
Church Hill Rescue Squad

SUMMARY:

The Fire Department requests consideration and approval to donate to the Church Hill
Rescue Squad the surplus items listed below:

Item Description

7.5 HP 5000psi American Airworks Compressor

3 bottle 5000psi cascade system

2 bottle American Airworks fill-station

These items have met their useful and expected life cycle and are no longer functionally
available or needed for effective use in the Town and/or the Fire Department.

REQUESTING DEPARTMENTY(S):
Fire Department-Mitch Walker, Fire Chief

FISCAL IMPACT:
Unknown currently.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval

ATTACHMENTS:

None



MOUNT CARMEL

%/Jﬁﬂce 2o /ulz?,‘z/aw.vz Aocld

LEGISLATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: Tyler Williams, Assistant City Manager/CFO

FROM: John Gibson, Mayor

DATE: April 24, 2025

RE: RESOLUTION NO. 25-651

SUMMARY:

Discussion and Consideration of Resolution 25-651, which establishes a Business and
Economic Development Committee for the Town of Mount Carmel.

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT(S):
Mayor

FISCAL IMPACT:

None

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
N/A

ATTACHMENTS:

Resolution No. 25-651



MOUNT CARMEL

A place o prt dawsn jealy

RESOLUTION 25-651

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE
TO ESTABLISH THE MOUNT CARMEL BUSINESS AND ECONOMIC
DEVELOPMENT COMMITTEE

WHEREAS, the Town of Mount Carmel recognizes the importance of fostering economic
growth, supporting local businesses, and creating a welcoming environment for new
investments; and

WHEREAS, the town seeks to strengthen its economic infrastructure despite limited budgetary
resources through strategic planning, volunteer engagement, and public-private collaboration;
and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Board of Aldermen deem it essential to create a formal committee
that will focus on business attraction, retention, and economic development initiatives within
Mount Carmel; and

WHEREAS, the Business and Economic Development Committee (BEDC) will serve as an
advisory body to the Mayor and Board of Aldermen, offering recommendations and guidance on
local economic strategy; and

WHEREAS, the BEDC will consist of 7 to 9 volunteer members appointed by the Mayor,
ideally representing local businesses, real estate, financial institutions, education, and residents
with business acumen; and

WHEREAS, the BEDC shall:
- Meet regularly to discuss economic development strategies;
- Identify available commercial properties and market them to potential investors;
- Assist in identifying and applying for economic development grants;
- Support existing businesses through outreach and engagement;
- Promote Mount Carmel as a business-friendly community;
- Collaborate with state and regional economic development partners; and
- Provide regular reports and recommendations to the Mayor and Board of Aldermen;

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen meeting at
Mount Carmel, Tennessee, on this 24™ day of April, 2025, that:

1of2



SECTION 1. The Mount Carmel Business and Economic Development Committee is hereby
established.

SECTION 2. That the Mayor is authorized to appoint 7 to 9 committee members.

SECTION 3. That the committee shall operate as an advisory body, reporting directly to the
Mayor and Board of Aldermen.

SECTION 4. That the committee shall hold its first meeting within 60 days of the passage of
this Resolution.
SECTION 5. That all appointed members shall serve without compensation.

This Resolution shall take effect immediately, the public welfare requiring it.

ADOPTED this 24'" day of April, 2025.

John Gibson, Mayor

Attest:
Tyler Williams, Town Recorder

20f2



MOUNT CARMEL

%/ﬂfﬁ(se 7o pat e prit Leadl

LEGISLATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: James Stables, Town Administrator/Manager

FROM: James Stables, Town Administrator/Manager

DATE: April 24, 2025

RE: RESOLUTION NO. 25- 652 A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE

MAYOR TO SIGN A MULTI-YEAR AGREEMENT ESTABLISHING AND
APPROVING A PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP AGREEMENT WITH
INFRAMARK, LLC TO PROVIDE WASTEWATER OPERATIONS AND
MAINTENANCE SERVICES TO THE TOWN

SUMMARY:

This resolution will authorize the mayor to sign a multi-year agreement establishing a
public private partnership for safe and efficient operation of the Town’s Wastewater
Treatment Plant and facilities.

This action brings the Town into further compliance with our State of Tennessee NPDES
permit for operating the wastewater treatment plant and facilities with the proper number
of well-qualified, licensed, and experienced staff.

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT(S):

City Manager

FISCAL IMPACT:

The fiscal impact will be $78,877.42 per month, and an annual impact of $946,529.00. This
fee amount reflects consolidation of personnel and operational/maintenance costs as
identified and referenced in the FY 2025/2026 Budget documents. This is a five (5) year
agreement and all future annual cost increases will be established through good faith
negotiation and calculated based on the consideration of wastewater maintenance and
operations costs inflationary rates identified in the CPI-U index.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:
Staff recommends approval of this resolution.

ATTACHMENTS:
(1) Resolution 25-652
(2) Wastewater Treatment Plant Operation and Maintenance Agreement



MOUNT CARMEL

%/:(fﬁca Zo pat cdowse gocll

RESOLUTION 25-652

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO SIGN A
MULTI-YEAR AGREEMENT ESTABLISHING AND
APPROVING A PUBLIC PRIVATE PARTNERSHIP
AGREEMENT WITH INFRAMARK, LL.C TO PROVIDE
WASTEWATER OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE
SERVICES TO THE TOWN

BEFORE THE MAYOR AND ALDERMEN OF THE TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL,
TENNESSEE

WHEREAS, the operation and maintenance of the Town’s wastewater plant and facilities have
been substandard over the last several years, and,

WHEREAS, the Town has received several violations from the Tennessee Department of
Environment and Conservation over the last several years for non-compliance with our issued
permit and overall operational/maintenance deficiencies, and,

WHEREAS, in consideration of these facts the Town secured a temporary service agreement
provider for the Town’s wastewater treatment plant and facilities, while pursuing a more
permanent solution to these operational and maintenance challenges and shortfalls and,

WHEREAS, to avoid future issues of this nature the Town will establish a public private
partnership to ensure that the wastewater functions are accomplished with efficiency and
effectiveness, and,

WHEREAS, the provision of the sewer system and facilities is essential to the preservation of
the public’s health and welfare, and,

WHEREAS, the Town has identified a well-qualified partner for this venture through a sealed
RFP process, and,

WHEREAS, the Mount Carmel Board of Mayor and Aldermen have determined the public
private partnership to operate and maintain the Town’s Wastewater Treatment Plant and
Facilities to be adequate, reasonable and just, and



NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF MAYOR AN ALDERMEN
OF THE TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE, as follows

SECTION I. The Mount Carmel Board of Mayor and Aldermen, deeming it both advisable
and necessary authorize the mayor to sign this multi-year agreement establishing this public
private partnership with INFRAMARK, LLC on or about the date of signature of both parties
the Wastewater Treatment Plant Operation and Maintenance Agreement, the agreement to be
Sfully implemented and operational on June 1, 2025; and

SECTION II. That the monthly rate of $78,877.42 to operate and maintain the Town of
Mount Carmel Wastewater Treatment Plant and facilities in year one (1) of this five (5) year
agreement, is fiscally responsible and appropriate, and the future methodology of calculation
for inflationary fiscal impact is responsible and appropriate; and

SECTION III. That on or about March 1, of every year staff will review the CPI-U for the
water and sewage maintenance, and negotiate with our private partner, to present to the Board
of Mayor and Aldermen a replacement resolution to address the negotiated annual increase,
based on the data, and that would go into effect on or about June 1 of each successive year of
the agreement.

Be It Resolved, the 24™ day of April 2025

This Resolution was duly considered and adopted by the Board of Mayor and Aldermen, in and
for the Town of Mount Carmel, Tennessee, this 24™" day of April 2025.

John Gibson, Mayor

Attest:

Tyler Williams, Town Recorder



ASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

This Wastewater Treatment Plant Operation and Maintenance Agreement (the
“Agreement”) is made this24™ day of April 2025, between:

1)

2)

TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, a Tennessee municipal corporation with its principal
place of business at 100 E. Main Street, Mount Carmel, Tennessee 37645 (hereinafter the
“Client”); and

INFRAMARK, LLC, a Texas limited liability company with its principal place of
business at 2002 West Grand Parkway North, Suite 100, Katy, Texas 77449 (hereinafter
the “Operator”).

BACKGROUND

The Client desires to procure operation and maintenance services required for the Client’s wastewater
treatment facilities as set forth in Schedule 5 attached to this Agreement (“Facilities”) and the Operator
desires to provide said operations and maintenance services to the Client.

In consideration of the mutual promises in this Agreement, the parties agree as follows:

1)

2)

TERM

This Agreement shall commence on June 1, 2025 (“Commencement Date) and shall remain in full
force and effect for five (5) years from the Commencement Date (“Initial Term”) unless terminated
earlier under Section 6below. After the Initial Term, the Agreement may be extended through written
agreement, or renewed by mutual negotiations to ensure all interests are considered for both parties,
unless terminated in writing by either party at least sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the then
current term.

OPERATOR’S SERVICES

2.1.

2.2.

23

Operator, in regard to the Facilities, shall provide the services as set forth in Schedule 1 attached
to this Agreement (the “Services”).

Operator shall be responsible for all Annual Maintenance Expenditures not to exceed the
Annual Repair and Maintenance Budget (which Annual Repair and Maintenance Budget shall
be included in the Annual Compensation). Operator will track Annual Maintenance
Expenditures incurred against the Annual Repair and Maintenance Budget. If, at any point
during an Agreement Y ear, the actual Annual Maintenance Expenditures incurred to that point
exceed the Annual Repair and Maintenance Budget, the Operator will invoice the Client for
the excess cost in accordance with Section 4.5 and will continue to invoice any additional
Annual Maintenance Expenditures on a monthly basis thereafter. Any portion of the Annual
Repair and Maintenance Budget that has not been spent at the end of each Agreement Year
will be credited to Client against the Base Free in the subsequent Agreement Year.

Operator shall be responsible for purchasing all Chemicals not to exceed the Annual Chemical
Budget (which Annual Chemical Budget shall be included in the Annual Compensation).
Operator will track expenditures for Chemicals incurred against the Annual Chemical Budget.
If, at any point during an Agreement Year, the actual expenditures for Chemicals incurred to
that point exceed the Annual Chemical Budget, the Operator will invoice the Client for the
excess cost in accordance with Section 4.6 and will continue to invoice any additional

Page 1



2.4.

2.5.

2.6.

2.7.

2.8.

expenditures for Chemicals on a monthly basis thereafter. Any portion of the Annual
Chemical Budget that has not been spent at the end of each Agreement Year will be credited
to Client against the Base Free in the subsequent Agreement Year. The Chemicals shall be the
property of and titled in the Client upon delivery to the Facilities.

As the agent for the Client, the Operator shall dispose of Process Residue and shall pay the
costs of all such disposal up to the Annual Process Residue Budget. The Operator shall
dispose of Process Residue either at an approved landfill or at an approved land application
site designated and made available by the Client. Title and ownership of Process Residue shall
remain with the Client notwithstanding such services by the Operator. The Client shall also
pay Operator an amount, if any, equal to all expenditures for Process Residue disposal in
excess of the Annual Process Residue Budget in accordance with Section 4.7. Any portion of
the Annual Process Residue Budget that has not been spent at the end of each Agreement Year
will be credited to Client against the Base Free in the subsequent Agreement Year.

Except in the case of an Emergency Event, Operator shall obtain the prior written approval of
the Client for any single Annual Maintenance Expenditure which shall cost more than Five
Thousand dollars ($5,000.00). When the Operator determines that an Emergency Event exists,
it may begin immediately taking any necessary action related thereto, without the Client’s
prior approval. Any costs incurred during the Emergency shall be included in the Annual
Maintenance Expenditures, subject to the Client’s subsequent review and approval.

Operator shall perform Corrective Maintenance for the Facilities, unless such Corrective
Maintenance requires specialized skills or equipment or cannot otherwise be performed by
those individuals exclusively assigned by the Operator to the operations and maintenance of
the Facilities and whose cost is included in the Base Fee hereunder. If Operator cannot
perform such Corrective Maintenance as noted herein, Operator shall schedule third party
contractors to perform such Corrective Maintenance and manage their work. The costs for
Operator to perform Corrective Maintenance and the costs for any required third party
contractors to perform such Corrective Maintenance shall be considered Annual Maintenance
Expenditures. In the event the Client does not agree to proceed with required Corrective
Maintenance as recommended by the Operator, Operator will not be liable for any loss,
damage or liability arising from or related to the Client’s failure to performance Corrective
Maintenance, including any loss, damage, or liability for (a) failure of the Facilities, (b) failure
to comply with Applicable Law, (c) failure to meet the requirements of this Agreement or (d)
claims for indemnification.

Operator may perform additional services or Corrective Maintenance beyond the Services
specified in Section 2.1 with the mutual consent of both parties. The parties shall separately
negotiate the costs of any such additional services.

Within the first ninety (90) days of the Commencement Date, Operator shall provide Client
with a listing of any recommended Capital Improvements that Operator believes will be
required for the Facilities. Thereafter, Operator may recommend Capital Improvements or
operational changes to the Client as are necessary or recommended to perform the Services in
compliance with the terms of this Agreement and Applicable Law. In the event the Client does
not approve and make a Capital Improvement or operational change recommended by Operator,
Operator will not be liable for any loss, damage or liability arising from or related to the Client’s
rejection of or refusal to implement the recommended Capital Improvement or operational
changes, including any loss, damage, or liability for (a) failure of the Facilities, (b) failure to
comply with Applicable Law, (c) failure to meet the requirements of this Agreement or (d) claims
for indemnification. Upon written, mutual agreement of the parties, Operator may finance such
recommended Capital Improvements that have been approved by the Client.

Page 2



2.9. Operator shall:

2.9.1.

2.9.2.

2.93.

2.94.

2.95.

2.9.6.

2.9.7.

2.9.8.

2.9.9.

2.9.10.

Perform the Services in accordance with the provisions of this Agreement, Applicable
Law, and all permits, licenses, and specifications applicable to the operation and
maintenance of the Facilities; exercising the degree of skill and care ordinarily
exercised by members of Operator’s profession in the geographic region of the
Facilities.

Use qualified (and where required, certified) personnel to operate and maintain the
Facilities and all its equipment and processes in accordance with relevant operation
and, if available, maintenance manuals for the Facilities, Applicable Law, and the
Client’s Permits;

Perform (or contract with a laboratory certified by the appropriate regulatory body to
perform) all sampling and laboratory analysis required by Applicable Law, the
Client’s Permits. Laboratory procedures and analysis shall conform to the then current
edition of Standard Methods for the Examination of Water and Wastewater, or shall
be in accordance with testing requirements of Applicable Law and the Client’s
Permits;

Subject to the limitations in Section 3, below, perform the routine maintenance tasks
in Schedule 1;

Maintain necessary records of operations, maintenance, repair and improvement
activities at the Facilities and shall prepare and submit to the Client a monthly report,
delivered to the Client the following month, including a narrative and summary of
operations, maintenance, repair and replacement activities (including the draw-down
against the Annual Repair and Maintenance Limit) and data required for monthly
reporting to local, state and federal agencies;

Provide response services for an Emergency Event at the Facilities twenty-four hours
a day, seven days a week;

Develop and implement a safety program that must be adhered to by its personnel that
provide the Services hereunder;

Provide computerized maintenance and process control and laboratory management
systems;

Operate the Facilities such that odor and noise shall be effectively controlled, and that
no disruption of adjacent neighborhoods shall result

Provide all training for its personnel that provide the Services hereunder, which
training shall include the areas of operations, maintenance, safety, supervisory skills,
and energy management

3) CLIENT OBLIGATIONS

3.1. Client shall:

3.1.1.

Obtain and maintain all state, federal, and local permits and licenses required for
ownership, operation and maintenance of the Facilities, including without limitation,
the Client’s Permits;

Page 3



3.2.

3.1.2. Arrange for and pay: 1) all costs related to delivery to and consumption of utilities to
the Facilities, including electricity, water, gas, generator fuel, and telephone usage at
the Facilities; ii) all property, value-related, franchise, sales, use, excise, gross
receipts, transaction privilege or other taxes associated with the Services and the
ownership, operation and maintenance of the Facilities, other than taxes imposed on
Operator’s net income or payroll; iii) expenses incurred from the treatment of Non-
Processible Water, including without limitation, any penalties and fines that may be
assessed as a result; iv) expenses resulting from influent or pollutant loads exceeding
the Baseline Conditions as set forth in Schedule 6; iv) expenses resulting from
hydraulic or organic loads exceeding the Baseline Conditions as set forth in Schedule
6; v) all Capital Improvements; vi) all costs for grass cutting and other landscaping;
and vii) the rates set forth in Schedule 4 for emergency response services.

3.1.3. Comply with Applicable Law relating to the management, ownership, operation,
maintenance, repair and replacement of the Facilities (to the extent that the
responsibility of complying with those laws is not specifically assumed by the
Operator under this Agreement). The Operator shall not be responsible for Client’s
failure to comply with any provision of Applicable Law that is not otherwise
specifically assumed by the Operator hereunder;

3.1.4. During visits to the Facilities, comply and shall require its agents, licensees of invitees
to comply with all reasonable safety rules and regulations adopted by the Operator;

3.1.5. Maintain all sewer lines, pipes, force mains, and all other water transportation lines
(“Client Lines”), that are not part of the Facilities under Operator’s control, in a
manner that will prevent, to the extent practicable, any damage to the operation of the
Facilities due to leakage of water or infiltration or inflow of storm water from such
Client Lines;

3.1.6. Perform all duties and discharge all responsibilities and obligations relating to the
operation and maintenance of the Facilities not expressly assumed by the Operator
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement; and

3.1.7. Grant the Operator, free of charge, a license to use the Facilities, including all
equipment, structures, facilities and vehicles under Client’s ownership and which
have been assigned by Client to the Facilities.

Client represents and warrants that Operator is not required to pay its employees prevailing
wage rates pursuant to Applicable Law for the Services provided hereunder as of the
Commencement Date.

4) FEES AND PAYMENT

4.1.

For the period beginning on the date that Operator commences Services under Section 2
above and as set forth in Schedule 1, Client shall pay Operator the Annual Compensation as
set out in Schedule 4. The Annual Compensation for the first Agreement Year shall be
$946,529.00. Client shall pay the Annual Compensation in equal monthly installments,
which for the first Agreement Year shall be $78.877.42. The Annual Compensation shall be
due, in advance, on the first of the month during which the Services will be rendered. All
other payments shall be due within thirty (30) days of the date of invoice. Client shall make
all payments by ACH or wire transfer.

Page 4



4.2.

4.3.

4.4.

4.5.

4.6.

4.7.

4.8.

For all subsequent Agreement Years, the parties shall negotiate in good faith an increase to
the Operator’s Annual Compensation for each subsequent Agreement Year. If the parties
are unable to agree to an increase to the Base Fee by the Adjustment Date, the Base Fee will
be increased as set forth in Section 2 of Schedule 4; however, the Annual Repair and
Maintenance Budget, the Annual Chemical Budget, and Annual Process Residue Budget
shall be the same amount as in the prior Agreement Year. Inno event will the Base Fee be
reduced by the adjustment set forth in Section 2 of Schedule 4.

Any disputes regarding invoices shall be raised, in writing setting forth sufficient detail
regarding the nature of the dispute, within ten (10) business days from the date of said
invoice. If Client has a dispute with any charges, all undisputed charges on said invoice(s)
will be due in accordance with the above times and the Parties shall negotiate in good faith
to resolve any such dispute in a timely manner. If Client does not properly raise a dispute
with an invoice within ten (10) business days from the date of said invoice, any such disputes
will be waived.

Any and all late payments due to either party from the other party shall accrue interest at a
rate of one and one-half percent (12 %) per month from the original due date and until
payment is received, unless waived by agreement.

Client shall reimburse or compensate the Operator for the costs that exceed the Annual Repair
and Maintenance Budget plus an administrative fee of 15% of the cost thereof. Client shall
pay the Operator such amounts within 30 days of issuance of an invoice by Operator. Client
shall reimburse or compensate the Operator for the costs that exceed the Annual Repair and
Maintenance Budget within 30 days of issuance of an invoice by Operator. Any portion of
the Annual Repair and Maintenance Budget that has not been spent at the end of each
Agreement Year will be credited to Client against the Base Free in the subsequent Agreement
Year.

Client shall reimburse or compensate the Operator for the costs that exceed the Annual
Chemical Budget plus an administrative fee of 15% of the cost thereof. Client shall pay the
Operator such amounts within 30 days of issuance of an invoice by Operator. Client shall
reimburse or compensate the Operator for the costs that exceed the Annual Chemical Budget
within 30 days of issuance of an invoice by Operator. Any portion of the Annual Chemical
Budget that has not been spent at the end of each Agreement Year will be credited to Client
against the Base Free in the subsequent Agreement Year.

Client shall reimburse or compensate the Operator for the costs that exceed the Annual
Process Residue Budget plus an administrative fee of 15% of the cost thereof. Client shall
pay the Operator such amounts within 30 days of issuance of an invoice by Operator. Client
shall reimburse or compensate the Operator for the costs that exceed the Annual Process
Residue Budget within 30 days of issuance of an invoice by Operator. Any portion of the
Annual Process Residue Budget that has not been spent at the end of each Agreement Year
will be credited to Client against the Base Free in the subsequent Agreement Year

In the event of a change in the Services, Change in Law, or other factor which causes an
increase in the Operator’s cost of providing the Services, the Operator may provide notice to
the Client and the parties shall negotiate in good faith to adjust the Base Fee to account for
such change in Operator’s costs of providing the Services directly impacted by said change. If
the parties are unable to reach a negotiated agreement within thirty (30) days of the date of
notice, then the contract may be terminated immediately by the Operator.

Page 5



S)

6)

4.9. The Base Fee and any additional service rates provided in this Agreement have been derived

under the premise and understanding that the Services to be furnished hereunder do not
require the Operator to pay its employees prevailing wage rates pursuant to Applicable Law.
If a determination is made by the Client or by any governmental agency with competent
jurisdiction thereof that the nature of the Services are such that the Operator is required to
pay any of its employees who are performing the Services prevailing wage rates, then the
Client shall immediately notify Operator and be responsible for the increase in the Operator’s
cost of providing the Services as a result thereof.

BASELINE CONDITIONS

5.1.

5.2.

If the Flows and Loading increased by more than ten percent (10%) from the Baseline
Conditions as set out in Schedule 6 of this Agreement at the end of an Agreement Year, Client
shall pay the Operator for the increase in Operator’s costs for providing the Services, provided
that Operator provides Client with a cost substantiation. Client shall make such payment
within thirty (30) days of receipt of the cost substantiate and invoice.

If the Flows and Loadings increase by more than ten percent (10%) from the Baseline
Conditions as set out in Schedule 6 of this Agreement in two (2) consecutive Agreement
Years, the Operator may provide notice to the Client and the parties shall negotiate in good
faith to adjust the Base Fee to account for an increase in Operator’s costs; provided however,
Operator shall still be entitled to payment under Section 5.1 for each Agreement Year. If the
parties are unable to reach a negotiated agreement within thirty (30) days of the date of notice,
then the Agreement may be terminated immediately by the Operator.

TERMINATION

6.1.

6.2.

6.3.

Either party may terminate this Agreement by immediate written notice if the other has
failed to comply with a material term, provided that the non-defaulting party has first given
the defaulting party written notice to cure their default within forty-five (45) days, or thirty
(30) days for failure to pay an undisputed invoice when due (such applicable period, “Cure
Period”) and the defaulting party has not done so. If a default cannot be cured within the
Cure Period days, the parties may agree to an extension of the time to cure provided the
defaulting party provides reasonable evidence within the Cure Period that it has identified
ameans to cure and is pursuing it diligently. Should Client pay an unpaid, undisputed invoice
within the Cure Period, the termination notice under this provision will be deemed
automatically withdrawn.

In the event of the termination of this Agreement under Section 6.1 above, Client shall pay
Operator for the Services provided and invoiced by Operator up to the effective date of
termination, plus the balance of unamortized costs incurred by Operator as reflected on
Operator’s financial statements, and the effectiveness of such termination by Client will be
conditioned upon receipt by Operator of such payment. If Client incurs costs for damages
due to a default of the Operator that results in termination of this Agreement, Client may
deduct such costs or damages from the final payment due to Operator under this Section 6.2.
Such deduction will not exceed the final payment owed to Operator and will constitute a full
and final settlement between Client and Operator for any and all claims against Operator by
Client and a release by Client of any and all further claims against Operator. Client shall
make payment within thirty (30) days of the date of termination.

No official, employee or volunteer, whether disclosed or undisclosed, of the Client or the
Operator shall be personally liable to the other party, in the event of a breach of any provision
of the Agreement or any provision is unenforceable. Each party shall look solely to the other
party for satisfaction of liability hereunder.

Page 6



6.4.

If funds are not appropriated for the services provided under this Agreement in the Client’s
new fiscal year budget, this Agreement shall automatically terminate at the end of the
Client’s fiscal year. Client shall provide immediate notice if it does not approve a budget
that includes sufficient funds for the services provided under this Agreement, or should the
Client fail to approve funds for the services provided under this Agreement for any reason
and the date of termination.

7) FINES, INDEMNIFICATION AND LIMITATION

7.1.

7.2.

7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

In the event that water or wastewater treatment violations occur following the
Commencement Date, subject to Sections 7.2 and 10.7, Operator shall, in respect of
violations that may be imposed by environmental regulatory bodies under Applicable Law
and to the extent directly attributable to Operator’s breach of its contractual obligations
hereunder, be responsible for: environmental regulatory fines and penalties. Prior to
settlement or payment of any such fines or penalties, Operator reserves the right to contest
any actions, suits or proceedings for violations through administrative procedures or
otherwise. Operator shall provide Client with prompt notice of any such water or wastewater
treatment violations.

If the Facilities loading exceed its design parameters or if influent contains: i) abnormal,
toxic or other substances which cannot be removed or treated by the existing Facilities; or
ii) discharges which violate applicable ordinances, the Operator will use its best efforts to
maximize performance of the Facilities but shall not be responsible for associated effluent
characteristics or damages, fines or penalties which result.

DURING THE TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT AND TO THE EXTENT PERMITTED
BY APPLICABLE LAW, EACH PARTY (THE “INDEMNIFYING PARTY”) SHALL
DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS THE OTHER PARTY AND THEIR
RESPECTIVE SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS (EACH IS REFERRED TO HEREIN
AS AN “INDEMNIFIED PARTY”) AGAINST ANY AND ALL LIABILITY FOR
DAMAGES, COSTS, LOSSES, AND EXPENSES, INCLUDING REASONABLE
ATTORNEY’S FEES, RESULTING FROM ANY CLAIM ASSERTED BY A THIRD
PARTY AGAINST THE INDEMNIFIED PARTY FOR WRONGFUL DEATH, BODILY
INJURY, AND/OR PROPERTY DAMAGE, BUT ONLY TO THE EXTENT CAUSED
BY THE WILLFUL OR NEGLIGENT ACTS OR OMISSIONS OF THE INDEMNIFYING
PARTY.

Operator is not liable for any liabilities resulting from the collection system for the
Facilities unless such liabilities are the result of Operator’s negligent direct actions.

Notwithstanding any provision to the contrary contained in this Agreement, in no event
shall either party be liable, either directly or indirectly, for any special, punitive, indirect
and/or consequential damages, including damages attributable to loss of use, loss of income or
loss of profit, even if such party has been advised of the possibility of such damages.

In the event that claims(s) raised by Client against the Operator on account of this Agreement,
or on account of the Services performed hereunder including claims by Client for
indemnification under Section 7.3, is/are covered under Operator's insurance policies required
of the Operator hereunder, Operator shall not be responsible to Client for any loss, damage or
liability beyond the amounts contractually required hereunder and actually paid pursuant to
the limits and conditions of such insurance policies. With respect to any causes of action
and/or claims raised against the Operator by Client that are not covered by the insurance

Page 7



8)

7.7.

7.8.

7.9.

7.10.

7.11.

policies required hereunder, including claims by Client for indemnification, Operator's liability
to Client shall not exceed an aggregate amount equal to the Base Fee in effect during the
Agreement Year in which such cause of action and/or claim is raised. The limitations set forth
herein shall apply to the extent permitted by Applicable Law.

Under no circumstances shall Operator be responsible for any damages, losses, settlement,
payment deficiencies, liabilities, costs and expenses arising directly or indirectly because of
the execution or implementation of instruction or directions provided by the Client or any of
its directors, officers, employees, agents, or representatives.

Operator shall not be liable for any liabilities, losses, damages, expenses, fines, or penalties
incurred by the Client or any third party as a result of a data security breach or other cyber
security breach to the Facilities or the Client’s computer systems, operating systems, and all
other technological or information systems related to the Facilities and Services provided
hereunder, except to the extent such liability, loss, damage, expense, fine, or penalty is the
direct result of Operator’s willful or negligent acts or omissions.

If any information, opinions, recommendations, advice, or other work product or any data,
information, procedures, charts, spreadsheets, logs, instruments, documents, plans, designs,
specifications, operating manuals and specifications, customer data, billing information,
regulatory filings, permits, authorizations, licenses, operation and maintenance records, or
other records are provided by the Client or any third party acting on behalf the Client are
provide to and used or relied on by Operator, the Client will be liable for any damages resulting
directly or indirectly from such use and reliance.

FOR EQUIPMENT OR PARTS PURCHASED BY OPERATOR, OPERATOR SHALL
PASS ON ANY MANUFACTURERS WARRANTIES OR GUARANTEES TO THE
CLIENT AND PROVIDE THE CLIENT REASONABLE ASSISTANCE IN ENFORCING
THE MANUFACTURER’S WARRANTIES AND GUARANTEES. OPERATOR SHALL
NOT BE RESPONSIBLE TO THE CLIENT FOR ANY GUARANTEES OR
WARRANTIES OFFERED BY OTHERS IN CONNECTION WITH ANY EQUIPMENT,
MATERIALS, AND SUPPLIES PROVIDED IN CONNECTION WITH THE SERVICES
HEREUNDER AND OPERATOR SHALL NOT BE LIABLE FOR ANY DAMAGES
ARISING OUT OF ANY BREACH OF GUARANTEE OR WARRANTY, EXPRESS OR
IMPLIED, BY ANY MANUFACTURER OR SUPPLIER OF EQUIPMENT OR
MATERIALS PURCHASED FOR THE CLIENT UNDER THIS AGREEMENT.
OPERATOR MAKES NO WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING
WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR
PURPOSE, WARRANTIES REGARDING ANY EQUIPMENT, MATERIALS, AND
SUPPLIES, IF ANY, OR ANY WARRANTIES THAT MIGHT ARISE FROM COURSE OF
DEALING OR USAGE OF TRADE.

The parties acknowledge that a Change in Law may affect compliance with Operator’s
obligations hereunder or impose more stringent requirements relating to equipment or
processes than those established at the time of executing this Agreement. In the event that a
Change in Law occurs, the Operator shall not be responsible for compliance therewith or for
any fines, penalties, or other damage of whatever kind unless specifically agreed to in writing.

INSURANCE

8.1.

Operator shall provide and maintain the following levels of insurance coverage at all times
during the Term:

8.1.1. Commercial General Liability Insurance, including contractual liability, with a limit

Page 8



9

10)

8.2.

8.3.

8.4.

8.5.

of one million dollars ($1,000,000) per occurrence and two million dollars
($2,000,000) aggregate;

8.1.2.  Workers Compensation Insurance in compliance with the statutes of the State that
has jurisdiction over Operator’s employees engaged in the performance of Services
hereunder, to the required statutory amount; and

8.1.3. Automobile Liability Insurance with a combined single limit of one million dollars
($1,000,000).

Operator shall name Client as an additional insured on the general liability policy and
automobile liability policy with respect to the Services during the term of this Agreement,
except for any claim against or loss suffered by Client arising as a result of Client’s
negligence or fault and, in circumstances of joint fault or negligence, except to the extent of
the loss attributable to Client’s proportionate degree of negligence or fault.

Operator shall provide Client with thirty (30) days’ notice prior to cancellation of any policy
hereunder.

Operator shall provide Client with insurance certificates confirming the levels of coverage in
Section 8.1 and that Client is named as an additional insured.

Client warrants that it maintains and will continue to maintain, during the term of this
Agreement, appropriate property insurance in relation to the Facilities.

DISPUTES

9.1

9.2.

In the event of any disputes, the parties shall first attempt to resolve the situation by good faith
discussions which shall take place in a timely manner. If the dispute cannot be resolved within
sixty (60) days, the parties shall mediate their dispute before a mediator acceptable to both
parties, if they cannot agree, they shall ask the Director of the Federal Mediation and
Conciliation Service to nominate a mediator. The parties shall bear their own costs of the
mediation but the parties shall share equally the costs of the mediator and the mediation
facilities.

If the parties are unable to resolve any disputes in accordance with Sections 9.1 above, either
party may resort to resolution of the dispute by litigation in a court of competent jurisdiction.
The parties waive their right to a jury trial.

MISCELLANEOUS

10.1. The relationship of Operator to Client is that of independent contractor for all purposes

10.2.

10.3.

under this Agreement. This Agreement is not intended to create, and shall not be construed as
creating, between Operator and Client, the relationship of principal and agent, joint
ventures, co-partners or any other similar relationship, the existence of which is hereby
expressly denied.

This Agreement contains the entire agreement between Client and Operator and supersedes all
prior or contemporaneous communications, representations, understandings or agreements
that are not consistent with any material provision of this Agreement.

The parties may only modify this Agreement by a written amendment signed by both

Page 9



10.4.

10.5.

10.6.

10.7.

10.8.

10.9.

parties.

The failure on the part of either party to enforce its rights as to any provision of this
Agreement shall not be construed as a waiver of its rights to enforce such provisions in the
future.

During the term of this Agreement, the parties agree to not actively recruit one another’s
employees, specifically, those working for the Client and those employees working for
Operator to provide the Services hereunder. Should either party like to discuss employment
opportunities with the other’s employees, the parties agree to communicate their desire with
the appropriate manager of the other party, and such request shall not be unreasonably
withheld.

This Agreement shall not be assigned by either party without the prior written consent of the
other party unless such assignment shall be to a parent, subsidiary, affiliate, or successor of
either Party. Additionally, any sale, assignment, or transfer by the Client in its rights in, or
right to use, the Facilities shall be subject to Operator’s right to perform the Services under
this Agreement.

A party’s performance of any obligation under this Agreement shall be excused if, and to
the extent that, the party is unable to perform because of any event of Force Majeure, as
defined in Schedule 2. In any such event, the party unable to perform shall be required to
resume performance of its obligations under this Agreement upon the termination of the
event or cause that excused performance hereunder.

The Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws, rules and
regulations of the State of Tennessee. No provisions of the Agreement shall act or be deemed
a waiver by the Town of any immunity, its rights or privileges as a sovereign entity, or of
any provisions of the Tennessee Governmental Tort Liability Act, T.C.A. Section 29-20-101
et seq..

In the event that Client receives notice of or undertakes the defense or prosecution of any
legal or administrative action or proceeding in connection with the ownership, operation
and/or maintenance of the Facilities and/or this Agreement, Client shall give Operator
prompt notice of such proceedings and shall inform Operator in advance of all hearings. In
the event Operator receives notice of any action, claim, suit, administrative or arbitration
proceeding or investigation in connection with the ownership, operation and/or
maintenance of the Facilities and/or this Agreement, Operator shall give Client prompt
notice of such proceedings.

10.10. All notices will be in writing and shall be deemed given when mailed by first class mail or

delivered in person. Notices required to be given to the parties by each other will be
addressed to:

Inframark, LLC Town of Mount Carmel

229 Northside Drive 100 E. Main Street

Danville, Virginia 20450 Mount Carmel, Tennessee 37645

ATTN: Jerry B. Shupe Jr. ATTN: Town Administrator-City Manager
With copy to:

Inframark, LLC
2002 West Grand Parkway North, Suite 100
Katy, Texas 77449

Page 10



ATTN: Legal Department

10.11. All records compiled by Operator with information and material gathered when performing

this Agreement are the property of Client. Any documents or materials, including the
Agreement, in any format, including, but not limited to, paper, electronic, or virtual, that are
public records pursuant to the Tennessee Open Records Act, set out in T. C. A. §10-7-503 et
seq., are not confidential and are subject to disclosure in whole or in part, without regard to
any provision contained in the Agreement declaring information confidential. Additionally,
the Client must, upon proper request, release public documents and records as defined by T.
C. A. §10-7-503 et seq., including, but not limited to, the Agreement and all records created
and maintained related to the Agreement unless exempt from such disclosure under
Applicable Law, without the requirement to disclose such request to Operator or providing
Operator with notice or the time to obtain a protective order; provided, however, the Client
shall make reasonable and good faith efforts to disclose such request to Operator or provide
Operator with notice or the time to obtain a protective order.

10.12. This Agreement is made for the benefit of the parties, and is not intended to benefit any third

party or be enforceable by any third party.

10.13. Defined terms in this Agreement are set out in Schedule 2 or within the main body of this

Agreement, capitalized or within quotation marks.

10.14.Should any part of this Agreement for any reason be declared invalid or void, such

declaration will not affect the remaining parts of this Agreement, which will remain in full
force and effect as if the Agreement had been executed with the invalid portion eliminated.

10.15. This Agreement may be executed in more than one counterpart, each of which shall be

deemed an original.

10.16.Both parties warrant and represent to the other that they have full power and authority to

enter into and perform this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have duly executed this Agreement effective as of the date at the top
of this Agreement.

TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL INFRAMARK, LLC
By: By:

Title: Title:

Date: Date:

Page 11



Schedule 1: Operator’s Services

1. Project Management:

Operator shall provide the following:
1. A Project Manager to manage the operation and maintenance of the Facilities.
2. Additional management support, including:
a. Regional Manager — directing Operator’s resources to ensure safe and compliant operation

of the Facilities.
b. Support to ensure the Facilities are operated effectively and in compliance with regulatory
regulations.
¢. Human Resources support for hiring and retaining qualified staff to operate and maintain the
Facilities.
3. Delivering monthly and annual reports to the Municipality on the Facilities’ operations and
maintenance.

2. Wastewater Treatment:

Operator shall provide the following:
1. Management and labor to manage, operate, and maintain the wastewater treatment system,

including:
a. Treatment of wastewater influent delivered to the Mount Carmel Wastewater Treatment Plant
(“WWTP”).

. Managing, operating, and providing routine maintenance of the WWTP.
c. Managing, operating, and providing routine maintenance of the eleven (11) sewage lift stations
and an estimated seven hundred (700) residential lift stations as defined in Schedule 5
Purchasing consumable materials and supplies.
Performing all required sampling and laboratory analyses.
Providing Certified Operator in Direct Charge (COIDC) services with a Tennessee Wastewater
Grade II (or higher) licensing.
g. Preparation, signature, and submission of all required regulatory documents to the regulatory
authorities and delivery of regulatory filings to the Client.
Providing biosolids disposal and coordination.
Providing regulatory recordkeeping and reporting.
Providing vehicles, licensing, fuel and maintenance as required to complete the work at the
Facilities.
k. 24-hour, 7-days/week on-call services and emergency response.
2. Providing a basic, five-year capital plan for the Facilities including:
a. Inventory and condition assessment of existing assets based on age, visual inspection, and
maintenance history.
b. A five-year capital improvement plan for existing assets based on condition assessment and
consequence of failure.
3. Complying with permit requirements within the capacities of the WWTP.

™o A

‘;‘.l—..:-

3. Exclusions

Operator shall not be responsible for:
1. Maintenance of “Client Lines” including sewer taps and leaks requiring excavations.
2. Providing heavy equipment for use at the facilities.

Page 12



Schedule 2: Definitions

“Abnormal or Biologically Toxic Materials” may include, but are not limited to, concentrations of heavy
metals, phenols, cyanides, pesticides, herbicides, priority pollutants as listed by USEPA, or any substance that
violates the local or USEPA standards for finished water after the routine processing of the raw water.

“Adjustment Date” means each anniversary of the Commencement Date.

“Agreement Year” means the consecutive twelve (12) month period that begins on the Commencement
Date, and each subsequent consecutive twelve (12) month period that begins on each anniversary of the
Commencement Date.

“Annual Chemical Budget” is defined as the total of all expenses for Chemicals that Client furnishes to the
Operator for the Services provided hereunder, as provided by Section 2.4 of this Agreement, up to a maximum
of the amount in Schedule 4 for the first Agreement Year. For each Agreement Year thereafter, the Annual
Chemical Budget shall be agreed to by the parties. In the event that parties are unable to reach agreement, the
Annual Chemical Budget shall be the same amount as in the prior Agreement Year.

"Annual Compensation” is defined as Operator's Base Fee rendered under this Agreement and as set forth in
Schedule 4, the Annual Repair and Maintenance Budget as defined herein and set forth in Schedule 4, and the
Annual Chemical Budget as defined herein and set forth in Schedule 4

"Annual Maintenance Expenditures" is defined as the total of all expenses incurred annually by the Operator
in connection with the discharge of its Routine Preventative Maintenance and Corrective Maintenance
responsibilities as provided by Section 2.1 of this Agreement; provided however that the Annual
Maintenance Expenditures shall exclude Operator's direct labor expenses and related benefits for those
individuals exclusively assigned by the Operator to the operations and maintenance of the Facilities and
whose cost is included in the Base Fee hereunder. The Annual Maintenance Expenditures shall specifically
include, but shall not be limited to, all materials, supplies, parts, tools, outside subcontractors, specialized
services, rental equipment and all of the Operator's costs (excluding overtime costs) and related benefits, as
well as the cost of Operator's personnel not exclusively assigned to the operation and maintenance of the
Facilities at an agreed hourly billing rate. As stated hereunder, any individual expenditure for the repair
and/or replacement of Facilities' equipment or structure, other than a Capital Improvement for expenses for
Corrective Maintenance, whose unit cost (as to any single event or function) exceeds Two Thousand Five
Hundred dollars ($2,500.00) shall be subject to the Client's prior approval. The cost of such approved
expenditures shall be included in the Annual Maintenance Expenditures.

“Annual Process Residue Budget” is defined as the total of all expenses incurred annually by the Operator in
connection with its obligations for the disposal of Process Residue under Section 2.5 of this Agreement, up to
a maximum of the amount in Schedule 4 for the first Agreement Year. For each Agreement Year thereafter,
the Annual Process Residue Budget shall be agreed to by the parties. In the event that parties are unable to
reach agreement, the Annual Process Residue Budget shall be the same amount as in the prior Agreement Year

"Annual Repair and Maintenance Budget" is defined as the total of all Annual Maintenance Expenditures in
an amount up to a maximum of the amount in Schedule 4 for the first Agreement Year. For each Agreement
Year thereafter, the Annual Repair and Maintenance Budget shall be agreed to by the parties. In the event that
parties are unable to reach agreement, the Annual Repair and Maintenance Budget shall be the same amount
as in the prior Agreement Year.

“Applicable Law” means laws, rules, regulations, codes, administrative and judicial orders, directives,
guidelines, judgments, rulings, interpretations or similar requirements or actions of any federal, state, local
government, agency or executive or administrative body of any of the above, in each case that relate to the (a)
parties’ respective responsibilities under this Agreement; (b) operation or maintenance of the Facilities; (c)
health and welfare of individuals working at or visiting the Facilities; and (d) the collection, delivery and
Page 13




treatment of the Client’s raw and finished water.

"Base Fee" is defined as Operator's base compensation for its performance of the Services. The Base Fee does
not include the Annual Repair and Maintenance Budget and the Annual Chemical Budget.

“Baseline Conditions” means the average amount of raw water received and/or processed at the Facilities and
the average pollutant limits contained in such raw water.

“Capital Improvements”” means any modifications, additions or upgrades to the Facilities made by or on behalf
of the Client or with its prior approval and funded from Client’s capital proceeds.

“Change in Law” means the occurrence of any of the events listed in (i) through (iv) below, which results or
can reasonably be expected to result in (a) the need to make a Capital Improvement at or to the Facilities in
order for the Operator to operate the Facilities in accordance with this Agreement and Applicable Law; or (b)
an increase to the cost of managing, operating, or maintaining the Facilities in accordance with this Agreement
and Applicable Law; or (c) a material and adverse effect on the scope of the Operator’s liabilities or obligations
under this Agreement:

(1) There is passed or promulgated any federal, state, or other local law, statute, ordinance, rule or
regulation different from those existing on the date this Agreement is executed by Operator; or

(i1) There is passed or promulgated any amendment to, or change in any federal, state, or other
local law, statute, ordinance, rule, or regulation (including any applicable sales tax regulation)
following the date of this Agreement; or

(iii)  Following the execution of this Agreement, there comes into existence an order or judgment of
any federal, state, or local court, administrative agency or other governmental body containing
interpretations of any Applicable law relating to the operation or maintenance of the Facilities
or the health and safety of the Operator’s employees that is inconsistent with generally accepted
interpretations in effect on the date this Agreement is executed; or

(iv) After the execution of this Agreement, any change occurs which affects the issuance or
renewal, or causes a suspension, termination, interruption, revocation, denial, or failure of
renewal of any official permit, license or necessary approval by the USEPA, the Occupational
Safety and Health Administration, or any similar state agency.

“Chemicals” is defined as all chemicals, including but not limited to water and wastewater treatment,
disinfection, and processing chemicals, necessary for Operator to provide the Services provided hereunder.

“Client’s Permit(s)” and/or “Permit(s)” means all permits and licenses issued to Client and required for the
treatment of potable water from the Facilities. Copies of all Permits are attached as Schedule 3 of this
Agreement.

“Corrective Maintenance” is defined as maintenance work which involves the repair or replacement of
components which are failing or have failed. These are tasks that required a trained maintenance technician using
a variety of tools including specialized tools.

“Emergency Event” means an event which threatens the immediate shutdown of, or the substantial
reduction in the operational capacity of, any of the Facilities, or the life, health or property of Client and/or
Operator, their employees and/or agents or others.

“Facilities” means the water treatment plant, wastewater treatment plant, pumping stations, and storage tanks,
as described in Schedule 5 to this Agreement.

Page 14



“Flows and Loadings” means the actual amount of raw water received and/or processed at the Facilities and
the actual pollutant limits contained in such raw water.

“Force Majeure” means an event which is beyond the reasonable control of a party, including without
limitation: (a) acts of God; (b) flood, fire, earthquake, hurricane or explosion; (c) war, invasion, hostilities
(whether war is declared or not), terrorist threats or acts, riot or other civil unrest; (d) government order or law;
(e) actions, embargoes or blockades in effect on or after the date of this Agreement; (f) action by any
governmental authority; (g) national or regional emergency; (h) strikes, labor stoppages or slowdowns or other
industrial disturbances, other than those involving the affected parties employees;] (i) shortage of adequate
power or transportation facilities.

“Non-Processible Water” is defined as influent raw water (i) which contains Abnormal or Biologically
Toxic Materials; or (ii) which is otherwise detrimental to the operation and performance of the Facilities; or
(iii) which exceeds the design capabilities of the Facilities as defined by the Operations and Maintenance Manual
for the Facilities or as provided in submissions made to regulatory agencies in connection with the construction
and/or the permitting of the Facilities.

“Price Index” means the Consumer Price Index for all Urban Consumers — Water and Sewerage Maintenance,
Series ID CUUROOO0OSEHGO1, (CPI-U) for the US City Average for all Services, 1982-84=100 as published
monthly by the U.S. Department of Commerce, Bureau of Labor Statistics, or any replacement to that index from
time to time.

“Price Index Increase” means the percentage increase between the Price Index in effect as of January of the
current year over the Price Index in January of prior year. The Price Index Increase shall be calculated as of
each and every Adjustment Date for the purpose of adjusting the Base Compensation.

“Process Residue” means grit, screenings and sludge generated by or through the operation of the Facilities.

“Routine Preventative Maintenance” is defined as inspections and adjustments performed on equipment at
regular intervals. Included are daily, weekly, monthly, quarterly, semi-annual, etc. inspections during which
minor maintenance tasks such as lubrication, adjustments, filter replacement, calibrations, and cleaning
are carried out.

Page 15



Schedule 3: Client’s Permits

State of Tennessee NPDES Permit No, TN0062057, issued by the Tennessee Department of Environment
and Conservation (TDEC), Division of Water Pollution Control on May 10, 2024, Effective July 1, 2024,
with an expiration date of June 30, 2029.

Schedule 4: Annual Base Fee and Compensation Formula
1) Annual Compensation:
Annual Repair and Maintenance Budget in the first year of this Agreement will be: $100,000.00
Annual Chemical Budget in the first year of this Agreement will be: $22,318.00.
Annual Process Residue Budget in the first year of this Agreement will be: $118,025.00.

Base Fee in the first year of this Agreement will be: $706,186.00.

Annual Compensation in the first year of this Agreement will be: $946,529.00.

Annual Compensation will be payable in twelve (12) equal monthly installments of $78,877.42.

2) Compensation formula

If the parties are unable to agree to an increase to the Base Fee by the Adjustment Date as set forth in Section

4.2 of this Agreement, the Base Fee will be increased by the Price Index.

The following formula will be used to determine the increase in Base Fee on each Adjustment Date: AAF =
AF0 x [ P1 /P0]

where:

AAF = Annual Adjusted Fee (new Base Fee) for the upcoming Agreement Year
AF) = Annual Fee (Base Fee) for the Agreement Year just ended

P1 = Price Index in January of the current Adjustment

Po = Price Index in January of the prior Adjustment Date

With respect to the first Adjustment Date, P( shall be the Price Index in effect as of January 2025,

Page 16



Schedule 5: Client’s Facilities

Mount Carmel Wastewater Treatment Plant (WWTP) at 116 Seminole Drive, Mount Carmel, Tennessee,
consisting of a 0.472 million gallons per day (MGD) plant and associated grounds in Hawkins County,
Tennessee.

The Facilities also include an estimated seven hundred (700) residential pump stations and eleven (11)
sewage lift stations as defined below:

1.

10.

11.

544 Main Street, Mount Carmel, Tennessee
Longitude: -82.6655727
Latitude: 36.2386608

111 Independence Avenue, Mount Carmel, Tennessee
Longitude: -82.649789
Latitude: 36.325274024

116 Seminole Drive, Mount Carmel, Tennessee
Longitude: -82.65862
Latitude: 36.55526

858 Nantucket Avenue, Mount Carmel, Tennessee
Longitude: -82.6601496
Latitude: 36.5601993

411 Independence Avenue, Mount Carmel, Tennessee
Longitude: -82.6510377
Latitude: 36.33685454

1248 Independence Avenue, Mount Carmel, Tennessee
Longitude: -82.652041
Latitude: 36.5732938

640 Redwood Drive, Mount Carmel, Tennessee
Longitude: -82.651019
Latitude: 36.578859

902 Redwood Drive, Mount Carmel, Tennessee
Longitude: -82.6397227
Latitude: 36.5850897

5730 Carters Valley Road, Mount Carmel, Tennessee
Longitude: -82.6610174
Latitude: 36.5821046

123 Sunrise Meadows Court, Mount Carmel, Tennessee
Longitude: -82.668044
Latitude: 36.344045512

5453 Carters Valley Road, Mount Carmel, Tennessee
Longitude: -82.6715848
Latitude: 36.5814543

Page 17



Page 18



Schedule 6: Baseline Conditions

Page 19



Page 20



|

MOUNT CARMEL

%/J/a(*c 2o pat e i A0 0T

LEGISLATIVE MEMORANDUM

TO: Honorable Mayor Gibson, Vice Mayor Bare, and Alderman Gilliam,
Alderman Patrick, Alderman Shugart, Alderman Binstock, Alderman Cross

THRU: James Stables, City Manager

FROM: Tyler Williams, Asistant City Manager/CFO

DATE: April 24, 2025

RE: ORDINANCE NO. 25-540 (First Reading)

SUMMARY:

First Reading of Ordinance # 25-540, An Ordinance of the Town of Mount Carmel,
Tennessee, Adopting the Annual Budget for the Fiscal Year Beginning July 1, 2025, and
Ending June 30, 2026

Please refer to the attached Ordinance and provided Budget Book for further detailed
budgetary information

REQUESTING DEPARTMENT(S):

Administration

FISCAL IMPACT:

See attached information for total fiscal impact
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends approval

ATTACHMENTS:

Ordinance 25-540

FY 2026 Budget Book (provided in-person)



MOUNT CARMEL

%/)/ﬂ(& Yo put desun 1aaly

ORDINANCE # 25-540

AN ORDINANCE OF THE TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE ADOPTING
THE ANNUAL BUDGET FOR THE FISCAL YEAR BEGINNING JULY 1, 2025, AND

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

WHEREAS,

ENDING JUNE 30, 2026

Tenn, Code Ann. § 9-1-116 requires that all funds of the State of Tennessee and all
its political subdivisions shall first be appropriated before being expended and that
only funds that are available shall be appropriated; and

the Municipal Budget Law of 1982 requires that the governing body of each
municipality adopt and operate under an annual budget ordinance presenting a
financial plan with at least the information required by that state statute, that no
municipality may expend any moneys regardless of the source except in accordance
with a budget ordinance and that the governing body shall not make any
appropriation in excess of estimated available funds; and

the Governing Body has published the annual operating budget and budgetary
comparisons of the proposed budget with the prior year (actual) and the current year
(estimated) in a newspaper of general circulation not less than ten (10) days prior
to the meeting where the Board will consider final passage of the budget.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE GOVERNING BODY OF THE TOWN
OF MOUNT CARMEL, TENNESSEE AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1:

That the governing body projects anticipated revenues from all sources and
appropriates planned expenditures for each department, board, office or other
agency of the municipality, herein presented together with the actual annual
receipts and expenditures of the last preceding fiscal year and the estimated annual
expenditures for the current fiscal year, and from those revenues and unexpended
and unencumbered funds as follows for fiscal year 2026, and including the
projected ending balances for the budget year, the actual ending balances for the
most recent ended fiscal year and the estimated ending balances for the current
fiscal years:

1of5



General Fund 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026
Revenues Audited Estimated Budgeted
Local Taxes $ 2,387,276 $ 2,460,000 $ 2,500,640
Licenses and Permits 10,690 8,000 9,000
Intergovernmental 1,452,029 1,137,305 1,995,650
Fines and Forfeitures 79,069 44,050 76,050
Miscellaneous Revenues 168,700 273,800 389,800
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources $ 4,097,764 $ 3,923,155 $ 4,971,140
Appropriations
Expenditures
General Government $ 215,998 $ 593,940 $ 445,860
Administration 461,835 491,750 639,163
Police Department 472,825 590,000 829,275
Animal Control 26,041 22,900 6,000
Fire Department 430,506 445,050 1,304,960
Building Inspector 27,731 75,200 85,100
Public Works 571,233 908,250 1,144,350
State Street Aid 282,343 117,500 162,000
Solid Waste 332,160 343,300 275,000
Recreation 74,506 37,300 517,050
Debt Service 12,793 12,903 12,843
Intergovernmental Expenditures 432,387 - =
Library 71,600 71,940 100,335
Total Appropriations $ 3,411,958 $ 3,710,033 $ 5,521,936
Change in Fund Balance $ 697,813 $ 213,122 $ (550,796)
Beginning Fund Balance $ 7,030,260 $ 7,728,073 $ 7,941,195
Ending Fund Balance $ 7,728,073 $ 7,941,195 $ 7,390,399
Ending Fund Balance as % of Appropriations 226% 214% 134%
Sewer Fund 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026
Revenues Audited Estimated Budgeted
Operating Revenues $ 975,361 $ 976,100 $ 1,315,850
Sewer Operating Expenses 954,822 893,820 1,398,329
Depreciation f 273,023~ 280,000 ” 290,000
Net Operating Income (Expense) "$ (252,484) "$ (197,720) "$ (372,479)
Net Nonoperating Revenues {Expenses) S 1,339,540 S 324,914 § 1,177,816
Change in Net Position $ 1,087,056 $ 127,194 $ 805,337
Change in Net Position "$ 1,087,056 $ 127,194 "$ 805,337
Estimated Beginning Net Position $ 7,242,629 $ 8,329,685 $ 8,456,879
Estimated Ending Net Position $ 8,329,685 $ 8,456,879 $ 9,262,216

20f5




Drug Fund 2023-2024 2024-2025 2025-2026
Revenues Audited Estimated Budgeted
Drug Related Fines $ 786 $ 1,000 $ 1,000
Drug Contributions 13,580 4,600 36,500
Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources $ 14,366 $ 5600 $ 37,500
Appropriations
Expenditures
Drug Fund Operations $ 1,069 $ 2,000 $ 35,000
Total Appropriations $ 1,069 $ 2,000 $ 35,000
Change in Fund Balance $ 13207 § 3,600 "$ 2,500
Beginning Fund Balance $ 13,439 § 26,736 $ 30,336
Ending Fund Balance $ 26,736 $ 30,336 $ 32,836

SECTION 2: At the end of the fiscal year 2025, the governing body estimates fund balances or
deficits as follows:

General Fund $ 7,941,195
Sewer Fund $ 8,456,879
Drug Fund $ 30,336

SECTION 3: That the governing body recognizes that the municipality has outstanding bonded
and other indebtedness as follows:

Debt
Authorized Principal FY 2026 FY 2026
Type of and QOutstanding Debt Debt
indebtedness Unissued atJune 30, 2025 Interest Principal
Sewer Revenue Bond $ - $ 84,914 $ 3,200 $ 45,000

SECTION 4: During the coming fiscal year (2026) the governing body has planned capital
projects with proposed funding as follows:

Proposed Proposed Amount Proposed Amount Proposed Amount Total Proposed

Capital Financed by Financed by Financed by Capital

Projects Appropriations Grants Debt Projects
Police Vehicle (x2) $ 120,000 $ 120,000
CGBD Fire Truck Grant $ 100,000 | $ 420,000 $ 520,000
Fire Chief Vehicle $ 80,000 $ 80,000
FEMA Hazard Mitigation | $ 30,000 | $ 210,000 $ 240,000
Parking Lot Paving $ 100,000 $ 100,000
Security System $ 30,000 $ 30,000
Updates to P/W Building | $ 100,000 $ 100,000
P/W Equipment $ 130,000 $ 130,000
Library Equipment/Bldg. | $ 25,000 $ 25,000
LPRF Park Grant $ 200,000 | $ 200,000 $ 400,000
Totals: $915,000 $830,000 $1,745,000

30f5




SECTION 5: No appropriation listed above may be exceeded without an amendment of the
budget ordinance as required by the Municipal Budget Law of 1982 (Tenn. Code
Ann. § 6-56-208). In addition, no appropriation may be made in excess of available
funds except to provide for an actual emergency threatening the health, property or
lives of the inhabitants of the municipality and declared by a two-thirds (2/3) vote
of at least a quorum of the governing body in accord with Tenn. Code Ann. § 6-56-
205.

SECTION 6: Money may be transferred from one appropriation to another in the same fund in
an amount of up to $25,000 by the Town Administrator, subject to such limitations
and procedures as set by the Governing Body pursuant to Tenn. Code Ann. § 6-56-
209. Any resulting transfers shall be reported to the governing body at its next
regular meeting and entered into the minutes.

SECTION 7: A detailed financial plan will be attached to this budget and become part of this
budget ordinance.

SECTION 8: There is hereby levied a property tax of $1.5897 per $100 of assessed value on all
real and personal property.

SECTION 9: This annual operating and capital budget ordinance and supporting documents shall
be submitted to the Comptroller of the Treasury or Comptroller’s Designee for
approval pursuant to Title 9, Chapter 21 of the Tennessee Code Annotated within
fifteen (15) days of its adoption. If the Comptroller of the Treasury or
Comptroller’s Designee determines that the budget does not comply with the
Statutes, the Governing Body shall adjust its estimates or make additional tax levies
sufficient to comply with the Statutes or as directed by the Comptroller of the
Treasury or Comptroller’s Designee.

SECTION 10: All unencumbered balances of appropriations remaining at the end of the fiscal year
shall lapse and revert to the respective fund balances.

SECTION 11: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict with any provision of this
ordinance are hereby repealed.

SECTION 12: This ordinance shall take effect July 1, 2025, the public welfare requiring it.

Passed 1* Reading: April 24, 2025

Passed 2™ Reading: May 22, 2025

4 of 5



Voting by the Board, as follows, on April 24, 2025, First Reading:
Yes No

Alderman Patrick
Alderman Binstock
Alderman Cross
Alderman Shugart
Alderman Gilliam
Vice Mayor Bare
Mayor Gibson

Voting by the Board, as follows, on May 22, 2025, Second Reading:

Yes No
Alderman Patrick
Alderman Binstock
Alderman Cross
Alderman Shugart
Alderman Gilliam
Vice Mayor Bare
Mayor Gibson

John K. Gibson, Mayor
ATTEST:

Tyler S. Williams, Town Recorder

50f5



T 98ed

000297 000297 9r'cot PIV 199115 91e31S TGGEE
0017'C 0017'C q9v‘C Xe] 1999 91e1s 0ESEE
000689 000289 EV6'vL9 xe] sd|es 91e1s OTSEE
000°'S 000°'S 000°'S AJeaqin -Ayuno) wouy syuess TT/E€
000°0¢ 000°0¢ 000°0¢ 314 -Ajuno) wouy syuess OTLEE
- €G€C syuelo Aleiqi] 06ZE€
000°0TC Jueln uonesilIN piezeH VINI4 TZLEE
000°0¢¥ LBETEY Jues 5gad OTTEE
000°0€T SOV'TTT JuelH SWOH 06TEE
000°0T 000°0T 7€6'1 (3ueao ANjIqIsIA YSIH) OSHL 6Z1EE
000°00¢ - 000°'S JueJS 4Yd1 91e1S £TYEE
008t 002'€ 009°S (1SOd) Aed |eyuswajddng a1e3s OTYEE
00SCT 00SCT 6€SCC 10eJ1U0) |e150d T6TEE
9NUBAJY |eJUBWUIBIN0SIU|
0006 $ 0008 069°0T slwJad pue sasuadi |ejo)
00S 00S SHWJd4/sasuddI7 1999 00ZCE
00S‘8 0008 0690T SHwW.Jad 8ulp|ing 0T9ZE
SHWJI3d ' S9suadn
0¥9‘00S‘c  $ 000°09t‘C 9/2'L8E'C saxe] |eJoq |ej0)
00009 00009 8€809 asiyoueld a|qe) Jaueyd ZI6TE
000SS 000CS €10°0S Xe] 1999 9|esa|oyM OTLTE
000008 000008 960969 xe] sa|es uondQ |e207 0T9TE
00S‘€ 000°T 7801 xe] Ayiadoud Ayjeuad 00€TE
0000V 000v€ 98.°CE saxe] Ayadoud 1usnbullag 00ZTE
OVT TSt S 000°€TS‘T 6SV'9rS‘T saxe] Auadoud 00TTE
saxe] |eJ01
SINN3AIY
kuwm_u:m polewis] p=lpny
920¢-520¢ S70T-t20T v20z-€20¢
pung jeiauan (OTT
33SSINNIL “TINHVYI INNOW 40 NMOL
920¢-520¢ S20Z-t20T v20z-€20¢




7 98ed

NOO.N._” w $92JN0S mc_u:m:_u_ PYyi10

OVT‘TL6'Y § SST'ET6'E S v9L'L60'Y S INN3IAIY TVLIOL

008°68€ S 008‘€LT $  00L'89T S dNUAAY JaY10 |eroL
000°SY 000°ce €E9'TY SNO3UE||ISIN 0669€
yuawdinb3 jo a|es 0£€9E
91889 S91113U7 81eAlld WoJ) uoneuoq S669¢€
000°00€ 000°00¢ €€0°9€ sdujuJed 3saua3u| 00T9E
008 008 - 994 Uolie1) 1I11-3 0TZEVE
000°ce 000°s€ 60€'8T penuo) AemysiH 21eis OTEVE
00S (dnuanay g suonjeuoq) Juswiiedaq adljod TZLEE
000°0T 0008 0LT'ET (anuanay 1 suoneuoq) Juswiiedaq aJl4 0TLEE
00S - 6€9 (@nuanay g suoneuoq) Ateqr 6TLEE

9NUOAIY 1910

0S0‘9L S  0S0‘vv $ 690°6L S saljjeuad '3 saul |ejoL
000°T 000°T S 8ST'T S (s150D %8 saul4) 1no) Axuno) 09TSE
000°G¢ 000°G¢ S 9r0'TT S JuswadJojug 03oyd ZTITSE
000°0S 000°8T S S¥8°sS S (s350D 13 saul4) 1NoJ AND OTTSE
0S 0S S 0z S (uondopy ‘saul4 ‘saa4) |0J3U0) [eWIUY OTSHE

saljjeudd g saul4

- S - S - S 0IAIDS 10} sddiey) |eyoL

90IA19S 10} sddiey)d

0S9'666‘'T $ SOE'LET'T S 6T0‘CSY'T S 9NUIAY |eIUBWUIBN0SIdIU] [eIOL
0SY'T 00€°T L6S'T 9NUAASY SuOI1eIIUNWWOIR|DL T669€
00S°C 00S°C - Xe] UOI1eZIUI3PO|A uoleriodsuel] 8GGEE
00089 00089 [AAWA) (saxe] Jo narq ur JuswAed) VAL T6SEE
000°0T 000°0T ov'oT gumaqsuods z6SE€
000°8€ 000°LE LLT'8E Xe| duljoseD 91e1S 7SSEE




¢ a8ed

098‘stv S 0v6‘€6S S 866'STC JUSWIUIAAOD) |eJ3UID) |eJOL
000°S¢ 000°0S¢ 090°TT suonenouay Jolaiu|/AeanQ [exde) ov6
000°0€T SOV'TTT 1UelD 3WOH 06/
009°'T 009°T 0S0°'T A3anyIv 9zL
00S°C 00S°C - Jaquey) '0) supmeH vz/
000°€€ 000°€€ 000°0€ 131U3) S,UsZ1) JOIUIS €7/
00S‘C 00SC 000°C VYHL14 2L
09.'GE GE9'T GE9'T aald ozs
000'ST 0058 0ST sa8iey) 92IAIBS yueg 169
- - - weJsdoud A19jes /69
0006 0006 9019 $150) |esiedddeay 1SS
000'SCT 000'SCT 9TLLTT ddueunsu| 0TS
- - (z£0T) $921AI9S SudauIul ST
000C 0081 L0S'T 13y10 pue suoyda|a] St
000°8T 000°8T 898°9T salMIN ove
00082 000°G¢ 7979t yoeasinQ Ayunwwo)/suoile|ay dljqnd 9€C
00S'v 0001 9TL'E $994 uoneJsiday pue sdiysiaqus|A ‘sang SET
0001 S (s994) uswuap|y 73 JoABN TOT
JUSWIUIDAO0D |elduad Q00T
S3YNLIANIdX3
GEECT6'CT  $  8TTTISITT S TE0OVI‘TT uoneridoaddy Joj ajqejieny
S6T'TV6'L $ €L0'8TLL S  092‘0€0°L dduejeg punyj Suluuisag




1 98ed

€91°6€9 S 0SLT6V S GE8TIV uoneJssiuiwpy [ejol
000°S 000°T - swdinb3 1 49Indwo) /76
000t $ 000C 0 wswdinb3 ov6
00S°T S 00ST 14774 Jardo)y-asea unesado 579
00S‘t $ 0008 90°9% SNO3UB||ISIIN 6.1
002t $ 002C 9/L'T sa1|ddng samog Asuid ZT€
00S‘8 S 0008 €7L'8 saljddng 20110 0TE
00S‘C $ 000°C 6L0'T (4931SBIA 78 343]D) S99 UOISSIWWO)) 86T
- m 0 0 S9JIAJIDS |enJeJluo) | 06¢
00S‘L $ 00SC €9 |9neJL 08T
000°ST S 0000T €€LCT Jieday “jule|\ pue gulpjing 99¢
€77'91 0S¥‘ST SY0‘vT (aq.d) sed1atas Butuoz pue duluueld /ST
000'8¢€ S 000°0€ 6CC’'3E Hoddng aiemyos/aiempley Jaindwo) §S
000°'SY S 000y 147447 $994 HpNy 13 SUI3UNOIY £ST
000S€ $ 000°0€ 859°¢c€ SIOINIDS |87 TST
00¢ S 00T St SDIINIDS [BIIPAIN TST
008V S 008V 009°€ adpnr A1 0S¢
000°€ S 000°€ 9v0‘T SuIsIlaNpY /€T
000°'S S suolje|ay dljqnd 9€¢
00S°8 S 00S‘T 1TC $994 uoljeJsiday pue sdiysiaquialA ‘sang SET
- S0 0 Aioyiny 3uisnoH €€t
ovT's S0 0 S9IIAIBS M LTT
00€T S 002°T G80‘T S9IIAIDS 12UIBIU| 9TT
000vT 058°8 (s934) uawuap|y g JoAeN TIT
0002 S 0SLT 6/9°T 8ulules] pue uoieanp3j gy
0S9 $ 1099 €97 ouesnsu| JusawAojdwaun /T
005, S 000°L 9/8'9 uollesuadwo) sII0M 91T
000'8T S 000°€T S08°0T ue|d Juswalldy aaAojdwy €1
009°8Y S 000°SY YLV douelnsu| ddhojdw3 zyT
002t $ 00002 ¥50°ST (34eys sJahojdw3) IseQ THT
009°C S snuog sewisuyd €T
0SL'6T€ S  000sTT S €LL°0LT (£:314 1d/14) sadeM T¢CT
uonjesisiulwpy 00STY




G a8ed

sLe'e6e8 $  000°06S Ses‘eLy jusawyiedaq 9d1j0d |er0L

000°0VT 00009 - wawidnb3 ov6
000°0T 000°0T 7€6'T et AlIqIsIA YSIH SoL
000‘T 000‘T €601 Ja1do) -asea] Sunesado 579
000°€ 00S'T 8VS'E sagiey) Alajes jo 1dag 095
00S'T 00S'T v’y SNoaue||22SIA 6.1
000°'T 00S GET olpey 9s¢
000°0¢ 000'ST 98€TT |an4 T€€
000°ST 000°ST 4% AT asuadx3 gunesadQ 3PIYaA 0€€
008 008 - salddns 1211 3 62€
00Sv 00s‘S 166°L swoylun pue Sulyio 9§
QLL'E 000C 61T S1S9/\ JOOUd 13||INgG STE
000°0T 000°'S AN saliddng Sunesado 0zg
0001 0001 TEV'C salddns 221140 OTE
00€‘C $3DIAJIDS |ENIORIIUO)) J3YI0 06T
00S°C 00S°C 0/S‘T [9ABJL 08C
000°S 000ST (Y47 Jieday pue soueuaiulel Suipjing 99z
00001 000'ST SS6°S Hoddng aiemipos/aiempieH J91ndwo) §G¢
009 009 ST6 S3JIAISS |BJIPIIN TSTC
0009 0009 861G auoyda|a] Sye
00€ 00¢ - sang S€¢
00v‘T 00v‘T €CET (TT6) Wod3 617
000°T 000°T veeT S9IIAIDS 1BUIRIU| 9TT
000'8T 000'ST gTr'e Sululed| pue uoneonp3 asiojdwy gyt
00s 00s 6S€E ?ouesnsu| JuswAojdwaun /T
000°CT 000'TT ¥S6°0T uolesuadwo) s JaI0M 99T
000°0€ 000°Ct ¥S1'Ce ue|d 1uawalnay aakoldw3 €T
000‘0¥ 000°CE 8/8Ly aouesnsu| aakojdwy zyT
000'T€ 00092 [A K4 aJeys JaAojdwa - ISYO T¥T
00L'€ snuog sewisuy) v
00002 000°0¢ 4% 074" sage\ SWIMBAQD 771
00v‘0Ty $  000°00€ v€0'TLT (€T :314 1d/14) sageM TCT

juswyedaq 3dljod 00TZY




g 98ed

008 008 708 auoyda|al | s¥e
0006 0006 19C°8 S91U|1IN 0Y7¢
000°S 00S°€ Q18°C 9peJed/suolle|ay dl|qnd 8€¢
00S 0S¢ 0§ sang G€e
000°8 00Sv 6CSY 8ulules] 13 uoneonpl gL
oov 00¢€ 9€¢ ?ouesnsu| JuswAojdwaun /T
00ce 000¢€ eLe uoljesuadwo) s,J33I0M 91T
00S0T (842°T) ue|d uswaJnay aakojdwy pT
00t'0T 00S'S ¥£0'9 aJeys Jahojdw3 - ISYO TYT
0061 snuog sewisuy) €T
09T'SET 000'TL €09°L9 (8:314 1d/14) sa8eM\|TZT
juawypedaq 3414 00y

0009 006‘CC 1092 |0J3U0) |ewiuy [e10]
- - wawdinb3 ov6
002°T 68S°T |an4 T€€
00S‘T %] asuadx3 SunesadQ 9dIYaA 0€E
0 - swJuojlun pue 3ulyio|) 9ze
0 T9¢€ salddnsg 8unesadQ|ozg
0 - S9IAJIDS |BJIPAIN  TST
009 IS auoyda|a] | s¥e
0 - sa1M|1IIN 0¥
0 - sanQ qec
0009 0009 GL0‘S $9394 J31J2YS 0T
0 - Suiuieua] g uoneonp3 gyt
0s (47 ?ouesnsu| JuswAojdwaun /T
099 L€9 uoljesuadwo) s,J33I0M 9T
(662) ue|d JuawiaJildy adAo|dw3 €4
000°T 't aJeys Jahojdw - ISVO TvT
snuog sewisuyd €T
000CT €78'ST (0:314 1d/14) sadeM T¢I

|0J3uU0) JewluY 001l




/ 98ed

00T QS6T saliddng Sunesado 0zg
000°SL (11n934VS) S921AI3S |BNIORIIUOD JBYIO 06T
- - |aneJ] 08¢
000°0T - 0Sv'L uolyjowsq 69¢
- - 19€ suoyda|aL Sz
- - LET sa1M|1IIN 0T
- 000°S. q8T'v sanQ See
- - 6L SIJIAIDS 18UIBIU| 9TT
- - 0S¢ 3ulutes] xg uoneanp3 gyT
- - - ?ouesnsu| JusawAojdwaun /T
- - 8S6'T uonesuadwo? s, 3)JoOM 9T
- - 6.8 aleys JaAojdw3 - ISYO T¥T
- $ - $ 08 $ (0:314 1d/14) sa8eM TeT
Joyadsu) Sulpjing 0z ey

GETOPT'T $ 0S6°LSO'T S TLE'6L6 S A1syes 211qNnd |E10L

096V0E'T  $ 0S0'Shv S 9050tV S juswiedaq aJi4 [ejol
000509 000°0€¢ 699°97C awdinbl o6
000°0v¢C Jueso uonesIHN piezeH VINIH €€4
000°T 00S°C 8781 SNO3ue||3dSIN 6L
0008Y 000°8T 68VCT 1uswdinb3 juswyedsq aJl4 v€
000°s 000°s 1/8'Y olpey 9g¢€
0009 0009 L60°S [ond4 TE€E
000°0€ 00002 809°6¢ asuadx3 SunesadQ 3PIYaA 0€€
000°€ 000°€ 08L°C swuojlun pue 3uiyio|D 9zg
000°€ 000C 0SZ'6T saljddns Sunnesado 0ze
000°T 000°T 98Y sal|ddns 2210 0T€
000°C 000°C 8651 SIJIAIDS |EN1DRIIUOD 06T
00S°0T 00v‘0T e 3unsa] eysQ 18¢
000°T 000°T 143% |9neJ] 08T
000°09T 0SLty €86'GT Jreday g ule|n 8ulp|ing 992
00S‘v 005 €T€ Hoddng aiemipos/arempieH J91ndwo) §G¢
00T 0S St SIOINIDS |BDIPBIN TST




Q 98ed

PIV 19341S 91B1S | 06T EY

OSEYPI'T $ 0SC'806 S EE€TTLS S juawiedaq sy40M dl|qnd |ezol

000°0€T 000°0€C L8T'6TT awdinbj o6
000°0S€ 000'S.T LSE'LE Suined 1€6
0001 000°'T 8/ Jieday a8eulelq zsy
000°T 000°T TCL SNoaue||22SIA 6.1
00S8€ 000SE 896°LC [on4 TEE
000SE 0009T 8¥8LT asuadx3 unesadQ aPIYaA 0€E
000°s 00Sv YST'E swoylun pue Sulyio 9§
0006 000°8 69S°TT saliddng Sunesado 0zg
008 00s 15174 sa|ddns 221140 0TE
000C 000°T 0TC'C guisea yuawdinb3 67
00S - - [9ABJL 08T
000°ST 000C G69°0T Jieday peoy 1@ adueUdUIRIA 193135 89T
00000T 0SL'E 9/.'9 Jleday 3 soueuaule|p Sulp|ing 99¢
00S 00S 143 S9IINISS [BIIPSIN TST
008°C 008C TEL'T auoydajaL stz
00S°8 00S°8 9€T’L S91M|1IN 0¥¢
000°C 000°C €€8°T S9IIAJIDS 19UIDIU| 9T T
00S'T - - Suiuieua] g uoneonp3 gyt
oov 00¢€ JA4 ?ouesnsu| JusawAojdwaun /T
00L°6 00v‘6 6506 uolzesuadwo) s Ja)I0M 9%T
000'8T 000'ST GTL9T ue|d JuswaJney Akojldw3 €T
000°0S 000°eY 0LT'8Y doueunsu| ddAojdw3 zyT
0051 000'8T 88881 aJeys JaAojdw3 - ISYO TYT
00S‘€ snuog sewisuyd €T
0009 0009 S 9€T’e S sage/M SWILBAQ 7CT
0ST'6CE $ 000'sTT S T86'veT S (£:314 1d/14) sadeM T1ZT

uawedaq sy4oM 31|qnd 00TEY

00T‘s8 $ o00z'sL S TEL'LT S Joyadsuj Sulpjing |ejoL

- wawdinb3 ov6
00T 00T L6T SNOdUE||3JSIN 6.1




6 98ed

Sy8y 000°SY S T16T°TY (:314 1d/14) saeM 12T
Aieisqr 00811
0S0°LTS S 00€‘LE S 90S‘VL uoneasnay |eyol
000°0TT 000°0€ v16°8€ uolesadQ pue juswdolansq Jied ST/
- puel 0T6
000°00¥% 00°000°C¢ jueso 44d1 STL
0S¢ 00S 00'08.9 SNO3UE||AISIN 6.1
00S‘T 00S‘T 00°6L¥'T saljddns Sunnesado 0zg
00¢€ 00¢€ 000 Yied [BLIOWSIA JEA\ UBIDIDA 00€
000°s 000°s S 00°€0€‘S Sa1M|1IN 0P
uoneatdy Orviy
000°SL2 S 00€‘sve S 09T'TEE d1se pljos |ero)
000°€t 080°6T asuadx3 SunesadQ 3PIYaA 0€€
00S S TST saljddns Sunnesado 0zg
000'SLT 000'S¥C S STy'Ive (ysedL Hods3ury|) SIJIAISS [BNIIEIIUOD 06T
- S0 [ESIPAIN TST
00T Y47 ?ouesnsu| JusawAojdwaun /T
00t m Y6€ co_pmmchEOU S 4)I0M\ | 91T
000t S T¥8'E ue|d Juswalady adhojdwy €pT
000°€T S 7S8‘eT douelnsu| ddhojdwy zyT
00Ty S 9€6°E aleys s Jakoldw3 -IseQ THT
008°T S 0¢8 sage/ SWILIBAQ 7CT
00v'TS S 8T9'8Y (0:314 1d/14) sadeM T¢CT
91SeM PI|OS 00ZEY
000291 S 00S'LIT S Eve‘T8e pIV 193135 91€)S |ejoL
000°s 000°TT 0 wawdinb3 ov6
000°0S S 0009 S 0852971 duined 1€6
000°ST $ | 0000¢ S 8TL'9€ saljddns g s|elaielN 00v
000°C S 0001 S T9v doueUdUIBIA IY3SIT dl44ed] EVE
000°S S 00SV $ 980°C sa1|ddng g sued usiS zye
000'SL S | 000°SL S L6V'SL 3unysn 198as /1t




0T 28ed

9€6'TZS’'S $ €EE00TL'E 8S6‘TIV'E S3YNLIANIdX3 1V1O0L

Ev8'eT S €06°CT €6LCT 9JIAI3S 1qa(Q |el0L
0SL 0SL (4774 152431u]| || uonnduasqns 00y
008°s 008°S 8SL'S |ediduld 11 uonduasqns Qs
6v¢ 681 6TL 159491U| 35637 ¥6C
109 ¥98‘s v/5‘s sjuswAed |edidulid asea 00T

0IAISS 192d 00006

L8ETEY sain}ipuadx3 |eusawuidnosuialu| |e1oL

L8ETEY 13(0ud waisAs ua3eM DA TZ0OZ 00Y
saJnjipuadx3 [euawuianosialu] 0ES9Y

SEE‘00T S Oov6'TL 009TL Aseaqiq jeroL
AeinQ |ended ov6
000°C 000C 9L weJSo.d Suipeay Jswwng 17/
00s 009 €97 Ja1do) -aseaq Sunesado 579
00S°C 000°C jueso Sululed) Atesgr] 619
008°S 00€’s T00°‘s $3oogd 06¥
0[0)7 0[0)7 9¢ SNOSUE|33SIIN 6L
00L'T 000'C 6ST'T sa1jddns 22140 01€
009 00¢ 1744} [2Ae11 08¢
00002 00S‘C 195, Jleday 3 soueuajule|n Sulp|ing 99¢
0059 00€ SZ1's Hoddng aiemipos/aiempieH J91ndwo) §G¢
00T 00T - S9IAJIDS |BIDPIIN | TST
00¢ 008 6LL auoyda|al |s¥e
009°C 009°C G9S°C sanIN ove
0081 00S°C TLST 1BUJIRIU| 9TC
000°T 009 ¥SS 8ulules] 13 uoneonpl gL
ovt ovT 6E€T ouesnsu| JusawAojdwaun /T
00L°T 00L°T 659°T uonesuadwo?) s,43Y40M 9T
0S9°€ 00€‘€ TOL'E aJeys Jahojdw3 - ISYO TYT
008 snuog sewisuy) €1




1T 98ed

98 'SrTL 782'969°L 09T‘€8Y‘L asuejeg yse) Suipuz
782'969°L 09T‘€8Y‘L 900°€6L‘9 aoue|eg yse) Suluuidag
66£°06€'L S6T‘IV6'L €L0°8TLL aouejeg pun4 Suipug
sainypuadxa
(96£05S) TeTETT €18°L69 (19pun) Jano sanuanal Jo (31d14ap) ssadx3




000°S¢ 8TG'8€ doueUIIUIEN puE Jleday uolels dwnd T9¢€
000t [440l% [°n4 T€E
00S'T v6L'E asuadx3 SunesadQ 9pIyap ose
00S'T 9sT'L swojiun pue sulyiop gz€
000°0¢ Y9've s|eaiway) s
000°0T €90°€T sa||ddns Suizesadp 0ze
6¢S'9Y6 000°0ST 858°Gr (d4ewelyU]) SOIIAIDS |ENIDRIIUOD JBYLO 06¢C
- - 9TT'T [9ned] 08¢
00S‘€ 00S‘s ¥89°S speoy -2aueudlule|p pue Jieday 89¢
000'ST 000'sT S€8'ST S9JIAJDS ddueUdLUIR|A pue Jleday 09¢
- - LL 1oddng pue ai1emyjos aiempleH Jd (lord
- - LET'TOT Suideaspue pue ‘Suliaauidu] ‘@94n393ydly ST
- 0ST SSS S9IIAJIDS |eDIPIIN ST
005 000°€ 086'€ auoydajal 144
00008T 000'SLT 0LT'8VT saInN ove
- 000°T - sang S€C
008 008 L06 19UJ31U| 917
- - LTST Suiules| SYT
0ST 16T 9oueunsu| JuswAholdwaun LT
000°s S0€L dwo) s,JayIoMm 9yT
000°0T €66'T€ JUBWIaJI1I3Y VT
00L'€T 00T’LE aoueJnsu| aaAo|dwy wT
00%‘0T 89/°LT aJeys s,uaho|dw3 -ISYO TvT
snuog sew3siy) VET
000°CT T01°8 WA A
000'VET  $ | SS9°/0C (0:3.14 1d/14) sagem A

S3ISN3IdX3 DNILVYHIdO

0S8‘STE'T S 00T'9L6 S | T9E'SL6 S3INN3IAIY ONILVYHIdO 1vV10L
00T 00T 756°C SONUBAIY SNO3UE|ISISIN 66¢CLE
0000T 0008 089°¢ s994 de] Jamas 96¢CLE
000°¢ 000°€ 00LC $994 8uUNOJdY v6¢CLE
0SLTOE'T S | 000°996 S | 620996 $984ey) 30IAISS JOMIS 0TCLE

SINNIAIY ONILVYHIdO

po1aSpng palewns3 paypny
9¢20¢-5¢0¢ S¢0z-veoc 20¢-€20¢

pun4 Jamas

[4%%

33SSINNIL “TINYVYI INNOW 40 NMOL




LTT'?9C'6 648958 S89'62€‘8 0€ dunf uolsod 13N Sulpu3
648958 S89'6Z€'8 629TVT’L T AInf uonisod 39N Suluuidag
LEE'S08 ver'LeT 950°280°‘T uo1}Isod 32N ul asuey)
9T8‘LLIT‘T v16'vee ObS‘6EE‘T SINNIAIY ONILVHIdO-NON 1v101L
0008C 000'9T ¥9L'ST s3ujuled 3sa4aju| 00T9€
- 888'TS Vddv -23dal S6¢CLE
9T8'6VT'T ¥16'86¢ 888'TLT'T VdyV -sjueln |eapad 00T9¢€
SINNIAIY ONILVHIdO-NON
(6Lv‘TLE) (ozL'LeT) (¥8v‘2se) (sso1) awoouj Sunesado
62£'889°T 0Z8'ELT'T sv8Lze't sasuadx3 SunesadQ 1B dAnEJISUIUIWPY [e10L
000°6€ 029‘CE ¥89‘0¢€ sasuadx3j SunesadQ Jomas |e10]
- 0ct - saduey) 921nJS dueg 169
- 00§ L€ 93e1504 pue sasuadx3 22140 0OT€
000°Ct 000°0¢ €87'1¢ $394 U01399]|0) 267
000C 000°C Sunipny/8uiunody €67
000°ST 000°0T ¥9€9 $92IAI9S [eSa] 75T
SISNIdX3 TVHINID B JAILVULSININGY
62E€'6v9'T 00Z‘TVT‘T T9T'L6T'T sasuadx3 SunesadQ Jamas |ejol
000°s 00S'T TeeT slamo|g Jamas 956
00S'T 000°T ST0°T 90UBUSIUIBIA $S3.d 556
- 000°0€ T0¥'8S s224 |esodsiqg 28pn|s 756
6TE Y asuadx3 1saJ91u| VAl S€9
00s°E 00S‘s - 994 1WJad 21e1S 965
000'06¢ 000°08¢ €T0'€LT uonedaldaq (0174
000°00T 000°0L 000°S€ [eluay uawdinb3 3 Assuiyoen €€9
000°C 000°C 1€6 aosueinsu| 0TS
000°T 000°T €1€CT sasuadx3 snoaue||adsI|A 6LY
000°0S 89009 Jleday pue adueu3lUIBIA JUB|d J21BMIISEAN ¥9¢
00S‘T TGET Jleday pue aduBUILUIBA| DUIT JOMS £€9¢
000'S6 9T'€E dueuduleA pue Jleday dwnd |elauapisay 79¢€




€LTLT S €L9'VT S €L0‘1T S IDNVIVE HSVD ONIAN3
€L9VT S €L0‘1T S €L0‘1T S IDNVIVE HSYD ONINNIDIg
9€8°CE S 9£€0€ S 9££‘9C dduejeg pung Suipu3
00S‘C S 009‘€ S L6T'ET sainyipuadx3 (19pun) 49AQ SONUINIY SSIIXJ
000°SE S 000C S 690'T SIYNLIANIAX3 TVLOL
000°S€ 000°C 690°T suonesadQ pun{ 8nuqQ L/
T¢Iy
SIYNLIANIAX3
9€8°/9 S 9g£gCE S S08°‘LT uoneridoiddy 104 3|qejieny
9€€‘0€ S 9££‘9C S G6EV'ET dduejeg pun4 Suluuidag
00S‘LE S 009°'S S 99€VT SINN3IAIY TVLIOL
0059¢ 009y 08S‘ST suollnqguuo) 3nig 00ZSE
000°T S 0001 S 98/ saul4 paie|ay 8nuqQ OYTSE
SINN3IAIY
p2128png paiewiisy palpny
920¢-52¢0¢ G20¢-ve0e ve0z-€20¢
punj 3nuqg /71

33SSINNIL “TINYVYI LNNOW 10 NMOL




	RESOLUTION 25-652 and FINAL AGREEMENT.pdf
	RESOLUTION 25-652 Inframark LLC Wastewater Operations & Maintenance Agreement Approval 5 year
	Mt. Carmel - INFRAMARK_WASTEWATER TREATMENT PLANT OPERATION AND MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT FINAL 2025.04.23_Rev3
	BACKGROUND
	1) TERM
	2) OPERATOR’S SERVICES
	3) CLIENT OBLIGATIONS
	4) FEES AND PAYMENT
	5) BASELINE CONDITIONS
	5.1. If the Flows and Loading increased by more than ten percent (10%) from the Baseline Conditions as set out in Schedule 6 of this Agreement at the end of an Agreement Year, Client shall pay the Operator for the increase in Operator’s costs for prov...
	5.2. If the Flows and Loadings increase by more than ten percent (10%) from the Baseline Conditions as set out in Schedule 6 of this Agreement in two (2) consecutive Agreement Years, the Operator may provide notice to the Client and the parties shall ...
	6) TERMINATION
	7) FINES, INDEMNIFICATION AND LIMITATION
	8) INSURANCE
	9) DISPUTES
	10) MISCELLANEOUS
	TOWN OF MOUNT CARMEL   INFRAMARK, LLC
	Schedule 1: Operator’s Services
	Schedule 3: Client’s Permits
	2) Compensation formula





